
NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide
Episodes 001–054

Last episode aired Monday May 06, 2024

©
w
w
w
.
c
b
s
.
c
o
m

www.cbs.com


© 2024 www.imdb.com

© 2024 www.cbs.com © 2024 www.
celebdirtylaundry.com

© 2024 alexusrenee.com

The summaries and recaps of all the NCIS: Hawai’i episodes were downloaded from https://www.imdb.com and https:
//www.cbs.com and https://www.celebdirtylaundry.com and https://alexusrenee.com and processed through a
perl program to transform them in a LATEX file, for pretty printing. So, do not blame me for errors in the text !

This booklet was LATEXed on May 8, 2024 by footstep11 with create_eps_guide v0.71

www.imdb.com
www.cbs.com
www.celebdirtylaundry.com
www.celebdirtylaundry.com
alexusrenee.com
https://www.imdb.com
https://www.cbs.com
https://www.cbs.com
https://www.celebdirtylaundry.com
https://alexusrenee.com


Contents

Season 1 1
1 Pilot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
2 Boom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
3 Recruiter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
4 Paniolo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
5 Gaijin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
6 The Tourist . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
7 Rescuers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
8 Legacy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
9 Impostor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
10 Lost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21
11 The Game . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
12 Spies, Part 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25
13 Spies, Part 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27
14 Broken . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29
15 Pirates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31
16 Monster . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33
17 Breach . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35
18 T’N’T (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37
19 Nurture . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39
20 Nightwatch . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41
21 Switchback . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43
22 Ohana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45

Season 2 47
1 Prisoners’ Dilemma (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49
2 Blind Curves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51
3 Stolen Valor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53
4 Primal Fear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55
5 Sudden Death . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57
6 Changing Tides . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59
7 Vanishing Act . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61
8 Curtain Call . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63
9 Desperate Measures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65
10 Deep Fake (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67
11 Rising Sun . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69
12 Shields Up . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71
13 Misplaced Targets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73
14 Silent Invasion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75
15 Good Samaritan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77
16 Family Ties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79
17 Money Honey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81
18 Bread Crumbs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 83
19 Cabin Fever . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85
20 Nightwatch Two . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 87



NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

21 Past Due . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 89
22 Dies Irae . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 91

Season 3 93
1 Run and Gun (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 95
2 Crash and Burn (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97
3 License to Thrill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 99
4 Dead on Arrival . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101
5 Serve and Protect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103
6 Operation Red Rabbit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 105
7 The Next Thousand . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 107
8 Into Thin Air . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109
9 Spill the Tea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111
10 Divided We Conquer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113

Actor Appearances 115

II



Season One





NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

Pilot

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday September 20, 2021
Writer: Matt Bosack, Christopher Silber, Jan Nash
Director: Larry Teng
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Navy Captain Joe Milius), Moses Goods (Wally Hol-
man), Danielle Zalopany (Hina), Ron Yuan (Big Luna), Erica Wong
(Myra), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Amber Abara (Sally), Jamaal
Burcher (Charles Randolph), Blaze Cosner (Moke), Pedro Lemus Jr.
(Navy Honor Guard), Chris Magpoc (ME Tech), Jordan Matlock (Main-
lander #1), Jacob White (Mainlander #2), Ryan Pagan (HPD Officer #1),
Chris Kim (HPD Officer #2), Keala Patterson (Bartender), Louis Steiner
(Master at Arms), Kala’e Camarillo (Special Live Musical Performance),
Austin Michael (Naval Officer), Josh Squire (Jogger)

Production Code: HAW101
Summary: An experimental Naval aircraft crashes on Oahu, and Jane Tennant

and her team must find who is behind it before classified state secrets
are exposed.

A soccer game among children came to an
end when the coach who also happens to
be a mother to one of the young girls had
needed a helicopter to fly to work. NCIS
Special Agent Jane Tennant was called in
and she and her team were responding
to a down pilot. The pilot was Navy. His
name was Lt. Commander David Walters.

He was a part of a highly classi-
fied mission flying an experimental plane
when the said plane went down and he
was killed in the blast. Tennant faced is-
sues with the Navy as she went about in-

vestigating. They had wanted to give her team the case because the plane was a part of a top-
secret defense project and so they worried about Tennant’s clearance. She eventually showed
them that she was cleared. And that she has connections.

Tennant got the case. She and her people began working on it and she also had to get her
new guy out of prison. NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman was arrested for arguing against a police
officer. The officer was being aggressive with the locals and so Holman spoke up for them. He
was also arrested for his troubles. It had been Tennant who got him out of prison and she told
him that next time his first phone call has to be to her. She will handle any blowback.

Holman is the newest person on her team and they still call him the new guy after two weeks
on the job. He was there when what little they got from the autopsy was revealed. Their victim
died of an overdose. They had checked his apartment and they hadn’t found any drugs.
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If anything, Walters was a clean freak bordering on anal. There were only health supplements
located in his apartment and his commanding officer would have noticed if the pilot had a drug
problem. There was also the issue of Walter’s missing girlfriend. She went dark a few days ago
and so they tracked her down to her last location. Noelani had been murdered.

She was killed and her body as well as her car was hidden out in the forest. NCIS found it.
Their working theory was that Walters killed her and possibly killed himself. Tennant informed
Walter’s commanding officer of the issue and he took an exception to it. Navy Captain Joe Milius
thought what happened to his office was an accident. He wanted the body to be turned over to
the victim’s family.

Only Tennant couldn’t do that because it was an active investigation. She got in trouble
enough when someone on her team read a classified report upside down and so Tennant didn’t
need more deterrents. She held onto the body. She and her team later learned that Walters’s
supplements had been spiked. Someone switched the healthy stuff and put in its place a dan-
gerous drug. Walters also reported his girlfriend as missing after she started ghosting him and
so that changed the team’s theory. They now believe that Noelani was a spy. She started dating a
Navy pilot with top-secret clearance and right as they were getting serious that’s when she chose
to ghost him. Almost as if she got everything she needed.

Then Walters went looking for her. Noelani’s friends who were also a part of the spy ring
probably killed her to hide what they knew and how they knew it. They also took care of Walters
because he was poking around. The team now knew what happened. They went looking for the
ring and they also this espionage ring wasn’t done targeting Navy officials. It turns out Walters
only knew a part of the project. He wasn’t given the full information. No one on the team had
been told everything and so the ring will have to find someone else to give them the last piece of
the clue. Tennant’s team investigated every person attached to the top-secret project. They also
did a deep dive on who started a new relationship and one person stood out.

Their guy was dated a cocktail waitress named Sally. The ring was using the same method
as before by having someone be a honeypot and the team got a lead. Holman’s drugs contact
reported that a guy nicknamed the "Big Luna" had purchased an obscene of the same found in
Walters’s autopsy. The team looked into it. They couldn’t find a Big Luna or anyone who went
by that pseudonym. They did track down this Sally, though. They came close to finding who was
behind the ring as well when the team was led on a merry chase and were even shot at for their
troubles. Things ended with their suspect in the ring dropping into the water and both Tennant
and Holman dropping in right after him. They found Big Luna.

They also found his stash. They found evidence of Walters’s murder and Noelani’s murders.
Then there was Sally. Sally tried to pretend to be a victim until they revealed their deep back-
ground to her and so that’s when she came clean. Sally told them how China was behind every-
thing.
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Boom

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday September 27, 2021
Writer: Jan Nash & Christopher Silber
Director: Larry Teng
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Navy Captain Joe Milius), Moses Goods (Wally Holman),
Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom Boom’ Gates), Fiona Rene (Melissa Gar-
land), Chris McGarry (Hugh Lowry), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant),
Marcus Hanson (Karl Pike), Romualdo Castillo (William Strafford),
Kimo Kaona (Eli Kealoha / Assistant Bank Manager), Remi Bakkar
(Heist Man 3 / 3rd Crew Member), Scott M. Schewe (HPD Officer D.
Nunes)

Production Code: HAW102
Summary: Tennant and NCIS must take down a notorious team of international

thieves using WWII explosives on armored trucks before they complete
their final big job and disappear. Lucy and Whistler have a standoff
about their previous encounter; and Ernie’s mission in the field is
more alarming than he expected.

An armored trunk was hit. It was car-
rying a half-million dollars and it be-
longed to the Thailand government. The
same government that was demanding
their money back. The armored trunk
had been hit with a bomb and robbed.
The money was gone. The heist crew
killed one of the guards and forced the
other to open the back door. The money
they had taken was probably being split
up among the thieves while the feds in-
vestigated the situation. But Captain Mil-
lus came by NCIS. He wanted Tennant

and her team to take over the investigation and he told her he wanted things resolved before
Thailand could make an official complaint. Millus didn’t want the bad publicity if this got out.

Tennant’s team took over. They investigated what happened with the heist and it was revealed
that the emergency system to call for mayday was turned off. The team was trying to figure out
how that happened when their expert on the matter revealed it couldn’t have been damaged by
the bomb. It had to be turned off manually and the chief suspect is the sole survivor of the
incident. Melissa was her name. She was questioned several times and it wasn’t until the team
found evidence of her lying that she finally remembered something at the last second. She said
they stopped for a pee break. Her partner supposedly had a bad prostate and yet he couldn’t say
what happened because he was killed.

One guard was murdered while the other was allowed to live. It cast doubt on the survivor
and suspicion never came off her even as the heist crew hit another building. The heist crew
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was bold. They were practically brazen in their actions and Special Agent Boone should know
because he worked with the robbery squad for several years. He said heist crews were a different
beast compared to regular bank robbers. They were highly skilled and dangerous what with their
explosives. The explosives found at the scene matched some WWII explosives that were on a
little island off the big island and being housed by the government. The government is trying to
remove the weapons bit by bit. But it seems someone found out about the weapons cache still
being there.

Aerial cameras found a boat visiting the island for four hours. They got a photo of the boat and
the boat was high-powered as in it could make several trips back and forth without stopping.
The stop on the island of explosives was therefore intentional. Later, Melissa was clear of any
wrongdoing. It had been her partner that was dirty. Carl pretended to use the bathroom while
he dismantled the security system and so that’s why the crew killed him and not Melissa. The
crew was probably covering their tracks. Carl had been drowning in debt and so that explains
why he agreed to assist in the heist but he was killed for his troubles and Melissa was eventually
released from federal custody.

Special Agent Tara assisted Melissa in her release. Which in turn made Melissa grateful be-
cause she has a little boy waiting at home for her and so Melissa told Tara everything she knew.
Including Carl’s other "breaks". The team was following a lead when they walked in on a bank
robbery. Hugh Lowry had been convinced to rob the bank by members of the heist and according
to their plan, Lowry was supposed to make it to the bank alive and get into the van. There was
just one problem with this. There was no van. Lowry was strapped with a bomb that was meant
to kill him once he stopped serving as a distraction and in the meantime, the real crew members
were off stealing a priceless artifact.

Tennant got to talking with Lowry. She told him that he was just the diversion and that bomb
strapped to him could go off at any time. Luckily, Ernie was with her. He was their tech guy and
he was able to determine the bomb was fake. They got it off, Lowry. They also questioned him
about his friends and he told them they asked for a plane. Tennant and her team tracked down
this plane. They surveilled the area until they saw the crew coming in. NCIS working with the
local police department was able to stop the plane from taking off and they arrested everyone
involved in the heists. They had a crisis averted. They got track of the money that was stolen and
they were able to return it to the proper authorities.

Kai meanwhile needed to work out his living situation. His landlord was raising rent because
he had a big dog and so Kai was going to house his dog in a kennel while he continues to the
apartment shop. But Tennant surprisingly was flirted by Captain Millius. He brought coffee and
he wanted to go stargazing her but she told him he could walk her to the car.
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Recruiter

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday October 04, 2021
Writer: Matt Bosack, Yalun Tu
Director: Ruben Garcia
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Dustin Nguyen (Sunny Oania), Lydia Look (Andrea Pacheco), Ben Ven-
turina (Lee Oania), Martin Martinez (Brad Pacheco), Carlin James
(Kekoa Neal), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Jason Quinn (Miles
Hayward), Marcia Lynn Anthony (Navy Officer), Anthony Means (Oa-
nia Boy #1), Luis Pereira (HPD Officer), Josh Squire (Beach Goer /
Paddleboarder)

Production Code: HAW103
Summary: Kai goes undercover with one of Hawai’i’s oldest surf gangs when a

petty officer who’s trying to help wayward kids find a new path in the
Marines is murdered.

Petty Officer First Class Miles Hayward
was murdered. Tennant and her team
were notified when the body was found
the next morning and they were quick
onto the scene. They did their research
on Hayward. He was a Navy Recruiter. He
helped troubled kids find a new outlet in
the military and he was good at his job.
His latest recruit was Kekoa Neal. Neal
was with Hayward the night he died. They
had been training together. The training
session ran long and Hayward had to or-
der Neal an Uber but otherwise, every-

thing seemed normal and so the team began their investigation with Neal. They asked him if
noticed anything off that night. He did mention that before Hayward use to train with him and
that lately, he couldn’t run the steps with him. Neal suspected his mentor might have been
injured.

Neal revealed he tried to ask Hayward about it. Hayward shut the conversation and he never
said what was going on with him. Neal now wishes he would have pushed. But his recount had
the team look again at the body and an autopsy showed that Hayward had been worked over.
He had gotten beaten up. It had not long before he died and so the suspect in his murder was
naturally whoever beat him up. The scene analysis showed that whoever killed Hayward had
done so from afar. They didn’t care about his car, his wallet, or his phone. They killed him just
kill him and it was now up to NCIS to figure out why. They got a warrant for Hayward’s house.
They found his house very orderly and there was a secret compartment.

The compartment held a gun. The team ran it and they found out it had been used in gang
violence lately. The violence led the team to the Oceania Boys. They were a surf gang. They
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weren’t like the typical surf gang that thought the water was the most important thing and that
they had to protect their beaches from outsiders. This was a gang that was purely about violence.
Kai figured out how to infiltrate the group and he did so. The other members of the team went
on to do some deep diving on the member so the gang. They found Brad Pacheco and it turns
out he had been one of Hayward’s recruits. He crashed out of the course because he lied about
his record on the form and for some reason, Hayward didn’t give up on him.

Hayward still tried to look out for Pacheco. He believed in him and the team had a reason to
believe it was Pacheco who gave Hayward the gun. The same gun was used in a recent shooting.
Pacheco probably got in over his head with the gang and he turned to Hayward as a friend and
asked for his help. Or at least that’s what the team was thinking. They went looking for Pacheco
and he ran from them after they identified themselves. They had to chase after him. Once they got
to him, they brought him back to their headquarters and they tried to interrogate him. Pacheco
didn’t know Hayward was dead. He also said the beatdown wasn’t his fault. The team had just
revealed that the boy’s mentor was dead in order to ask him about his whereabouts when his
mother came running in.
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Paniolo

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday October 11, 2021
Writer: Noah Evslin
Director: Larry Teng
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Moses Goods (Wally Holman), Danielle Zalopany (Hina), Lauren Cook
(Det. Dalia Reed), Kanoa Goo (Hoku Alia), T.V. Carpio (Nalani Whit-
man), Kila Packett (Kaleo Whitman), Tom Schanley (Crazy Sam), Sir
Cornwell (Micah Whitman), Duane Char (Doctor), Hanale Kaanapu
(Paniolo), Darny Chau (Nurse), Josh Squire (Wally’s Wait Staff)

Production Code: HAW104
Summary: When a beloved Paniolo (Hawaiian cowboy) is shot while out riding his

horse, Jane and her team must gain the trust of the Paniolo commu-
nity to help find the culprits and protect the Paniolo’s life. Also, Kai
tries to convince his stubborn father to see a doctor.

A man riding a horse collapsed on a busy
street. The man who was later identified
as Marine Master Sergeant Kaleo Whit-
man and he collapsed because he was
shot. The victim claimed he didn’t know
who shot him. He had been riding his
horse through a hunting area and he
thinks his shooting could have been an
accident. But NCIS checked.

The area that Whitman claimed he
was shot wasn’t a designed hunting area.
It was at least two miles away and Whit-
man wasn’t shot with a hunting rifle. He

was shot by a handgun. The marine should have known that and so why was he lying? The team
continued to dig into Whitman’s story. They proved his shooter was driving an ATV and those
things are loud. Whitman would have heard it.

Whitman would also have seen the shooter if they got close enough to him with a handgun.
The only about his story that turned out to be true was that he was shot and the rest was
fiction. Whitman was involved in something. NCIS Special Agent Tennant and her team were
investigating. They tried to go back to the hospital to interrogate Whitman when they learned he
left and so they went looking for him. They went to Alia Ranch. It was owned by a family that
took Whitman in after he started acting up as a teenager and its where Whitman learned his love
of horses. Whitman’s family were modern day cowboys. They live by a certain code and so no one
wanted to talk. Tennant’s team had to threaten one of them with arrest if they didn’t assist.

Whitman’s cousin revealed he brought clothes to the hospital for Whitman. He also gave him
a trip back to ranch where Whitman took a horse and went into the woods. Tennant soon learned
that Whitman hung around one of the stalls. She went digging in there and she found a kid’s
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backpack with three pounds of meth in it. The meth was pure. It also suggested that Whitman
was involved in the drug trade and suspicions didn’t fall onto his son until they learned the boy
wasn’t at school. He wasn’t at home either. Lucy and Kai went to Whitman’s home. They spoke
with his wife and she said she didn’t know where her husband or her son was. The agents were
able to talk their way inside. They started asking her questions when she tipped off Lucy.

There was someone in the house other than them. This person attacked Lucy and Kai was
forced into shooting and killing him. The two agents rescued Whitman’s wife. She said that her
son got in over his head with a gang and that Whitman was trying to sort it out for him when he
got shot.

Whitman stashed their son somewhere safe. Whitman went to him after he left the hospital
and his wife doesn’t know where they are. She was left in the dark. The team went back to
the ranch. They started asking the cousin and the cousin revealed that the teenager Micah had
joined a gang in a fit of rebellion. Then he had been given a backpack with meth. Micah was just
a kid and he was scared. He tried backing out of the gang. But there was no way for him and so
he turned to his dad for help and his father was almost killed because of it.

The cousin knew where Whitman stashed his son. They needed to get there by horse and so
he took Tennant and Jesse out on horseback to get there. They later found Whitman and his son
Micah. Micah was unscathed but Whitman was too weak to sit a horse by himself. He had to ride
with his cousin. The team assured the family that they would help Micah and see to it that he
doesn’t see the inside of a jail cell.

They were on their way back when the gang found them. Several armed men on ATVs were
driving up on them and so Tennant ordered Whitman to leave with his family. She and her agent
were going to handle the rest of the gang. The rest of the team however had traced the drugs back
to a specific gang and they tried to go in arresting everyone and they only ended up arresting
four people.

The other members of the gang were out there hunting down the Whitmans. They ended up
finding Tennant. Tennant got off her horse to talk to them. She managed to buy enough time to
convince certain members not to kill a federal agent and eventually help arrived. The gang was
arrested. Micah just needed to testify against them and then he could go back to being a happy
kid. His father Whitman received proper medical attention. The family was later reunited at the
hospital. They were all relieved to hear that Micah wouldn’t be facing jail time and that the case
was finally closed. The Whitmans will heal.

Jesse got to learn what its like to be a cowboy and later Kai convinced his father to start
seeing his doctor again.
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Gaijin

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday October 18, 2021
Writer: Ron McGee
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Captain Joseph Milius), Madeline Zima (Abby Nelson),
Seana Kofoed (Commander Chase), Sonny Saito (Commander Tanaka),
Toshiji Takeshima (Inspector Kento Mori), Eriko Okada (Japanese
Woman), Wesley Busser (Examiner), Grant Udagawa (Japanese
Singing Sailor #1), Saxon Sawai (Akio Miyake), Wayne Chi (Japanese
Singing Sailor #2), Ryan Nishi (Japanese Singing Sailor #3)

Production Code: HAW105
Summary: A Japanese sailor is killed and evidence links the case to the murder

of the victim’s girlfriend back in Japan, NCIS must find the murderer
before the wrong person is accused and the case triggers a diplomatic
crisis.

A visiting Japanese soldier was murdered
on the island. The victim’s name is ISSO
(Petty Officer) Shogo Oda and he was
visiting because a joint training exercise
with American Naval Intelligence called
"Operation Iron Cloud". This wasn’t the
first murder attached to Operation Iron
Cloud. The victim’s girlfriend Yuki Sawa
had been murdered a while ago in Japan
and everyone believes the two deaths are
connected. Shogo’s death was given to
Special Agent in Charge Tennant to in-
vestigate.

She was made aware of the girlfriend Yuki’s death and her people looked into it. The chief
suspect in Yuki’s death had been her American roommate. Abby Nelson was an American working
with the Japanese and local police as well local media had all painted her as the villain. They
tried to arrest her but somehow she was put on a flight back to the United States and she’s
evaded all calls to return to Japan.

Nelson also happens to be on the island. She had heard about Shogo’s death on the news and
she happily marched herself down to Tennant’s office to answer questions. Nelson still claims
her innocence. She said she never killed Yuki. She also said she was sleeping during Shogo’s
murder and the team couldn’t disprove it. Nelson lived alone. She had no reason to make sure
she had an alibi. Nelson also agreed to do a lie detector test.

Her answers all sounded well-coached and Jesse doesn’t believe her. The team also found
evidence that Nelson lied. She said she hadn’t seen Shogo in a year and they found evidence
that she met with him the day he died. They confronted Nelson as she was doing the lie detector.
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Tennant realized that Nelson’s heart rate doesn’t change whether she’s telling the truth or telling
a lie.

Nelson is superficially charming. She also believed Shogo was in love with her and she doesn’t
care or empathize with anyone else. Tennant believes Nelson is a psychopath. She can get angry.
She snaps at everyone and she doesn’t care who she hurts but she doesn’t care about anyone
besides herself. Tennant tried to speak with Nelson after the polygraph and Nelson wasn’t having
it. Nelson refuses to answer any questions.

She also got up and left the moment she confirmed she wasn’t under arrest. Nelson didn’t
act anyone like innocent. Its why a Japanese detective was in town and he was looking into her.
Inspector Kento Mori wanted to prove Nelson killed Yuki. He made a promise to Yuki’s family and
he wanted to uphold it. He was looking for evidence without clearing it past the local police or
NCIS.

Captain Milius didn’t want Mori anywhere near this case. He and his superiors were leaning
on Tennant do everything by the book and they were trying to do so. Only they did ask Mori why
he was so sure Nelson killed Yuki. Mori gave Jesse the diary they found. He and his team had
withheld it from the media. It was Nelson’s diary and in it she wrote about Yuki. She only wrote
about Yuki. She wrote what Yuki did, ate, wore, and what she even watched on tv. Mori believes
this was evidence of Nelson being jealous of Yuki. Tennant’s team on the other hand found
evidence that Nelson was studying Yuki because she was trying to figure out how to appear more
normal and other than that the two women got along just fine. Nelson had no reason to kill Yuki.
She was copying her in order to fit in and that would end with her dead.

The team therefore considered another possibility. What if Nelson is actually innocent? The
Japanese police department had been quick to blame Nelson because she hadn’t reacted well to
finding her roommate dead and she went on to have breakfast before calling the cops but what if
she was innocent? This meant there was another suspect out there and so the team checked the
evidence they found. They were told by Nelson that Yuki was seeing another man. One besides
Shogo. No one had believed Nelson at first because they all thought she was the killer and so now
they were seriously considering what she said. Tennant asked Mori to join the investigation. He
and her team determined that Shogo was traveling with a medal that belonged to Nisa (Admiral)
Tanaka.

Tanaka was in charge of the joint task force. The medal was found at Yuki’s apartment and
her family had apparently returned it to Shogo because they thought it belonged to Shogo. It
was only when Shogo saw the medal that he realized that Nelson was telling the truth. Yuki was
seeing someone else. Shogo brought the medal with him when he spoke to Nelson and he told
her that he didn’t believe she killed Yuki. Tennant turned to Nelson for help. They asked her to
help them capture Tanaka and she agreed to do it because Yuki was the only friend she ever
had. Nelson later wore a wire. She got Tanaka to confess to both Yuki and Shogo’s murders. And
Tanaka was arrested for both murders.

Nelson’s name was cleared. The victims are getting justice. Also, Tennant was asked out on
a date by Milius and she almost said yes. The only reason she turned him down is because she
didn’t think the optics would look good. She’s the first female SAC on the island. She couldn’t
risk her career or any future promotions by getting involved with a superior officer. It would make
believe she can only get ahead by sleeping with someone in power.
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The Tourist

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday November 01, 2021
Writer: Amy Rutberg
Director: Yangzom Braun
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Chloe Lanier (Kayla Barlow), Titus Makin Jr. (Lt. Adam Barlow), Julie
White (Maggie Shaw), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Ashley Doris
(Tour Guide), Ivana Grahovac (Euro Tourist Woman), Efka Kvaraciejus
(Euro Tourist Man), Geronimo Son (John Casings), Darny Chau (VIP
Date)

Production Code: HAW106
Summary: The wife of a naval weapons Officer disappears, apparently someone

took her, the team investigates .and they Find the man who took her,
dead. She left the vicinity around the time the man. Was killed. And
she stays hidden. They look into her background and Whistler tells
them to back off. Tenante relents and with the info they have, she
deduces the Eman works for the CIA. They Find her but her husband
gets taken. And they need to Try and Help everyone but Whistler wants
to take her but to save her husband they need her.

NCIS was called in for an abduction. Navy
Lieutenant Adam Parish was enjoying his
honeymoon with his new wife Kayla Bar-
low when she disappeared into a crowd
and he later spotted her being driven
away. Parrish reported it as an abduc-
tion. He said no way would his wife leave
with a stranger. They weren’t fighting and
that they had been enjoying themselves
by making a video.

Parrish was recording a video of his
wife dancing when she disappeared into
the crowd. Parrish believes his new wife

was kidnapped and unfortunately he didn’t have much information on the person who took her.
he could that it was a man. He also got footage of the car as it was driving away because he was
still recording and so he searched for it signs. And he handed it over to Tennant’s team in the
hopes that they might find something.

Kayla was a social media influencer. She traveled the world and made videos on meeting
people and learning about their culture. Her new husband is her complete opposite. Parrish
spends months on a submarine as a weapons officer. He’s in charge of missiles and torpedoes.
Tennant and her team thought that maybe Kayla was taken as a way to get to Parrish but they
found the man that drove away with Kayla and he was killed.

He had been beaten to death. The team thought that Kayla fought off the guy and if that was
the case then why didn’t she come forward right after it happened? There was security footage
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showing Kayla leaving the late John Casings’s body. The also checked the footage of the party
and Kayla left with Casings.

The abductor in this case became the victim. The team looked into Casings and he seemed
like a normal guy who just happens to be in the same country as Kayla for the last year. Casings
also has been sending her messages on Instagram using secret code. Tennant’s aunt was on the
island visiting and she was former CIA. She suspected the code could mean something more.

Tennant followed it up and sure enough Kayla wasn’t a real social media influencer. Casings
had bought out ninety-five percent of her follows. She only had twenty thousand real followers.
She was secretly using the international travelling as an excuse for something and no sooner did
they suspect CIA that DIA Special Agent Whistler came in to shut down their investigation.

Washington DC called. They didn’t want the team looking into Kayla and so Tennant was told
to drop it but she couldn’t. She had her team meet with her in secret. Together they searched
social media and they found a post from Kayla to her husband. She asked him to meet her at the
dolphins sea park. The team went there. They found Kayla and they got her to turn herself over
to them but someone ambushed Kai and he lost sight of Parrish.

Parrish was escorted out of the water park by some stranger. Kai didn’t get a good look. The
only thing he saw was that Parrish was gone and he could only have been taken because her
enemies wanted is to use him to get to his wife. Kayla later admitted to being CIA. She used her
traveling background to help people around the world defect from hostile countries.

Her last job was helping a Russian oligarch’s wife get out. The Russians were looking for her
and they were operating on American soil. They killed her handler. They’re now looking for her
and that’s why they took her husband. They made Parrish called Kayla. He told her

a story about how he got away and that he needs to meet up with her where there were no
cops. Kayla agreed to it. Only she and everyone else who listened in on the call knew, it was
a trap. The team set up an operation in which they followed Kayla and had her meet with her
husband in a public place. The people passing by were all FBI Agents and so they quickly arrested
the Russian mercenaries and they freed Parrish. He was reunited with his wife. She now has to
explain to him that she wasn’t just a social media influencer. And the team didn’t get in trouble
for interfering with the case.

Tennant is former CIA. She still has plenty of connections there and she was able to safeguard
her position. She also talked to her aunt who was also CIA and her aunt had apparently dropped
enough hints with this case because she might not be as retired as Tennant believes.
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Rescuers

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday November 08, 2021
Writer: Yakira Chambers
Director: James Bamford
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Moses Goods (Wally Holman), Mark Gessner (CGIS Special Agent
Neil Pike), Ashleigh LaThrop (Navy Petty Officer Tracy Miller), Ashton
Holmes (Eddie Frazier), Jason Lee Hoy (Kyle Westbrook), Chris Moss
(Hunan Wade), Padrick Shadeck (David Andrews), Anthony J. Silva Jr.
(Akamu Lui)

Production Code: HAW107
Summary: When a Navy petty officer is murdered, Jane and the team investigate

while protecting the victim’s friend and colleague.

Navy Petty Officer Dave Andrews was
found dead near the beach. His head was
bloodied. He was hit from behind and
he wasn’t killed at the beach. There was
blood found there. He was killed else-
where and his body was dumped there.
Special Agent in Charge Tennant took on
the case.

Her team looked into Andrews. He was
a Recue Swimmer with the Navy and
he was dating another Rescue Swimmer
from the Coast Guards. His girlfriend was
Tracy Moore. She was the first black Res-

cue Swimmer in the history of the Coast Guards on the island and she was famous. Her recent
rescue of someone went viral. Moore hasn’t been the same since then and she took time off work.
The team bumped into her as she was about to go into her house.

Moore went camping. Or so she claimed. She said she turned off her cell phone and so she
was just getting back but here’s the odd thing. She heard music coming from inside of her house.
She didn’t leave any music on when she left and so Kai and Tara went into her house with their
gun unholstered only to find the house full with teddy bears.

Pink teddy bears. There was a radio playing a creepy love song and that plus the blood
indicated that Andrews was killed there. But what the team couldn’t figure out was why. Moore
said she and Andrews didn’t have any problems. He would therefore know she would go camping
and so why he would go to her house. Or fill it with pink teddy bears. The teddy bears were a
little bit much.

Moore wasn’t really in a state to be questioned. She was in shock when they broke the news
about her boyfriend’s death and still the team suspected she was holding something back. They
looked into her. They found out that she had no digital footprint from eighteen to twenty-five.
She joined the Coast Guards at 18. There was just one photo of her before then on social media.
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She was a in a group with a couple of guys and so Kai was the one sent in to question Moore.
He met her at swimming center. She trains there everyday and Kai used the chance to get her
to open up. It turns out Moore has a past. She was sorta forced into a relationship with a man
named Eddie Foreman and Foreman also forced her into being a lookout while he robbed.

His last job went too far, however. He set fire to a building he robbed and he killed a couple
in the apartment above and so he was sent to juvenile detention center. Moore believes he killed
her boyfriend and she might be right. Foreman was released from prison on early parole.

He was also on the island and that couldn’t be a coincidence. Foreman was brought in for
questioning. They asked him about why he chose to visit the island now and what he was doing
during the time of death for Andrews. He claims to have been sightseeing. Foreman has been
through this before and he didn’t want to reveal anything. He wasn’t talking but Moore was.
Moore believed the teddy bears from Foreman.

Moore mentioned an incident back when she was dating Foreman. They were at a carnival
and he wanted to win her a teddy bear. He kept trying until he ran out of money. Only he never
did win the bear. Foreman then got upset. He called the game rigged and beat the operator within
an inch of his life. Moore was a charismatic man who preyed on the vulnerable and young. Moore
wasn’t his only victim.

He enlisted several others and he mostly had them do the dirty work. It was one guy he served
time with that he hired to kill Moore. Foreman’s man was caught and killed before he could hurt
Moore. But the team still didn’t have direct evidence against Foreman. They had someone follow
him while they gave Moore protective detail.

Tara was on Moore. She was with her when Foreman showed up with a gun and attempted to
kill his ex-girlfriend. Tara and a member of the Coast Guard were able to step in. They stopped
Foreman from killing his victim and they were later able to arrest him. Foreman is going to
prison for the rest of his life, but Moore was now safe. She could start again. Tara meanwhile
was rekindling an old romance with Whistler and they were going to keep things secret for a
while because Whistler has a few things to work out.

Later, Kai invited Jesse to his father’s restaurant and Jesse got to pass his congratulations for
the older man’s latest test results. He was doing better and he was finally getting to meet Kai’s
friends.
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Legacy

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday November 29, 2021
Writer: Yalun Tu
Director: Lisa Demaine
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Captain Joe Milius), Seana Kofoed (Medical Exam-
iner Chase), Rob Benedict (Damian Davenport), Patrick Cage (Mike
Williams), Jenna Leigh Green (Morgan Davenport), Jordan Belfi (Alan
Shipley), Jason Manuel Olazabal (Jake Tillman), Kordell Kekoa (Kahu),
Keoni Maiwela (Local #1), Pualani Avaeoru (Local #2), Tumua Tuinei
(Wilbert Kalili)

Production Code: HAW108
Summary: When an anti-capitalist protestor is murdered, Jane and the team in-

vestigate and find themselves caught in a war between eco-activists
and a tech billionaire fighting over a piece of land. Also, Jane and
Captain Joe go on a date.

Special Agent in Charge Tennant was
called in for a Jane Doe. The victim was
called Jane Doe because she had no
identification on her and her fingerprints
couldn’t be read. However, Tennant and
her team were lucky in one sense. They
found someone who recognized the vic-
tim. The victim was later identified as
Kathy Laster and she’s a protestor. She
was protesting Hawaiian land being occu-
pied by the military. She was a part of a
group of eco-activists called World Works
and they wanted to return the land back

to the Hawaiian people. It was a bit of an uphill battle because no one took the group seriously
until they started throwing Molotov cocktails and even then they had a hard time not getting
arrested. And so Kathy went to Hawaii to help protest against a tech billionaire buying up re-
served/sacred land.

Kathy protested in front of the billionaire’s house. The billionaire was Damien Davenport. It
seems Kathy was out of his house everyday for a month and yet the billionaire didn’t recognize
her and neither did his security team. Speaking of which, both parties tried to put the blame
for Kathy’s murder on World Works. Davenport and his security team claimed the activists were
extremists. They said the group was the real danger and that turned out to be funny because the
team later found the head of the security beating someone tied to a chair. Tillman said the guy
fell when he broke onto the property. He also said he was wearing gloves to protect himself from
the guy he claims just fell and was in fact bleeding. And Tillman just happened to know the man
he was "interrogating" was friends with Kathy.
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The team collected the friend. They asked him questions and he said he didn’t hurt Kathy.
He thinks the rich guy and his team killed Kathy. Kathy was all set to protest when suddenly
she stopped. Which is odd because she was also paid to protest. Kathy was hired by Davenport’s
wife to come to Hawaii. The team tried questioning Morgan Davenport and she wasn’t talking.
She was followed by her lawyer everywhere she went. Her public persona was that of a charitable
person because she gives millions away. But Morgan hired a woman to come out to the island
and protest against her husband. She was paid before she even came to the island and so why did
she stop? The team has a theory. They suspect that Morgan hired Kathy to seduce her husband.

Morgan and her husband were separated. She was shown meeting up with a divorce attorney
and so everyone thought Morgan hired this woman in order to get a bigger settlement in the
divorce. What Morgan didn’t count on was that Kathy would just stop. The team got a hold
of paparazzi photos and they found out that Davenport was a serial cheater. The team asked
Morgan to come in. They questioned her in front of her lawyer and her lawyer made sure to
remind Morgan that Davenport still wants to hold onto his secrets. But the team kept digging.
They found out that Kathy was Davenport’s daughter. A secret child that Davenport has kept
hidden. At his first company, he got too close to one of the women he works with and so she left
the company and had Kathy six months later.

Kathy is Davenport’s child. But he doesn’t care. Davenport paid off the mother to keep him
out of it and he hadn’t wanted to jeopardize his marriage because there was some overlapping
with both Morgan and Kathy’s mother. The mother couldn’t prove Kathy was his without a DNA
test. Morgan provided that DNA test. She really did want to screw over her husband and she was
going to use the secret child to get out of her marriage, but then Kathy was killed and no one
knows why. Davenport was the biggest suspect. Everyone believed he killed his own daughter.
Even Kathy’s friend Mike also assumed her father was the killer and the team came to suspect
that he was planning something against Davenport. The team went to Davenport’s home. They
were witness to an explosion and there they learned that Mike had taken both Davenport and
his wife hostage.

Mike wanted Davenport to confess. Davenport refused to because he said he didn’t kill Kathy
and then his security team came in and Tillman shot Mike. Tennant and her team made sure
that Mike was going to the hospital. But they found their killer. The killer was Tillman. Tillman
has been guarding Davenport’s secrets for years and he tried to bribe Kathy to leave and she
refused. And so that’s when he killed her.

Davenport tried to get ahead of the story. He asked for sympathy and compassion as he lost
a child. He’s also going through a divorce and odds are he’ll be ousted from the company soon.

Tennant meanwhile went on a date with Millius and it went really well, but now he’s being
promoted to the Pentagon and so this will be the last they see of each other in a while.
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Impostor

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday December 06, 2021
Writer: Matt Bosack
Director: Loren Yaconelli
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Seana Kofoed (Carla Chase), Ken Takemoto (Ken Ito), Jeanne Sakata
(Vicky Ito), Daisuke Tsuji (LCDR Mike Ito), Andy Cohen (Ryan Barnett),
Jonathan Tanigaki (Nazo / Suzuki), Chris Naoki Lee (Young Ito), Julie
White (Maggie Shaw), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Edem Atsu-
Swanzy (Master of Ceremony), Alex Denney (American Soldier), Nick
Masciangelo (Parrot-Head), Keane Ishii (Impatient Soldier), Chris Kim
(Sick Soldier)

Production Code: HAW109
Summary: The NCIS team investigates a cold case involving WWII-era bones on

the 80th anniversary of the Pearl Harbor bombings, and are shocked
to learn they belong to a 100-year-old survivor of the attack.

The remains of a dead sailor was found
hidden in a cave. He was found by a
beachcomber who was using a metal de-
tector to find treasure and unfortunately
he came across the body instead. The
body has been dead for years. There was
no identification on the body. The uni-
form was from over seventy years ago
and the fact the victim was wearing black
shoes with the Navy civilian uniform
meant the body could be seventy-one to
eighty-three years old. Lucy went down a
military rabbit hole after she found out

that Coco Chanel once created a military uniform. Lucy therefore realized that the dead body was
from World War II era. The team also submitted the victim’s DNA into a an ancestry database
and they sound found out the name of the victim. The victim is Ken Ito. The same Ito who was
both dead and surprisingly still giving speeches about surviving the Pearl Harbor Attacks.

Tennant was informed about the victim’s identity. She ran it to her bosses and they told her
in no uncertain terms that she has to find out which is the real Ken Ito. The man dead or the
man they were about to honor. The team looked into the man claiming to be Ito. He was a veteran
who served in three wars and whose own daughter went on to join the Navy. But they couldn’t
really ask Ito. He has dementia. He was a hundred years old and he couldn’t remember much. He
could remember where he served and what unit he was in. He also mentioned that he recruited
Japanese immigrants fresh to the island. Then he got confused and he didn’t know if the man he
was talking about was Ito or if he was Ito.

The man they suspect to be a fraud was of no use. He did give them the lead though about
the pineapple farm and so the team looked into it. They did find out that Ito recruited Japanese
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immigrants as civilians. Tennant went digging through the archives for photos with her aunt
when they came across a man trying to steal a file. He ran after Tennant identified herself as a
federal agent and so her aunt managed to scratch him and grab something out of his hand. It was
a photo. It was of Ito and the man claiming to be Ito. It turns out the fraudster was the Japanese
immigrant hired as a civilian. He couldn’t officially join the Navy because Japanese immigrants
were being denied that right by the US Military at the time. And so the guy felt hopeless.

He went fishing with Ito. He brought a gun and tried to kill himself. Ito tried to stop him. The
gun went off during the struggling and it killed Ito. Only the man pretending to be Ito couldn’t
remember the details. He just knows he killed Ito. Tennant had to report this to her superiors
and they removed the fraud from the guest list at the Pearl Harbor event. The team was also still
looking for his name and so they found the person who stole Ito’s file. It was home health aide.
The guy tried to blackmail the Ito family and that was enough for the team to arrest Ryan. Ryan
was later questioned about the extortion. He said it wasn’t his fault. He was just doing what was
right because Ito isn’t who he says he is.

Ito isn’t just some immigrant who killed a man to take his place in the military. He was once
a Japanese spy. He spied on the Americans and their movements and reported it back to Japan.
Then something shifted. His group was ambushed and he was the only one to survive. The man
has lived through it all and his family suspected there could be more to his story because his
dementia has him admitting to things that didn’t happen. They got a hold of Ito’s file after they
collected it from Ryan. They found out that he was a spy. The man pretending to be Ito had tried
to kill himself after the Pearl Harbor Attacks. The real Ito tried to stop. They fought over the gun
and Ito won. Ito said he’d put him out of his misery. And then a Japanese attack plane shot him
down.

Suzuki Kasatochi reported it to the authorities. They realized they could him and so they
officially made Ito. Ito was an only sibling and orphan. He didn’t have any family to come and
interfere. But the Americans wanted Kasatochi to spy on the Japanese for them. They had him in-
filtrate the Japanese military and then he left Japanese soldiers right into an ambush. Kasatochi
served his country. He doesn’t have to face any charges for what he did and his family was
reassured that he was a hero.

Later, Tennant talked to her kids about the first time she was asked where she comes from
and she told them that she was made to feel different to the point where she used to deny
knowing anything about her mother’s family. And so she’s thankful her kids don’t have to worry
about this in Hawaii.
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Lost

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday January 03, 2022
Writer: Jan Nash
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Anthony Ruivivar (Daniel Tennant), Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom
Boom’ Gates), Christopher Redman (Clark Lohan), Kim Hawthorne (Dr.
Laura Frost), Michael Broderick (Dr. Andrew Wilson), Nathaniel Ash-
ton (Tommy Wilson), Ticondra Swartz (Agent Reyes)

Production Code: HAW110
Summary: NCIS crosses paths with Whistler’s team while investigating a ship-

ping container filled with contraband weapons. Also, Tennant debates
arresting Alex’s friend’s dad, knowing it will cause his friend to move
away

The murder of Russell Goodrick was a
naval concern because someone killed
him to get to a shipment on the docks.
The shipment contained spare parts for
navy machine guns and so the local po-
lice called NCIS once they realized these
items were in fact. They were taken in a
robbery. A robbery that Goodrick seems
to have disturbed. Hence he was killed
and the team were now were investigating
the murder of a civilian. Their first con-
cern was finding the missing items. They
used their tech guy to locate some of the

shipments and it led back to a joint federal task force. The Coast Guard, the FBI, and DHS were
all over this. They were looking for the missing items as well because of the threat to national
security.

NCIS was brought into the overall investigation. They had to deal with Whistler and her team.
They also had to work together. They needed to find the items before they could be sold as
contraband weapons and while they were assisting with the larger investigation — Tennant was
dealing with a personal matter. Her son came to her concerned. He told her that he’s worried
about his best friend and how he hasn’t seen him in days. Tennant was close to the boy’s mother
because they were friends but they haven’t talked much since the divorce and after the other
woman moved to Arizona for a job.

Tennant tried contacting the boy’s father. He wasn’t answering any of her calls. She stopped
by the house and saw it was in disarray. She also noticed that the son was doing his best to hide
what’s going on, but that only made Tennant even more concerned and so she looked into the
boy’s father. She went to the hospital were he works. She found out he had gotten fired months
ago over missing fentanyl and a negative drug test. Its clear the man has a drug addiction. He
was a danger to himself and his son. And his son’s childhood was being taken away from him.
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Tennant spoke to the father. She told him that he has to make things right. He has to put his
son first and work on taking care of him, but if that doesn’t happen, then Tennant knows she
has to call social services. This got back to her son. Her son was angry with her. He asked her
to help his friend and right now it doesn’t feel like she’s doing that. Tennant’s conversation with
her son aside, the rest of the team were in a better place. She tracked down a lead after finding
two severed fingers in the back of a suspect’s car and so from there they were able to track down
who the fingers belonged to.

But that was a red herring. The supposed victim claimed to have been captured to put together
weapons and the team later realized he was the mastermind beyond the heist once his story
stopped panning out. The team went looking for him once they realized the truth but by then
their suspect was gone and so it’s a good thing they figured out why they needed the parts. It
turns out that a couple of months ago that the schematics to a new weapon went missing from
a lab. Everyone assumed that the plans went missing during a clerical error and now they’ve
learned that those plans had been stolen.

The stolen plans along with a prototype proving its worth was worth millions. The team now
knew they were looking for and so tracking him down to an arms deal was no problem. The team
was able to witness the deal go down. They then arrested every party involved. It just didn’t help
Tennant with her kid. Her son was angry at her. He lashed out and so she talked to her ex. She
told him that their son needed him now more than ever and her ex-husband was kind enough to
say their son wouldn’t have gone to her in the first place if he didn’t think she could handle it.

And her ex was right. Tennant later spoke with her son and her son told her how worried he
is for his friend because he doesn’t think his friend’s father was in a good place.
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The Game

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Monday January 17, 2022
Writer: Noah Evslin, Amy Rutberg
Director: James Hayman
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Lauren Cook (Det. Dalia Reed), Bruce Altman (Ike Diamond), Scott
Lawrence (Judge Malcolm Keen), Nick Gracer (Trey Santos), Juliana
Folk (Cara), Omar Bustamante (Detective Roy Burr), Mike Cabrera
(Stanley Zhao), Justin Scott (Bad Beat Rick), Herman Stern (Maury
Chauvin), Tanoai Reed (Bodyguard #1), David Anthony Buglione
(Bodyguard #2)

Production Code: HAW111
Summary: Evidence to put away a drug kingpin is stolen, Lucy goes undercover

at an underground poker tournament to find out which high-roller is
behind the crime. Lucy’s feelings are in turmoil when Whistler’s ex-
girlfriend arrives in town.

Lucy’s relationship with Whistler is going
well. They were dating. They were able to
enjoy coffee with each other and not have
to worry about what it means. Lucy do-
ing just that when work intervened. NCIS
was asked to assist HPD with an inter-
nal matter. They were investigating HPD
Detective Roy Burr. He was a veteran of
fifteen years in the Narcotics squad.

He recently helped in a joint task force
to take down a man named Santos and
Santos was a notorious drug dealer. He
was also once a criminal informant. San-

tos would snitch on rival drug dealers and then absorb their territory quality so that no one
would get suspicious and it worked for a while. Up until the joint task force. The Navy agreed to
process the drugs in the bust while the police department was supposed to hold onto the rest of
the evidence.

Somehow that evidence was recently wiped clean. It was all erased off of hard drives and
HPD suspected Burr’s involvement. It was Burr who turned Santos into an informant. Those two
worked together for years. Burr was suspected in helping Santos escape the charges because
without that evidence the District Attorney refused to press charges. Which NCIS wasn’t happy
about. They did all that work and now it was for nothing. They wanted another way to take down
both Santos and whoever helped him so they looked into Burr. They were quietly following him
as he entered a Chinese market that turned out to be a front for an underground casino.

Kai watched as Burr got into an argument with someone at the casino. He then looked at his
phone and he went outside. He was outside for little more than a minute when a drive-by shooter
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took him out. Everyone suspected Santos was involved. They found out that Burr received a text
message from a burner phone telling him to come outside and so he was lured to his death. It
had to be Santos. Santos was the only one who would want Burr dead now that he’s no longer
going to prison and Burr’s usefulness has been worn out. But Burr’s death also gave them an
opening. Burr was a member of a select poker game and his spot will need to be filled now that
he’s dead.

The team needed a poker player. Lucy stepped up. She was a great poker player and, while
she’s never played an in-person game or with cash, she was still a great player. She was also
as close as they could get in a hurry. They gave her backstory. They claimed she was a trust
fund kid from Texas. They gave her the ten thousand she needed to buy into the game. The rest
was up to Lucy. Lucy managed to win over some of the other players. It didn’t hurt that she was
dressed up to the nines as a Texas Cinderella. Lucy looked great and she was super focused on
the job because she didn’t want to remember walking on Whistler and Whistler’s girlfriend from
DC.

Lucy wanted to instead focus on work. But she was off her game. Lucy played the ditzy
southern belle to perfection at first and then she started to win the games. She was only winning
because she needed to be by Santos’s side long enough to clone his cell phone. The plan was
working when Lucy went to the bathroom to check on the cloner device and felt a gun pressed to
the back of her head. Santos became suspicious after she started winning. He suspected that she
was a cop and her plan was to fob him off with an excuse, but then another poker player walked
in and interrupted them. Lucy knocked out Santos. She ran off with a judge who saved her life
by interrupting them and they were making a run for it with Santos’s people not far behind.

Lucy hadn’t been allowed to bring in her cell phone for the poker game. The team was alerted
to the problem when they failed to notice neither her nor the judge returning to the poker table
and so they went after them. But they didn’t need to worry about Lucy. She was able to take out
Santos all on her own and unfortunately that’s the moment that the judge pulled his weapon. It
seems that everyone involved in the poker game has washed each other’s hands. And Lucy would
have ben in trouble if her team hadn’t chosen that precise moment to come to the rescue.

Lucy was saved and she was told about the great job she did, but none of that seemed to
matter as long as her girlfriend was seeing another woman.
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Spies, Part 1

Season 1
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Sunday January 23, 2022
Writer: Yakira Chambers, Ron McGee
Director: LeVar Burton
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Beulah Koale (David Sola), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase),
Erica Wong (Myra), Danielle Zalopany (Hina), Danny Kang (Alan Liu),
April Parker Jones (Valerie Dalies), Julie White (Maggie Shaw), Mahina
Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Allan Tam (Owner), Christian Yeung (Lt.
Commander Joseph Cheng)

Production Code: HAW112
Summary: When NCIS investigates the mysterious death of a Navy engineer,

Joseph Chan, they learn the last person he met with was his colleague,
Maggie Shaw, Jane’s mentor and friend, who’s been kidnapped. Also,
David Sola, a New Zealand intelligence service case officer arrives in
Hawai’i, following a lead in his case that connects Joseph’s death to a
Chinese black op secret agent.

Naval Lt Commander Joseph Cheng was
found dead from what appeared to be a
poisoning. He was an engineer. He was
working on a classified project for the
Navy when he died at his desk and all
signs pointed to espionage. The toxin he
was killed with was Thallium. It was the
KGB used on defectors back in the day
and Saddam Hussein even liked it as
well. The drug was hard to come by the
United States.

It has to be brought into the coun-
try for a purpose and it can be primarily

found in rat poison that Russia and China still currently use. Therefore, espionage was a safe
bet. Tennant and her team later learned that Cheng was working on a top secret mission with
satellites. And so someone could have poisoned him in a bid to get the project moved elsewhere.

Perhaps to a friendly spy. Russia or China could be behind Cheng’s death. It was up to
Tennant’s team to investigate. They couldn’t get any specifics on whatever his project was and so
they went digging into people around him. They retraced his steps. They found out that he was
meeting up with Tennant’s aunt Maggie a day before he died. Tennant went to her aunt and she
brought up Cheng. She also asked her aunt about what went down. Maggie considered Cheng a
friend. She was hurt to find out about his murder. She said that Cheng came to her because a
family member’s life was threatened if he didn’t spill information about his project.

According to Maggie, Cheng was going to go to NCIS. He was going to report the threat with
his bosses and neither he nor Maggie ever thought he was in danger. They proved to be wrong.
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Cheng is now dead. There’s no telling if he helped the Chinese in exchange for his cousin’s life.
Cheng immigrated to the United States when he was eight years old and he became a citizen
at sixteen. He finished the top at Naval Academy. He was smart, he was a driven, and he was
a patriot. But he left behind family in China. Family he was worried about and that’s how the
Chinese MSS targeted him. They threatened his family.

Cheng was going to report everything to the proper authorities on the day he died. Its likely
that the Chinese found out about it and murdered him before he could talk. Tennant needed
information on what this mission was. She turned to Whistler for information. She also connected
with David Sola. He was a New Zealander. He was a part of his country’s secret service and he
was also after a leak that occurred with his own country’s satellites. But Sola has contacts in
China. It’s the same contacts that can get out Myra Tan’s sister and so that convinced her to
talk. She started telling them about a dark moon project.

Myra Tan was a Chinese spy that was arrested for trying to kill an American pilot. She’s been
in custody for months and so talking now is her path to freedom. If not for herself, for her sister.
The Dark Moon project was a plan to use Chinese’s nationals family members against them. They
tried to do it to Cheng. It didn’t work. His cousin is most likely dead now. With Sola working on
Tan’s sister and her not talking until she’s guaranteed a safe place for her sister — the rest of
the team went into looking into the one credible tip they. They went looking for a man named
Bao. Bao was Chinese MSS. Bao wasn’t his name. It was just a title he’s known by.

The team went looking for this Bao. They figured he must be on the island and their worst
fears were confirmed when Tennant’s aunt Maggie went missing. She was most likely taken by
the same people that killed Cheng and so finding her trumped everything else. Even the spy game
going on. Tennant came up with a plan. She lied to Tan and made it look like the Chinese had
killed her sister. She even arranged photos of this to scare her. Tan fell for it. She confirmed that
Bao is on the island and that he’s known as Enlai Ying. The team went looking for him now that
they know his real name and they later captured Ying and freed Maggie.

But certain things weren’t adding up. Ying isn’t Bao. Tan had been surprised when she was
shown a picture of him because she didn’t think a man so low on the totem pole would take on
a mission. Tennant had her people look into Bao’s known movements. She later learned that it
lines up with all the trips or lectures that Maggie was there for and so Bao wasn’t a man. It was
a woman. And she was family.
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Spies, Part 2

Season 1
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired: Monday January 24, 2022
Writer: Christopher Silber
Director: Tessa Blake
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Beulah Koale (David Sola), Julie White (Maggie Shaw), Ardeshir Rad-
pour (Raja), Kimié Miner (Special Live Musical Performance), Evan
Khay (Special Live Musical Performance), Leon Mobley (Special Live
Musical Performance)

Production Code: HAW113
Summary: While Jane investigates Maggie’s kidnapping, she’s shocked when she

learns the truth and enlists her team and Whistler to prove her find-
ings.

Special Agent in Charge Tennant was
forced to investigate her beloved friend
Maggie. Maggie was such a huge fac-
tor in her life that Tennant’s kids called
her Aunt Maggie and Tennant introduces
her as family. However, Maggie was sus-
pected to be helping Bao. Bao was a ti-
tle belonging to a Chinese MSS opera-
tive who goes around implanting their ini-
tiatives on foreign soil and this person
has been known to kill people as well as
commits act of terrorism. Tennant felt for
sure that Maggie was working with Bao.

Its why she misidentified a member of Bao’s team for the man himself and this was evidence
enough to Tennant because they worked in the CIA together. She knows that Maggie doesn’t
make mistakes.

Tennant felt so sure that she enlisted her whole team in assisting her. They also brought
in DIA Special Agent Whistler for this secret operation and it was cleared with FBI. They were
supposed to bring down a traitor. They even got help from Sola. He stayed on the Island rather
than go back to New Zealand because he was on the hunt for Bao and he thinks Bao might
still be on the island. The best way to get to Bao was through Maggie. Tennant knew for sure
that Maggie was a spy. Maggie still has her clearance at CIA and she was smart. She very well
maintained her cover. Tennant had Maggie brought in while they searched her house.

Tennant later told Maggie that they found several pictures of the real Bao. The dead cop that
they killed couldn’t have been Bao and so Maggie played along. She knew they didn’t have her.
She also knew that the flash drive at her house was heavily encrypted. It would take the team
weeks if not months to crack. Tennant had her team follow Maggie after she left their office.
They followed her to a bakery where she ordered a cake. They followed her from there to a
busy shopping center and she handed off the bag with the cake someone. It was Bao. The team
followed this guy and they noticed that he dropped the bag.
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The cake said "run". Maggie knew they were onto her and she sent a message to Bao to get
off the island. The team chased after Bao. They almost had him at one point and Tennant was
about to shoot him when Maggie stopped her. Maggie knocked the gun out of Tennant’s hands.
This allowed Bao to get away and so Maggie was arrested. She was later interrogated. She never
revealed anything about why she turned traitor. It wasn’t until Tennant put the pieces together
that she realized why Maggie did what she did. Maggie once revealed to her that she had a son.
She gave birth during a long-term operation in China. And that her son was sick.

He had a rare blood disorder. Maggie went to a specialist to get him treatment when it turned
out to be a trap and she was arrested. She was later told that her family were killed. She was
deported back to the United States after America negotiated her release. Years later, after she met
Tennant, she told her the story about how she grieves on Mother’s Day. Tennant never forgot the
story and after they tested the blood they had of Bao they were able to determine that he suffers
from a rare blood disorder. Tennant put two and two together. She determined Bao was Maggie’s
son. And so she questioned Maggie.

Tennant made a big show of turning off the cameras when secretly she was wearing one. She
got Maggie to confess to helping Bao because he was her son and so Maggie told her the rest
of her story. After she was deported, her son was taken in by his father’s family. He was made
to grow up in shame for having traitorous parents. Bao was then told after he graduated from
college about how he could be of use to the cause. It was his job to turn Maggie. He was able to
do so easily and it didn’t hurt that Maggie purposely distanced herself from her best friend. She
told Tennant to take a stateside job. She made it out that it would be best for her family.

Tennant listened. She took the job and Maggie no longer had a trained agent who knew her
too well working with her. But why was Bao still on the island? The team knew he couldn’t be
sticking around for Maggie and that he must be on the island for something. They realized he
was connected to a data breach of a joint intelligence task force. The team later found Bao and
Maggie somehow convinced Tennant to let him go. Maggie agreed to testify to everything she ever
did for Bao. She even said she was the real Bao. Maggie used her clearance to basically spy for
China. She did all the work and her son took all the credit with his people.

Maggie was handed over to the FBI. She agreed to tell them everything believing her son got
away. Maggie doesn’t know that the New Zealander was following her son and that he was never
going to get back to China with the information he stole.

Tennant then had to break the news to her kids that their Aunt Maggie won’t be coming
around anymore.
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Broken

Season 1
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 14

Originally aired: Monday February 28, 2022
Writer: Matt Bosack, Jan Nash
Director: Norman Buckley
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Carla Chase), Patrick Fischler (Doug
Smith), Alec Mapa (Dr. Tony Lee), David Call (Joel Johnson), Laura
James (Meg), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Betty Bolton (HR Rep),
Tim Herkenhoff (Silkies), Peter Togawa (Norwood)

Production Code: HAW114
Summary: Jane Tennant faces interrogation about her friendship with a CIA

mole. Her team investigates an ultrasonic attack on a Marine team, the
only victims at a crowded beach. Whistler has a new job that brings
her into contact with Lucy again.

The episode begins with several people
being taken to the hospital for injuries
they sustained from a terrorist attack.
The people that were attacked were all
members of a Marine Special Operations
Team and they had been at the beach
when it took place, but no one else at the
beach had been affected by the weapon.
It was clear it was just an attack against
the servicemen and women. It was also
clear that an ultrasonic weapon was used
because most of those that were injured
were found bleeding from their ears. They

had needed a thorough check at the hospital and the assault on the ears was the only conclusion
that the doctors could come to. Special Agent in Charge Tennant was given this case before she
had to leave it to her team.

Tennant was brought into a hearing with the FBI regarding Maggie Shaw. Shaw had been
Tennant’s best friends and they both worked at the CIA together. Yet, Maggie failed to realize that
Maggie started feeding information to the Chinese. She failed to realize that her best friend had
become a traitor and so people now want answers for that. They want to see how much Tennant
and when she knew it. They also want to know if she had purposely given Maggie any information
on a case. Tennant knew that she was going to have to answer questions and at the same time
she didn’t realize it would involve their vacations.

Tennant was asked about her trip to Mexico with Maggie. Tennant thought it was a typical
vacation. She found out from FBI Special Agent Glen Smith who was running her interview that
a Chinese spy had a meeting in Mexico around the same time and that it could be connected
to the attack on the DDOS. An attack that could have compromised the security of the country.
Tennant hadn’t known about it because the government did their best to cover up how close the
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Chinese came to infiltrating their system and so she just found out about it in her interview. An
interview was going to take place over the course of several days.

The first day revealed the devastating information about the Mexico trip. Tennant returned
home after that interview just plain tired and she looked through the photos of that trip to see
now what she missed back then, but it was no good. All of her memories of that time were good
ones. On the second day, Tennant was asked if Maggie maintained her relationship with her in
order to get intel. Tennant said she couldn’t tell. She truly doesn’t know who her best friend is
anymore and so she has no idea if Maggie only stayed with her friend to get information. She
also had no idea how to break it to her kids that Maggie was in prison.

The whole family loved Maggie. They even referred to her as Aunt Maggie and now this. Ten-
nant was still answering questions as the rest of her team was getting details on their case. The
team had realized that it wasn’t the whole ops team that was under attack. It was just one per-
son. One person on the team had been targeted by the ultrasonic weapon and the others just got
in the way. But not to be deterred, the killer found his intended target until he could run him off
the road with the weapon and so Marine Brian Shepherd is dead. He was killed by his current
girlfriend’s ex-boyfriend.

The ex just didn’t know how to let go. He thought that the woman would come back to him and
that they could resume their engagement, but he wasn’t the one for her and he soon realized that
after he began stalking her and so her dating someone else. The ex’s name was Joel Johnson.
He began acting erratically after he realized his former fiancé wasn’t coming back to him. He got
fired from his job. He basically became a hero of the incels with his obsessive behavior towards
his ex. Joel had even boobytrapped his house for when they arrived to arrest him. It was just him
and Ernie inside of that house at one point and Ernie handled things by punching Joel before he
could kill them all in a murder-suicide ploy.

The team was able to arrest Joel. He’ll be serving time for murder on top of assault and
Tennant was able to walk away from the interview unscathed. She had been honest. Something
the FBI took note of and they came out of it respecting her more than anything else.
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Pirates

Season 1
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 15

Originally aired: Monday March 07, 2022
Writer: Yalun Tu
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Mark Gessner (CGIS Special Agent Neil Pike), Chloe Csengery (Gracie
Boone), Louise Barnes (Kaya), Presciliana Esparolini (Rebecca Hely),
Jaiden Kaine (Bandile), Nico David (Adrian Hely), Emmanuel Kabongo
(Pirate #2), Victor Lozano (Captain), Makana Say (Classmate #1), JP
Graves-Lock (Classmate #2), Malia Aiello (Classmate #3)

Production Code: HAW115
Summary: As Jesse enjoys a day sailing with his daughter, Gracie, pirates sud-

denly seize their yacht, take all the passengers hostage and attack
Jesse, leaving it up to his team to quickly locate and rescue his daugh-
ter.

A day of sailing was ruined. Jesse was en-
joying himself on a sailing trip with his
teenage daughter Gracie when they came
across pirates. The pirates used a dis-
tressing signal to board their boast using
deception and unfortunately it was too
late by the time Jesse realized something
was wrong. But Jesse kept his head.
He called Special Agent in Charge Ten-
nant with his cell phone. He also told his
daughter to tell no one they knew each
other or that he was a federal agent. Jesse
wanted to keep her safe most of all. He

also tried looking for an opening to grab a gun and he once again found himself on a backfoot
when the woman who pretended to be a hostage was in fact in charge. She pulled a gun on him.

She almost killed him, too. Jesse got tossed into the ocean as he was fighting for a gun and
the boat drove off after it tossed him. The pirates found his cell phone. They turned it off. There
was no way to track him or the boat and still, his team tried because it was him. They used a
projection of the area the boat was in before its tracer was cut. The team didn’t even know if
Jesse was alive or dead. They tried contacting his wife. She was on a hiking trip with the other
kids in Wyoming and she wasn’t answering her phone. She, therefore, missed it when a ransom
demand went out. The pirates sent ransom demands to the parents of each child on board.

They wanted a million dollars per child. Tennant and her team suspected the pirates boarded
the sailboat to get to one person in particular and that they were using the ransom demand to
throw suspicion. But they didn’t have eyes on the boat. When they later found it abandoned,
they realized that pirates must have taken the hostages on the boat they came with. This meant
the hostages and the pirates were on a boat they have no coordinates for and that the team had
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no clue had to track them down. They instead focused on the ransom demands. The demands
were pretty sample and the account attached was easy enough to crack.

But it was a little too easy. It’s like the pirates had wanted that to be tracked and so Tennant
suspected it wasn’t a real ransom demand. The ransom demand was actually a distraction. It was
to keep them busy while the real target was being moved. Tennant spoke to the parents of each
child on board. She met one mom that had acted cagey. Rebecca Hely would only see she was a
widow. She didn’t go into details about why they had to move so much and she didn’t mention
any other family. Once Tennant realized the ransom demand was a distraction, she asked her
techie to follow her hunch by checking out Rebecca. And it’s a good thing too.

Rebecca was using a fake name. She met her husband in South America and he came from
a prominent family, but her father-in-law was a domineering man who wanted her husband to
take over the family business and he doesn’t take no for an answer. Rebecca and her husband
went to extreme lengths to their son Adrian from his grandfather. Now that Rebecca’s husband
is dead, the grandfather wants his grandson. The team now realizes that the grandfather was
trying to kidnap Adrian. Everyone else was just dressing. The team went with the Coast Guard
to look for the boat and they couldn’t find it on the seas.

It was the Coat Guard’s opinion that they must have landed somewhere. They were an island
nearby and by the time the Coast Guard showed up — they were people on the beach flagging
down for help. But Gracie wasn’t with the group and neither was Adrian. The pirates took Gracie
along with them because they realized Jesse was her father and that he was still alive. They sent
a search party to look for him on the island. Jesse caught up with them. He disarmed the men
that were sent after him and he tied them up. He then went after his daughter. He later found
her with a gun to her head but Gracie was able to extract herself from that one by fighting back.

After Gracie was able to push her captor away, Jesse used that distraction to start fighting
the man. He was losing when backup finally arrived and they arrested the pirate. Their next step
was getting to Adrian. They later found him before he could be boarded onto a helicopter and so
they rescued him. They arrested the last of the pirates. They later delivered all the kids back to
their parents. And Jesse was able to get through to his wife.

Heather was never going to go hiking again or allow Jesse and their daughter a chance to go
sailing again.
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Monster

Season 1
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 16

Originally aired: Monday March 14, 2022
Writer: Ron McGee
Director: Leslie Hope
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Anthony Ruivivar (Daniel Tennant), Moses Goods (Wally Holman), Ron
Menzel (Donovan Mance), Kate Cobb (Jenny Alika), Aaron Abrams
(Chris Polis), Johnny Cannizzaro (Ryan Delucci), Corey Rieger (An-
ders), Rafael Cabrera (Watts), Andre Pelzer (Natchez), Brad Berry-
hill (Harvey Colms), David Bertin Greene (Alonzo Descanso), Danny
Hogan (Saugus), Darny Chau (Waitress), Josh Squire (Opposing Base-
ball Player)

Production Code: HAW116
Summary: Kai goes undercover as a chef in a local restaurant to gather intel on a

notorious criminal kingpin who has a connection to the eatery.

A couple of FBI Agents were murdered on
the mainland three days ago. They were
killed by known hitman by the name of
Donovan Mance. Mance was on the run
and those agents had been sent to ar-
rest him. They waited for him at one of
his known hideouts. They spotted him
and they made their move, but somehow
Mance was able to get the better of them
and he killed them both.

He then went back on the run. This
time he could be anywhere. The only
thing that the FBI knew was that he was

coming to the island. Mance had contacts in Hawaii. He was in communication with someone at
a famous eatery and unfortunately the restaurant had several phones all with the same number.
Making the idea to eliminate suspects impossible.

The only way forward was to send someone in undercover. Kai volunteered. Kai grew up
working in his father’s restaurant and so he thought he was good enough to become a chef at
this famous place. He even went to his dad’s for help. His father was making a memorial dinner
for his late mother and Kai thought it was a waste of time because he said the man didn’t care
about her health when she was sick.

If anything, his father had checked out at the worst possible time. Kai was still angry about
it after all these years and so he didn’t care for the memorial dinner. He refuses to go. His father
then asked what can he do to repair their relationship.

Kai didn’t answer him. But he did tell his dad that he needed a favor. There’s not a restaurant
on the island that didn’t have someone his father hadn’t trained and so Kai asked for a good
word to get into the restaurant he needed. His father provided that for him. Kai later got a job as
a line cook.
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He was doing real well until he stepped away from the line to investigate. No line cook should
ever step away from the line without the head chef’s permission and so he got fired on his first
day there. Kai was walking away when he saw someone getting beaten up and he stepped in. He
ended up saving the guy’s life.

But the guy said he signed his death warrant. The guy that Kai saved was Chris Polis. He was
the business partner to Head Chef Jenny Alika. Together they own the restaurant. Chris was
clearly in trouble and the fact that Kai had to step in was big. Kai overheard Jenny and Chris
arguing in the office about it.

Jenny felt so bad that she gave Kai back his job as a line cook. Kai later admitted to his team
that he actually enjoys it. He loves cooking. It was one of the few things he could do with his dad
and so it brought back happy memories. Kai was chatting up Jenny about what happened with
her business partner when those same guys from earlier came back.

They tried to abduct her. But Mance stepped in. Mance killed the guys from earlier and he
would have shot Kai as well, but Jenny stopped him. Mance’s daughter stopped him. Mance then
promised he’s going to fix her problems and he left. He was on the run again. He managed to
evade the police. Only Jenny now knows Kai is a cop because had to call it in once he saw Mance.
Kai and Tennant later questioned Jenny.

She said that she didn’t know her father was a wanted man. She just knew he was a criminal.
Its why her mother never put him on her birth certificate. It’s also why they didn’t have much
contact until after she went away to France for culinary school.

Jenny had been given an old cell phone number of his. She reached out to him once she was
feeling lonely and they developed a bond from there. Jenny also called her dad when she found
out her business partner was using their restaurant to money launder some cash for a known
drug trafficker.

The trafficker didn’t want to be bought out. He wanted to keep using the business for his own
ends and it was Chris who got the restaurant in trouble. The team informed Chris about the
situation. They told him that Mance probably blames him for getting his daughter in trouble and
so Chris was happy to tell them everything he knew. In return for protection.

The team later arrested the drug trafficker. But then Mance ran the car off the road and killed
the guy. He also managed to escape again. The team only found him by sitting on Jenny because
they knew her father would stop by to say goodbye to her before he left. The team were able
to arrest Mance then, but he didn’t mind because he did get the chance to say goodbye to his
daughter and so he didn’t blame her for his capture.

Jenny got to keep her restaurant.
Kai ended up deciding to cook the memorial dinner with his dad.
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Breach

Season 1
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 17

Originally aired: Monday March 21, 2022
Writer: Yakira Chambers
Director: Christine Moore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Maury Sterling (Hank Braddock), Brad Carter (Kevin Rooker), Alex
Quijano (Alan Mateo), Rafael Cebrián (Rodney Shine), Napoleon Tavale
(Thomas Priestley), Nicholas Koenig (Dax McAffrey)

Production Code: HAW117
Summary: When a ransomware attempt causes a dam to malfunction, Ernie and

a team of hackers are tasked to find the culprit quickly, before all
power and water is cut off on the island. Also, Lucy and Whistler work
together, giving Whistler a chance to apologize to Lucy and mend their
relationship.

A system check at a military controlled
dam went awry after the damn came
on unexpectedly. It trapped Petty Offi-
cer Second Class Thomas Pressley inside
and the poor man died before his partner
could do anything to stop it. Tennant and
her team were brought in. They noticed
the extra attention by law enforcement.

Tennant suspected that the dam mal-
functioning could either be a sabotage or
worse it could be a terrorist attack. The
team were going to investigate both op-
tions. They looked into the dam schedule.

Pressley and his partner had followed protocol. They did everything right. It shouldn’t have re-
sulted in the death of one of them. The dam was rebooted while it was being worked on and so
now the question is who rebooted it?

Tennant and her team were looking into it. There was also several other federal agencies
looking into it and whichever one that lacks manners is the one that grabbed up Ernie as he was
enjoying coffee with Lucy. Lucy tried to pursue the car.

She didn’t get any information. Nor did she see who took him because they weren’t wearing
jackets with identifiers on them. But they all suspected FBI. FBI were the only ones who would
pull such a jerk move and leave no explanation. Tennant and her team didn’t even know where
to start looking for Ernie because Ernie was the guy they turned to help them in this situation.

The team instead relied on Whistler. Whistler transferred over to the FBI and she knew where
they were located on the island. She gave Tennant the information. Tennant and her team showed
up there and the FBI tried to stop them, but Tennant said that she goes where Ernie goes and
so she pushed her way into the makeshift headquarters. She found Ernie.
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He was fine and he filled them in what’s been happening. Someone hacked the dam. They
technically hacked the whole water and power grid and they were threatening to kill more people
if they didn’t get the ransom money. And they’ve already killed one person as proof of concept.

If they could do that, they could take down the dam. They could stop power to the island. They
could literally leave everyone in the dark. But Ernie along with other techies have determined that
the ransomware was installed at the company’s power grid by someone carrying in a mechanism
called a pineapple. It was malware that needed to be transferred off of a flash drive.

Tennant and her team quickly found who infected the system with malware. It was some
junkie. He got paid a couple of thousand dollars to drop it off and he never took names. He
couldn’t even describe the person who gave him the pineapple because they never met in person.

The guy was also paid in cryptocurrency which is basically untraceable. The team checked
the advertisement that he replied to and Ernie kept looking into the hack. With barely twenty
minutes left on the clock, the company decided to pay the ransom. They didn’t want to risk losing
power. They paid the ransom and the terrorists still went through with their threats. Power and
water were shut off. It didn’t make sense. The terrorists got what they wanted. Why did they
continue to persist? The team kept looking into the hack and Ernie was able to determine that
someone was using the source code created by Kevin Rooker also known as "the rook".

The guy was a recluse. He used to work for the NSA and then he disagreed with his code being
used to spy on everyday Americans. He stepped away, but they kept track of his movements in
the years afterwards and so they knew he was on the island. Rooker was now in a band. He
makes and rehabs old guitars. Rooker didn’t want to get involved in this but he agreed to do it to
help people in need and so while he was assisting the federal agents is when one of them chose
to kidnap him. It turns out that the ransomware was a ruse. It was a plot to lure Rooker out of
hiding. Rooker has created programs for prominent institutions all over the world. And someone
wanted to use Rooker into hacking into a national bank.

Rooker sent out a distress signal after he had been kidnapped. He sent it to Ernie and Ernie
used it to find his location. The team later arrived at the kidnapper’s door with guns. They got to
Rooker. They saved him. They also saved Raddick also known as the kidnapper. Raddick worked
on the cyber task force. He hated watching criminals get away with millions. He therefore strived
to steal money and it had to be as much as he could possibly get. But Raddick was captured. He
will spend the rest of his life behind bars for the murder he committed and Rooker got to return
to his old life.

And after everything, Whistler finally apologized to Lucy about not telling her about her girl-
friend on the mainland.

36



NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

T’N’T (2)

Season 1
Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 18

Originally aired: Monday March 28, 2022
Writer: Christopher Silber, Megan Bacharach
Director: Lionel Coleman
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Wilmer Valderrama (NCIS Special Agent Nick Torres), Katrina Law
(NCIS Special Agent Jessica Knight), Gary Cole (FBI Special Agent
Alden Parker), Diona Reasonover (Forensic Scientist Kasie Hines),
Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase), Teddy Sears (Greg Winslow),
Clark Freeman (Brent Spooner), Gabrielle Byndloss (Tessa Holt), David
Bianchi (Kyle Jennings), Angie Anderson (Attendant), Paul L Patterson
(Suspect #3), Josh Squire (Local Camper)

Production Code: HAW118
Summary: NCIS Agents Nick Torres and Jessica Knight travel to Hawai’i when

they learn a key witness in one of their old cases has turned up there
with crucial evidence.

The first part of the episode was aired as
the NCIS episode S19E17 titled “Starting
Over”.

Special Agent Nick Torres was in town
to collect a witness. The witness disap-
peared on him some years back and it
was Special Agent in Charge Tennant
who found him. She had a history with
Torres. They were old friends. Perhaps
something more at one point in time.

Not any longer. They were now just
friends and they’ve spent years denying
the many rumors about them. They espe-

cially hated their nickname. "TNT". Tennant’s team didn’t hear the rumors. Something she was
grateful for. They just knew that Torres was flying into town to collect a missing witness and the
next thing they heard was when Torres and Tennant got hit.

They were driving on their road with their witness when someone began firing at them. The
shots forced them off the road and they took cover while unfortunately their witness was killed.
But they did return fire. They fired upon the men shooting at them and they drove off just not
before they disappeared with the witness’s body. The witness was Kyle Jennings. He worked
as a private contractor overseas. The firm was called Fortress. The fortress was responsible for
the death of Marine Corporal Daniel Menlo. It was believed that Fortress or a member of it had
improperly stored grenades and that it set off an explosion.

Fortress blamed the explosion on a man working for them. Someone by the name of Greg
Winslow. They fired him and he seems committed suicide once stateside. Jennings was the last
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person therefore in the know who truly knew what happened with the explosion. He went on the
run after he came back from overseas.

Torres has been looking for him ever since. Since then, someone had been giving Torres tips
about Jennings’s movements. This was how Torres learned Jennings was in Tennant’s neck of
the woods. He tipped off his old friend. She took things from there and fast-forward to Jennings’s
body was now missing.

Tennant called in her team. They searched the scene for any evidence and they found flora that
was only on one campsite of the island. Tenant and Torres went there searching for Jennings’s
body when they inadvertently ran into Winslow. Winslow was still alive. He faked his death and
has been following Jennings because he wanted to prove he had nothing to do with the explosion
overseas. The team still arrested him, but they put him at the station while they continue to
question him and to get the bottom of why he was still alive. Winslow said he had to fake his
death because Fortress would have killed him to cover up what really happened overseas.

Not that he knows what really happened. He was just the fall guy. He said that Jennings
was the one who knew all about Fortress and that he knew what really caused the explosion.
Winslow didn’t know much. He was just the supplies guy. But Jennings was dead. The bad guys
even went to great lengths to collect his body and so the body most hold some bit of evidence.
The team came to suspect that Fortress was going to get rid of the body by cremating it. They
checked all locations all the island and they spotted one that wasn’t supposed to be operational
yet was sending up smoke.

The team went into the building. They stopped the cremation. They got enough bone fragments
to identify the remains as Jennings and they also found an odd component. There was aluminum
found on the body. It couldn’t have been the bullets because bullets aren’t made from that
material. Ernie came to suspect the aluminium was from the explosion overseas. He recreated
the explosion and the firm’s supposed explanation for what happened doesn’t fit. The explosion
wasn’t caused by a faulty grenade that was stored improperly. It was caused by a C4 explosion
that had aluminum. The same kind of bombs that Fortress was known for and so it’s a good
thing Ernie got help from Torres’s team.

Torres’s friend as well as teammate Special Agent Knight had come to help out. She talked
to their expert Kasie and they were able to trace the bomb signature back to Fortress. They just
needed Winslow to tell him who was the bomb maker. They went him to question him, but they
found him missing and he disappeared not long after he got a call from his sister. The same sister
that he explicitly told them didn’t know he was still alive. It turns out Fortress had got to him by
way of his sister. There was a Fortress compound on the island. It was their seat of their CEO
Brent Spooner. Spooner who went from being a contractor to running the company.

Spooner was the guy who turned it all around for the company. He received a huge cash influx
after that explosion overseas. The explosion was to cover up the theft of forty millions dollars and
Spooner funneled that into the company to turn into an elite powerhouse. He was even taking
the company public. He was about to become a very wealthy man. So, he was doing his best
to cover what Fortress did. He even got to Winslow. One of Fortress’s contacts must have seen
Winslow with Torres and Tennant. He got to Winslow the only way they knew how and they were
torturing him to find out how much NCIS knew when NCIS came bursting through the doors to
rescue him.

They took on the whole compound and live to tell the tale. They rescued Winslow. They also
had people rescue his sister and so now he’ll finally get to see her again.

They also arrested Spooner. They had Special Agent Parker do it back on the mainland. But
no one got the full story of what happened in Orlando between Torres and Tennant.

38



NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

Nurture

Season 1
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 19

Originally aired: Monday April 18, 2022
Writer: Jan Nash
Director: Lin Oeding
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Anthony Ruivivar (Daniel Tennant), Bronson Pinchot (Darrin
Schwartz), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase), Alisa Allapach
(Melanie Dawes), Charley Koontz (Siggy Williams), Michael Ng (Kevin
Trager), Zack Duhame (Joseph Gooden), Perry Kainoa (Navy Officer
Reid Keller), Yvonne Juarez (Nurse)

Production Code: HAW119
Summary: When the body of a naval,Officer is found the team investigates and are

told That he was attacked by an animal not native to the island. Fish
and wildlife agents inform them That a Ship carrying exotic animals
Didnt make it and the animal That attacked the Officer was on it. They
now have to Find out why the Ship Didnt make it. They learn That a
local collector of animals was the one who brought them over. They
learn from info he supplied That one an8mal was unaccounted for.
They Find the one who brought it in and discover a possible biological
attack. Ernie tries to Help Lucy deal with her tailed relationship with
Whistler. Tennant’s son sustained an injury that affects his ability to
play baseball.

A Naval Environmental Officer was
mauled. He was mauled by an Apex
predator. However, such predators weren’t
indigenous to Hawaii or in the other
words the island wasn’t known for such
predators. There also hadn’t been any
word of an escaped lion from the zoo and
so this predator was most likely brought
onto the island thanks to a smuggler.

The case was assigned to Tennant’s
team. They were looking for the smuggler
and they even got help from the Fish and
Wildlife department. They were hoping to

find the big cat on the island. To tranquilize it and return it to its natural habitat. Kai was a part
of the search party for the animal. He had to go out into the forest with the team in charge. He
met someone was who pretty, smart, and who loved animals. And if it wasn’t so dangerous being
out there, he might have made a move on her.

The rest of the team meanwhile was hunting down the smuggler’s lead. Whoever brought that
predator to the island had to go to jail. It was their actions that killed one person and so they
would be found at fault by any jury the ADA puts together.
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But while one part of the team looks for the smuggler, the other part looks for the predator.
Kai and the others had tracked the big cat to a cliff. They also found tranquilizer dots littering
the area. It seems someone else was in the woods looking for the tiger. Kai and the woman with
him ended up finding a guy wandering the forest with a gun. The guy seemed to be the one who
ordered the tiger.

The tiger was supposed to be delivered on the island. Only something got in the way. The boat
had to dock far away and none of the smugglers got into contact with the buyer. The buyer tried
calling them. He even went looking for them. He found nothing. That he found nothing until he
noticed the tiger paw print. He followed the tracks. He tried to tranquilize it on his own. It didn’t
work as planned. NCIS then stepped in. they said they would take things over from her and they
continued to look for the predator. While they were searching the area for any signs of the tiger,
they came across a hut. The hut had a dead deer. Everyone thought that was odd because why
would a smuggler smuggle in a dead deer.

It wasn’t until they saw signs of anthrax that the team became concerned. The deer had
been a carrier. Someone killed it and stuffed it with anthrax and they were probably hoping to
commit an act of terrorism on the island. This became about so much more than a mere tiger.
The tiger was a sideshow. The staged deer was a terrorist attack and Tennant’s team was leading
the charge. They were able to determine that the attack would happen in a high-traffic area. It
couldn’t be outside because Anthrax wouldn’t spread that way. It had to be indoor. Someplace
like the indoor tourism conference had people traveling all across the country to attend. And so
the team staked out the place.

They later watched as several suspicious men went to the building. They managed to arrest
some of them before one did a runner. He ran off inside with his detonator. Tennant pursued
him. She was able to fight and subdued him, but Jesse was the one who got a hold of the
anthrax detonator. He stopped it from going off. The whole team helped save the day. Afterward,
Kai worked up the courage to ask out Melanie from Fish and Wildlife. She agreed to it. She
seems interested in him too and so a new romance might blossom. As for the tiger, the tiger was
eventually taken care of. It was no longer a danger to the island and that’s the important part.

Tennant was having some family issues during all of this. She had been supporting her son
from the sidelines when she saw him get into an accident on the baseball field and so Kai had to
be rushed into surgery. He’s going to need brutal physical therapy. But it’s going to be worth it if
the doctor can preserve his baseball career.
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Nightwatch

Season 1
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 20

Originally aired: Monday May 02, 2022
Writer: Amy Rutberg
Director: Tawnia McKiernan
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Chloe Csengery (Gracie Boone), Tom Lenk (Carter Dunlap), Derek
Phillips (FBI ASAC Michael Curtis), Dan Martin (Paul Johnson), Abra-
ham Lim (Neil Blake), Siena Goines (Marci), Teri Wyble (Skylar), Jack-
son Mercado (Elliott Sacks), Caro Pampillo (Andrea Medina), Wolf Lee
Counsel (Martin), Josh Squire (Bell Hop)

Production Code: HAW120
Summary: When a navy seaman is involved in a murder, the NCIS team is called

to work the case on their day off. Also, Lucy finds out Whistler turned
down a promotion in D.C. to stay in Hawai’i.

A Virginian Federal Prosecutor was mur-
dered on the island. He was on the island
for some unknown reason. Probably for
a vacation. He met someone at the bar
and they got to talking. It was going really
well when they decided to continue the
party elsewhere by getting a ride. They
used one of those apps and they hadn’t
needed to wait long for a ride, but for
some reason, the driver drove them to a
dark and secluded area where this prose-
cutor was murdered. The driver instantly
became a suspect because he was miss-
ing. His body wasn’t found at the scene.
There was no sign of a struggle. And so

everyone knew the driver was behind this.
But this became an NCIS case because the driver was a serviceman. The team was called

in to conduct a manhunt. The manhunt was for Navy Seamen Neil Blake. Blake did rideshares
during his off-hours. The team also knew Blake was behind this because he was dumb enough to
use his own car. The team along with every other investigative force on the island quickly began
looking for Blake. The team roped in FBI Special Agent Whistler to assist them. They wanted to
know why AUSA Elliott Sacks was killed. They had looked for a connection between him and
Blake and there wasn’t one.

There was no reason why Blake would want Sacks dead. The team also couldn’t figure out
why Sacks was on the island. They went asking his bosses and it hadn’t been a vacation. It was
something else. The team was still putting pieces together when another body dropped. This time
it was an FBI Agent. Special Agent Jones was his name. Whistler went to Jones’s home on the
island because he knew Sacks and she thought he would know why Sacks had been murdered,
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but Whistler saw that the house had been broken into and so she called it in. She also went
inside without backup and she got her butt beat. She got beaten up by the real killer. It turns
out the killer was never Blake.

Blake was another victim. The killer was an unknown woman. The same woman that Sacks
was making out with on the night he was murdered and the woman who took Blake hostage after
she murdered Sacks. She told Blake that if he tried to run that she’d kill him. She took Blake
with her every time she made a stop. She killed Jones. She also made another stop in which she
murdered someone in their hotel room. This woman made her escape after she beat up Whistler
and so the only good thing to come out of it was the fact they were able to rescue Blake. Blake
told them about the third victim.

The third victim was a defense attorney. There was no connection seemingly between the
three victims, but this smelled like a hit job and the victims were all killed with the expediency of
a hitman. Though in this case, it would be a hitwoman. Tennant and her team later learned that
the federal government was holding a deposition of a gun manufacturer that was being accused
of helping the cartels. They had gotten a whistleblower to help out with the case in exchange for
not being prosecuted. The only thing this guy had to do was tell the truth on the stand. To do so
would risk putting his own brother in jail.

But then again it was probably his brother that hired the hitwoman to kill him. The team went
to the witness’s house and they arrived not a moment too soon because the hitwoman identified
as Andrea Medina had tried taking a shot at the witness. She got his bodyguard instead. The
team encircled Carter. They tried to get him out of the house without injury while Lucy pursued
the hitwoman. She tracked Medina to the beach. They got into a physical altercation. They were
struggling for power when Lucy was ultimately forced to shoot and kill Media. With Medina dead,
there was no one to tie the murder for hire to Carter’s brother.

Only the team realized later on that Carter’s story was a lie. He wasn’t the whistleblower. He
was the murderous brother. It was Carter’s brother that was giving testimony against him. It was
his lawyer that Carter had killed along with everyone else attached to the case. The team figured
that out after Medina "failed" to kill Carter in spite of having the shot. She had the shot and she
intentionally missed. And that’s when they realized the brother might have something important
to say.

The brother mentioned Carter’s overseas accounts and the team was able to track them down.
It’s what paid off Medina. And so Carter was now being accused of murder.

Whistler was fine. She had a few cracked ribs and she also had a necessary conversation with
Lucy about the way things ended between them, but it was something Lucy had to say in order
to move on and she does plan on moving on.
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Switchback

Season 1
Episode Number: 21
Season Episode: 21

Originally aired: Monday May 16, 2022
Writer: Noah Evslin
Director: Jimmy Whitmore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Captain Joe Milius), Seana Kofoed (Medical Exam-
iner Chase), Mark Gessner (CGIS Special Agent Neil Pike), Mahina
Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Iman Nazemzadeh (Dr. Dunne), Jason
Downs (Breskov), Caitlin Mehner (Anna Freeloff), Adam Aalderks
(David Freeloff), Sam Bass (Hulking DSS Agent), Nicholas Bonanno
(Commander Thomas Kelley), Donta Tanner (LCpl Mason Cartwright),
Mary Thornton (Major Lydia Vail), Mark Wilson (State Department Of-
ficial), Tavana McMoore (Special Live Musical Performance), Scott M.
Schewe (HPD SGT P. James)

Production Code: HAW121
Summary: Captain Milius returns to Hawai’i for a secret prisoner exchange op-

eration, and brings in Jane to be his personal security escort in the
Philippines, where the exchange will take place.

Marine Corporal Mason Cartwright was
killed after he tried to intervene in a do-
mestic dispute. He saw a couple arguing
and he tried to step in, but he got stabbed
for it and he was killed before he hit the
ground. Something that didn’t sound like
an accident. It sounded like someone was
experienced with a knife. They knew how
to make one fatal stab wound. They also
knew how to avoid cameras as they ran
off and so they didn’t like a panicked cou-
ple. The warring couple thing was proba-
bly just a diversion. It was a diversion to

grab Cartwright’s attention. They knew he would intervene and they wanted to kill him. The
question was why?

Why Cartwright? The island was full of servicemen and women. The killers went after Cartwright
specifically. Cartwright was on the island for a training mission and he would return to Manila
for his posting there once the training was done. But he had "training" at five am the next morn-
ing. There’s no reason why Cartwright would be out late at night the night before having to wake
up so early and so Tennant and her team went to this special training. They wanted to ask ques-
tions. They were instead met with detainment. Milius is in town. He was on the island because
he was a part of a secret prisoner exchange with Russia.

Milius was exchanging Anton Breskov, who was caught by the American government for es-
pionage, for Thomas Kelly. Kelly was simply a journalist. He was detained by the Russians on
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false charges and there’s no telling what his condition is over them. The sooner the Americans
get back to Kelly, the safer Kelly will be. The team knew this. They also wanted to know the
part Cartwright played in everything. Cartwright wasn’t supposed to have a part as it turns out.
Cartwright overheard about the prisoner exchange at a bar. He reported it. The team on the pris-
oner exchange found out there was a leak and so they asked Cartwright to come to Hawaii to be
there for one of the many meetings.

Cartwright was killed before he could make it to the meeting. Which left Milius nervous.
Milius counts Kelly as a good friend and he didn’t want anything to happen to him if the prisoner
exchange fell through. Milius needed help to make sure everything happened the way it was
supposed to. He turned to Tennant. Tennant and Milius had a fling. He told her that he’d call
if he was ever back on the island and that call never came. Tennant decided to ignore that little
tidbit because there were other things to be concerned about. Like their killer. Someone was
trying to stop that prisoner exchange from happening.

Milius was so worried about the exchange that he asked Tennant to act as an escort to the
exchange. Tennant knows Russian and the language is spoken in Manila. She was also a former
CIA. She knew how to handle herself in a crisis. Tennant got them a flight on a Coast Guard
carrier. Milius and Tennant flew out with a security team as well as their prison. The prison was
by the way very chatty. Breskov practically bragged about his days as a spy. Though he admitted
he had nothing to do with Cartwright’s death. Breskov has been imprisoned for more than a year.
He had nothing to do with arranging someone’s murder.

There was another thing that stood out. While Tennant was in Manila with Milius, the rest
of the team had caught the couple that killed Cartwright. They later tracked them down before
they could get on a flight off the island. The couple was actually a couple. They were a part of
a socialist group in Oregon. It was probably a front for a Russian connection. Everyone believed
that the Russians wanted to hold onto Kelly. They just couldn’t figure out why. Tennant and
Milius went to the prisoner exchange. There was a tense incident in which both sides pulled out
guns. And Tennant was able to talk everyone down.

They swapped prisoners. They both went back to their planes. But something was wrong with
Kelly. He began seizing and he was foaming at the mouth. The Russians did something to him.
They possibly poisoned him, but why do that when they were already going to do a prisoner
exchange. This erratic behavior on the Russians’ side had made no sense. Why kill a man after
you got what you wanted?
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Ohana

Season 1
Episode Number: 22
Season Episode: 22

Originally aired: Monday May 23, 2022
Writer: Matt Bosack, Christopher Silber
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Yasmine Al-

Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy Tara), Tori Anderson (DIA
Special Agent Kate Whistler), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence
Specialist Ernie Malik), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent Jesse Boon),
Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Alex Tarrant (NCIS Special Agent Kai Hol-
man)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Captain Joe Milius), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner
Chase), Mark Gessner (CGIS Special Agent Neil Pike), Sharif Atkins
(Norman ’Boom Boom’ Gates), Moses Goods (Wally Holman), Mahina
Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Danielle Zalopany (Hina), Linc Hand (Char-
lie 1), Izabella Miko (Alina Nikitin), Billy Boyd (Colin McIntyre), Iman
Nazemzadeh (Dr. Dunne), Sam Bass (Hulking DSS Agent), Nicholas
Bonanno (Commander Thomas Kelley), Mary Thornton (Major Lydia
Vail), Mark Wilson (State Department Official), Josh Squire (Filipino
Local)

Production Code: HAW122
Summary: Captain Milius continues to work with Tennant and her team in the

aftermath of the prisoner exchange between U.S. and eastern Europe.
Also, Whistler takes Ernie’s advice and makes a grand gesture in the
hope of winning back Lucy.

Something went wrong with the prisoner
exchange. No sooner did the Americans
get their hands on Commander Kelley
than he began seizing and dying on board
a plane heading back to Hawaii. But why
kill him? He was a part of a prisoner ex-
change and the exchange could only have
happened if both sides agreed to peace.
So, was there someone out there wanting
to ruin the peace? They killed Comman-
der Kelley. Kelley was fine on the ground
and he wasn’t in distress until they got
on the plane. Could it be that someone
on board the American plane was the one
responsible for Kelley’s murder?

Everyone on the plane was questioned. They had all been vetted for this secret mission be-
forehand yet they couldn’t be trusted because there were people like Maggie who had clearance
and were selling them out to foreign powers. Everyone got questioned again and again. Special
Agent Tennant and her team couldn’t find a single piece of evidence against the crew. Their best
bet was the doctor that was down on the tarmac with them. Before he boarded the flight, Kelley
was checked by a doctor who gave him the all-clear and who gave him something to carry with
him. The team suspected that’s how the nerve agent was introduced into Kelley’s system.

Only the doctor wasn’t in Hawaii. He was back in Manila. Tennant and Milius took a naval
vessel to Manila and they grabbed the doctor, off the street. The doctor tried to deny all part in
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the murders. But the team looked into him. He does have Russian ties. He was also speaking
to someone on the dark web. The team was doing their best to get their hands on whoever
the doctor was conspiring with. The team looked into it. They later found the woman that was
involved. Just not in the way they thought because she was after the same person they were.
But their suspect managed to escape on a boat before they could stop him. And unfortunately,
he was very dangerous.

His name was Alexi Babin. He was guilty of selling weapons in the far east all under the guise
of doing this for the Russian government, but the truth is he was carrying out a false flag mission
and the only reason for that is that someone had planned something. Something big. Something
they wanted to blame on Russia when it all came out. But Russia is smart. They would never
make such crucial mistakes as Babin did by laying out the path and so Tennant and her team
realized that an event was about to take place. They put the island on high alert. They spoke
with the local Russian agent on the ground. Her name was Alina. Alina also tried to stop Babin
from making his escape.

Alina has been trying to get him for months. She was FSB. She was a secret Russian spy that
was technically operating on American soil and so Tennant had her detained. She later tried to
question Alina, but Alina was too afraid of Russia to betray them and so she was staying quiet.
The team tried to track down Babin another way. They looked for a landing spot after he left the
boat. They followed his signature into a house that was rigged to blow. They actually had to call
in the bomb squad to diffuse the bomb. The guy who diffused the bomb was nicknamed "Boom
Boom". And he made things safe for the team.

But that hadn’t been the only bomb in play. There had been a second bomb. A more dangerous
second bomb and that bomb were planted in the same building where a peace conference was
being held. Babin put the bomb there. He was found fleeing the scene and he was shot and killed,
but Alina broke after being questioned by Whistler. Whistler used her own life experience to get
through to her and it worked. Alina revealed sensitive information about Babin. This included
who hired him. It hadn’t been some Russian agent who was set on destroying the southeast. It
had been someone at the peace conference.

It turns out he claimed he was after peace when the whole time he had been smuggling guns
and ammunition into Southeast Asia. He also wanted to blame Russia for it if the plan didn’t
work out. The man was set on violence and chaos, but he was ultimately stopped and arrested.
Tennant meanwhile talked to Milius afterward. They were at different places in their lives. He
was traveling for work. She had to stay where she was because of her job and her kids. And
they’ve decided that Milius is always welcomed when he comes to the island.

But Whistler realized she was still in love with Lucy. She got advice from Ernie that she
should do a grand gesture and so that’s what she did. She started singing in front of everyone to
Lucy. And Lucy loved it so much that he agreed to take Whistler back. And later Kai introduced
everyone to his dad.
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Prisoners’ Dilemma (2)

Season 2
Episode Number: 23
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday September 19, 2022
Writer: Jan Nash & Christopher Silber
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Wilmer Valderrama (NCIS Special Agent Nick Torres), Katrina Law
(NCIS Special Agent Jessica Knight), Gary Cole (NCIS Special Agent
Alden Parker), Brian Dietzen (Chief Medical Examiner Jimmy Palmer),
Diona Reasonover (Forensic Scientist Kasie Hines), Michael Weston
(Maxwell / Raven / Hearns), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase),
Cher Alvarez (Bam Bam), John Billingsley (Professor Staggs), Eric C.
Lynch (Lt. Shay), Trevor Danielson (Pilot), Mason Michael Moore (Air
Traffic Controller)

Production Code: HAW201
Summary: Special Agent Tennant’s team, along with NCIS agents Nick Torres and

Jessica Knight, learn about plans for an attack in Oahu on RIMPAC
(Rim of the Pacific); the world’s largest international maritime warfare
exercise.

The first part of the episode was aired as
the NCIS episode S20E01 titled A Family
Matter.

A wanted man flew his private jet to
Hawaii. Hermann Maxwell was wanted
because he was a known terrorist that
worked under the nickname the Raven
and he was set on creating chaos wher-
ever he goes. He broke away from the
local NCIS Agents back in Virginia. He
came to Hawaii in spite of the price on
his head and so the question had to be
why? Why did Maxwell come to Hawaii?

Hawaii was home to beautiful beaches. It also was the setting for the largest maritime exercise
in history. The American Navy was going to do this exercise along with twenty-five other nations.
And there was going to be a lot of press.

For a guy like Maxwell, this naval exercise could be the setting for his next terrorist attack.
Maxwell, unfortunately, loves bioweapons and so everyone knew he would use one in his next
attack. They just didn’t know when or where. Would it take place on the water? Would it take
place amongst the crowds watching on the mainland? Maxwell could be planning any number
of things. The team needed to take him down and they were getting help from their fellow NCIS
friends. Special Agent Parker stayed behind to question a guard in frequent contact with Maxwell.
And both Torres and Knight left with Tennant and Ernie to fly back to Hawaii.

Ernie should know lots about Maxwell. Back when he was in the NSA, he wrote the dossier
on Maxwell that brought the man down and got him arrested. Ernie, therefore, thought he knew

49



NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

everything that he needed to know to unravel Maxwell’s secret servers. But Maxwell was one step
ahead of him. Maxwell laid out a trap for the local NCIS agents. They thought they were arresting
Maxwell’s cult and they instead raised their guns on a group of senior citizens. It turns out the
terrorists hid the guns in the old folks’ fanny packs. And so Maxwell’s crew got away before the
team even knew what they were looking for.

Then to make matters worse, they did find Maxwell. Maxwell wasn’t on the private plane that
flew into Hawaii. Everyone onboard the flight, besides the pilot, had been dead on arrival. They
had been a part of a message for NCIS. They also held a cell phone that had a video of Maxwell
that showed he was already on the island. The team went looking for him in the location from the
video. They were surprised they found him so quickly and yet Maxwell still had a few surprises
for them. He had his hand on a dead man switch. It was a bomb detonator. The bomb wasn’t
with him nor was it located in the hotel he was in. And so the bomb was offsite.

Maxwell convinced Knight to clear the building as well as keep everyone out. He wanted to
be alone with Torres and Tennant. Maxwell chose them because he knew neither were negotia-
tors. Knight was. Torres was the muscle. Tennant was the boss. Maxwell just wanted to talk to
someone without them using the chance to get into his head and that’s what he did with the two
agents. Maxwell was talking while Ernie found something. Ernie realized that Maxwell kept with
him some first editions in his prison cell. One book even had an inscription from someone with
the initials "W.S.". And Ernie found that person.

The inscription was from Woodrow Staggs. Staggs wrote a paper about crowd control and us-
ing fear to manipulate. It turns out Maxwell plagiarized that paper. He turned it into a manifesto.
He controls his followers using that paper and so the team brought in Staggs. They questioned
him. They even asked him about the inscription. Staggs didn’t remember any of it. He didn’t
even remember Maxwell until they de-aged his photo. Staggs said Maxwell’s real name is Ja-
son Herns. He was kicked out of the naval program for being psychologically unfit. According to
Staggs, Maxwell was just too crazy to function.

Ernie got word to Torres and Tennant. He hacked the television behind Maxwell to give them
information and he got caught by Maxwell. Maxwell then demanded that Staggs be brought to
him. They thought he just wanted to gloat to his old professor. They didn’t realize until after
Staggs went into that restaurant that Maxwell’s grand scheme had been about getting to Staggs.
Staggs was on the land for a family thing. That’s what he told the team. The team looked into
it and they realized that Staggs’s son was in fact taking part in the naval exercise. The hidden
bomb probably involved the son. Maxwell wanted to hurt Staggs. There was no better way to do
it than by killing his son.

Maxwell only got Staggs to come because he wanted to be standing by Staggs’s side when he
killed the man’s son. But the team had resident bomb expert Bam Bam working on diffusing the
bomb. Once they realized that Maxwell was after Stagg’s son, they went to the son’s location.
They protected him and stopped the bomb. Maxwell was so shocked when he pulled his finger
off the switch only to see nothing happen. He tried shooting Staggs and the team stopped him.
And they arrested him again.

It turns out Maxwell wanted revenge because Staggs was the first person to believe in him
and then he felt abandoned once Staggs had him kicked out of the naval program.

With Maxwell behind bars, Torres and Knight later grabbed a drink with Tennant’s team and
all was well again in the NCIS world.
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Blind Curves

Season 2
Episode Number: 24
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday September 26, 2022
Writer: Matt Bosack
Director: Yangzom Brauen
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Shigeki Hosokawa (Naoki Hayami), Toshiki Kashû (Kazunari Kuroki),
Tomoka Kurotani (Maho Mizuno), Shunsuke Nakamura (Akihiko
Murasame), Kuranosuke Sasaki (Tsuyoshi Azumi), Asuka Shibuya
(Ryoko Azumi), Ryôsei Tayama (Rokurou Kaneko), Muga Tsukaji
(Saburou Suda), Shôgo Yamaguchi (Taichirou Sakurai), Megumi Yasu
(Yukiko Yamaguchi)

Production Code: HAW202
Summary: The team’s investigation leads to the world of illegal street racing af-

ter a Marine staff sergeant’s body is discovered in a junkyard. Ten-
nant’s concerned Alex is hiding something from her, Whistler is anx-
ious about introducing Lucy to her co-workers.

The body of Marine Staff Sergeant Travis
Cobb was found in a salvage yard. He
had been stuffed in the trunk of a car
and everyone was hoping he was dead
before he got put in there because the
car was partially squashed. He has put
it one of those machines that just pul-
verize it. The people operating the ma-
chine stopped it the moment they noticed
that it was bleeding. That’s when they
opened the trunk. They found the body.
They called the authorities and it was the
police who found Cobb’s dog tags with the

body. And thankfully the Medical Examiner was able to piece together what really happened.
Cobb was murdered. He was shot in the face. His autopsy revealed that someone was standing

right in front of him and shot him point blank in the face. But the mystery still continues. Cobb
was a very private person. Some may say too private because he never discussed his private life
with anyone in his unit and in spite of a bright career in the Marines — he was coming out of the
military. He didn’t put in any travel paperwork to go back to the mainland. He was staying on
the island. Tennant and her team were wondering if he was staying because of a woman. They
looked into Cobb’s private life. He didn’t really have one.

Only his GPS does show he was making the same trip every free time he could get. Kai and
Jesse went to the location to go see who lived there and it turns out Cobbs was visiting an empty
airfield. The agents didn’t know what was so important about this field until they came across a
street race. It was illegal to street race on the island. The racers found a loophole in that rule by
racing in an abandoned airfield. The police don’t bother them there and everyone knows to stay
away unless they were serious about the race. Jesse and Kai stopped one such race. They also
ran into the woman they were seeking.
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Lonnie was Cobbs’s girlfriend. He was leaving the military to build a life with her. He didn’t
tell anyone about her because he didn’t want anyone to know he was racing and it was an open
secret among the racing circle that he was with Lonnie. She gave him protection. Lonnie’s family
has been racing on the island since the first automobile was brought there. Everyone knows
her in that circle. But they weren’t all that welcoming of outsiders and so Lonnie protected her
boyfriend. She helped him race without all the harassment that sometimes comes with it. There
tend to be a lot of sore losers during a race.

The team realized that someone decided to ignore Cobbs’s protection to get at him. They
looked at the car that Cobbs was found in and Ernie was able to determine where it traveled. He
also determined which chop shop was most likely responsible for turning out the vehicle. The
team went there with a warrant. They found a crew of guys working on several cars. They also
found a bullet hole in a wall and, with the help of a very illuminating spray, the agents were able
to determine that’s where Cobbs was killed. The whole shop was shut down. It was a murder
scene. The men working there were all interviewed.

The team found nothing. They had to enlist the help of the FBI to help with deeper profiles of
the many suspects. Tennant was also dealing with a personal crisis. Her son has begun acting
out. He was failing a class that he was normally good in. He was hiding his phone whenever
Tennant enters the room. Tennant talked to her ex-husband about it. He said it must be a new
girl. He remembered how he was at that age and he said their son could be doing the same thing.
Tennant hadn’t wanted to believe that at first. She usually gets told by her son when he has a
new girlfriend. She’s usually in the loop. And she wasn’t now.

It later turned out that her son was seeing someone new. It’s why he hasn’t been focusing
on school as much and why he’s being secretive. Tennant asked him why he would hide a new
relationship. He couldn’t really give her an answer to that one and she was forced to drop it
because of the case. The team had a suspect. They believe Lonnie’s ex-boyfriend, Sol, could be
guilty. He was a serious racer. He also was reportedly jealous of any guy in Lonnie’s life. But the
team spoke to Sol. He was temperamental. He loved cars and he’s moved on from Lonnie. And so
the team went looking for anyone with a connection to the chop shop as well as the salvage yard.

They found a relative of Lonnie’s with a connection to both. This relative was in a vegetative
state and so Lonnie was handling all of his affairs. She was also their killer. She was the only
one with means, motive, and opportunity. Lonnie killed her boyfriend. Maybe he wanted to leave
her. Maybe he wanted to beat her in a race. There’s just no telling and Lonnie did try to go on the
run the moment she saw the feds closing in on her. And they pursued her in a car chase where
they ultimately forced her off the road.

Lonnie got arrested. Justice was done for Cobbs. And Tennant realizes she couldn’t fix every-
thing with her teenage son. He’ll come to her when he’s ready.
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Stolen Valor

Season 2
Episode Number: 25
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday October 03, 2022
Writer: Amy Rutberg
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase), Cher Alvarez (Bam Bam),
Kate Miner (LCDR Audrey Garrett), Kathy Searle (Lydia), Oksana
Platero (Malkie), Anastasia Baranova (Elena), Olivia Jordan (Vessela
Toska), Shawn Passwaters (Michael Garrett), Antal Kalik (Thug 1), Ter-
rence Arashi Elliott (Cargo Facility Guard)

Production Code: HAW203
Summary: Tennant and the NCIS team suspect foul play when they investigate

a fatal car crash involving a Navy officer who turns out to be an im-
postor. Whistler finds herself in danger when she goes undercover to
learn the truth behind the accident.

FBI Special Agent Kate Whistler was in
a relationship with NCIS Special Agent
Lucy Tara. They’ve made it official. They
introduce each other as their significant
partner. Whistler has taken Lucy as her
date to the company’s picnic. It was all
very sweet. It was all very domestic bliss.
Lucy was even helping Whistler train for
field work when Lucy got called into ac-
tual work. The team was called after
a serving naval commander was found
dead in a car crash. The local police iden-
tified the woman as Lt. Commander Au-

drey Garrett and so Tennant took Kai with her to make the notification.
It was their plan to tell the victim’s husband about her car accident. There was just one

problem with this plan. They ran into Audrey herself. The real Audrey. The real Audrey was nine
months pregnant and was due soon. Audrey or better yet the real Audrey went on maternity
leave early because her doctor believes she’s high risk and so the real Audrey has been home for
almost a month. But the fake Audrey had the real Audrey’s information. The fake one even had
the real’s one Naval card as well as her medals. The real Audrey went looking for her items after
Tennant said they had been found on the fake and it turns out the fake one stole the real one’s
information.

She stole it. Then replaced it with fakes. The real Audrey didn’t notice the theft because she
had more pressing concerns like her risky pregnancy. The real Audrey also didn’t know why
anyone would steal her identity. Her bank information wasn’t accessed. She’s not missing any
cash. There’s been no one to open a credit card in her name and on top of that she doesn’t have
access to classified information. Audrey is a Supply Corps Officer. She’s the one that makes sure
they have the right pens and enough of it. She doesn’t have access to missions or anything top
secret. And so the team looked into the fake Audrey.

53



NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

The fake had used Audrey’s access card to get intel on Naval officers. The team suspected
she might have been looking for more people to impersonate and that she was a part of an
organization. They knew she was a part of an organization once they proved the fake Audrey had
been murdered. Someone hacked the fake one’s car. They were then forced into a car accident
and so the team was looking for a killer. Someone who had access to Audrey’s house as well as
someone who knew her well enough to hire a fake. It was all the evidence put together that led
them to Petrov. Petrov ran a housekeeping business.

Happy Housekeepers was a business that Audrey hired to keep her own house clean. It turns
out the fake one also worked there. But the real Audrey has never met the fake one before. The
fake one’s real name was Vessela Toska. She was someone down on their luck and she got a
job with a housekeeping company. Petrov ran the place. She decided to prey on Toska. She got
Toska involved in stealing Audrey’s identity and she later killed Toska when Toska tried to back
out. Toska’s car showed that she sent a text message to Petrov that she was "out". She couldn’t
keep pretending to be Audrey.

Then Toska was killed. Petrov or the people working with Petrov had forced Toska into a
car crash and so it’s a good thing they had that text message. The text message proves the job
wasn’t done. The bad guys were still looking for an Audrey impersonator. That’s when Whistler
volunteered. Whistler had said anything to get the job done and so Tennant said you should go
in undercover and Whistler hadn’t been able to walk her earlier comments back. Either way, she
volunteered. Whistler pretended to be on the run. She supposedly had debts back in Canada and
she doesn’t have a visa. Petrov thought she was perfect for the job.

Petrov threatened to report Whistler if she didn’t do this side job. Whistler agreed. They then
dress Whistler up in Audrey’s uniform and drive her to a storage facility. Whistler stayed in the
car while Petrov and her crew stole radioactive material from x-ray machines. Whistler realized
they were getting material for a dirty bomb. She figured it out right around the same time as the
team. The team had been with Audrey going over what was in the storage containers when they
saw x-ray machines. Something Audrey never ordered. She, therefore, knew it was the bad guys
were doing and told Tennant and Ernie.

Those two sent the crew watching Whistler go in to rescue her. But Whistler had been taken
by boat onto the open sea. It turns out Petrov wasn’t running things. She was set up and killed
and that left Whistler in a precarious situation. The bad guys wanted to kill her. Whistler ran
away. One of the bad guys found her and they fought. Whistler remembered what Lucy taught
her. She used it all on the bad guys and she was winning her fight when rescue arrived.

Lucy showed up and she treated Whistler’s wounds. Something she continued to do once they
arrived back at their apartment.
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Primal Fear

Season 2
Episode Number: 26
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday October 10, 2022
Writer: Ron McGee
Director: LeVar Burton
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Eric Ladin (Ranger Bryson Stone), Seana
Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase), Mark Gessner (CGIS Agent Neil
Pike), Jeremy Isaiah Earl (Ranger Delroy Windell), Cindy Ramirez (Ava
Nakama), Don Swayze (Joe), Sierra Swartz (Cassandra Souza), Lily
Bleu Andrew (Ella Baird)

Production Code: HAW204
Summary: When a Navy sailor washes up dead in a sacred, forbidden kapu site,

the NCIS team brings CGIS Special Agent Pike to unmask the mystery
and catch a possible serial killer on the island. Also, Tennant meets
Alex’s new girlfriend.

Seaman Apprentice Ella Baird’s remains
were found in the woodlands. She had
been partially buried. Besides the signs of
that burial, there were no other signs on
the body to indicate murder. But Tennant
and her NCIS team still investigated Ella’s
death as if it was murder. They saw signs
that the heavy rain had brought down
the body from up a high mountain. Ten-
nant wanted to go up there with her team
only that’s when she was told that up that
particular mountain was a sacred place.
It’s a kapu site. A holy place for Hawai-
ian culture. It’s also the place where there
used to be human sacrifices.

Tennant had told the local woman that they would treat the area with respect. But that went
out the window the moment they spotted the other burials. Their killer had buried the body of
several other individuals. There were at least five victims in total. The team wasn’t looking for
just any old killer. They were looking for a serial killer. A serial killer that was willing to taint an
ancient holy site. The team called on all sorts to help them unravel the crime and one of them
was CGIS Special Agent Pike. Pike had been looking for one of the people they found. The victim,
like everyone else this killer targeted, had been an outdoors person.

Pike had been looking for a rock climber. The poor guy was visiting Hawaii on vacation and he
wanted to climb some mountains when he disappeared. His body was never found in the location
he told people he was going to be in. The only thing they ever found was a cell phone. Until now.
Now, they have bodies. They can now prove it was murder even if they couldn’t figure out the
method of killing these people. They had their medical examiner on the case and she was going
to find something eventually. While they waited on the result of the autopsies, Pike gave Tennant
the only lead he ever had.
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Pike had a drawing of a suspect. The guy was known around the national parks as Joe. Joe
also seemed to follow a few people that traveled any of the trails and so they’re drawing might
be more important than they originally thought. Pike hadn’t gotten anywhere, but Tennant and
her team could. They went looking for this Joe. They put out feelers all around the island. But
Tennant also had other concerns. Tennant finally met her teenage son’s new girlfriend. Her son
hasn’t been paying too much attention to school lately because of this new girlfriend and so that’s
why Tennant asked to meet up with her. Only she didn’t know the girl was twenty-one.

Cassandra was a free spirit. She thinks she has life all figured out. She said the college is a
scam. Tennant’s son was listening to her bits of wisdom and so Tennant was worried. She didn’t
like Cassandra. She didn’t want Alex to be in a relationship with Cassandra. Tennant wanted to
do something to end the relationship and her good friend Ernie did not intervene. First love is
sweet but rarely lasting. Alex will see that too. Tennant just had to stand back and do nothing.
Something she struggles with. Tennant chose to focus on the one thing she could change. And
that was the murder investigation.

The feelers they put out for Joe yielded results. Joe was spotted in the woods. The team went
there with a couple of members of the National Parks and they were all close to death when Joe
began firing at them. Joe wasn’t using a gun. He was using a bow and arrow. Both of them were
missing when they followed Joe’s trail and found him dead. Joe had been murdered by the serial
killer. His autopsy at least clarified what happened to all the others. Joe had been shot with
adrenaline. He was given such a high dosage that his killer watched him get frightened to death.
And so the killer liked torturing his victims before killing them.

Pike had worked up a profile. He mentioned this profile before the National Parks Service
members and that was bad news for him because one of the NPS was the serial killer. He didn’t
like Pike’s profile of him. He waited until Pike was alone before coming up behind him and
drugging him with adrenaline. Then he had Pike run for his life. The running and the fear were
making his heart feel like it was going to explode. But he was found by NCIS before the killer
could truly hurt him. Pike was saved. The killer died. The case was closed. The great thing about
all of this is that Pike is now on better terms with the team.

Pike even considers Jesse a friend. He went to dinner at Jesse’s house and he met the guy’s
whole family. Jesse’s wife is even setting Pike up on a blind date with her friend. And so this case
did have a silver lining.
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Sudden Death

Season 2
Episode Number: 27
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday October 17, 2022
Writer: Yalun Tu
Director: Tawnia McKiernan
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Anthony Ruivivar (Daniel Tennant), Danielle Zalopany (Hina), Jonah
Ho’okano (A.J. Hale), Branscombe Richmond (Maleko Ioane), Kainalu
Moya (Titus Ioane), Siua Ikale’o (Ricky Sio), Nakoa DeCoite (Max Koa),
Tui Asau (Inu Koa), Gabriel ’G-Rod’ Rodriguez (Foreman), Kanoa Lea-
hey (Announcer), Stephanie Mitsuko Matsuba (Mother), La’amaikahiki
Ibarra (Young Boy), Scott M. Schewe (HPD SGT P. James)

Production Code: HAW205
Summary: The NCIS team investigates the death of a Navy sailor and goes head-

to-head with a ruthless local criminal organization. Also, Lucy looks
for a new apartment.

Lucy’s landlord was selling her place. She
couldn’t afford to buy it. She quickly
started to look for a new place and she
never told her girlfriend about it. The first
Whistler heard she was moving was when
she saw the lease to the new apartment.
She asked about it and it led to an un-
comfortable moment in which it looked
like Whistler wanted to ask Lucy to move
in with her but chickened out before she
could. Lucy didn’t even notice. She went
to work and she quickly got on the mur-
der case like the rest of Tennant’s team.

They were investigating the death of Petty Officer Ben Ioane. Ben was visiting the island to watch
his brother play in a high football game. He was thrown off the balcony up high. And died in-
stantly.

But there was a problem with investigating this crime. Ben’s family didn’t want to talk to cops.
Ben’s brother Titus was willing to open up and they learned that he had invited his brother to
the game, but these young men’s father refused to see or talk to Ben. Ben enlisted without telling
his parents. He sorta took the first opportunity he could to run away from home as far as he
could. Ben’s time in the navy did that. He was an exemplary sailor. Tennant has read only good
things about him. She wanted to find out who killed him. It was his just family that didn’t seem
to care he was dead. Ben’s father said that he hadn’t seen Ben since he ran away to join the
navy. Which was a lie.

Ben visited his father’s worksite at least three times since he came back to the island. His
father works in construction and he works for some scary people. He works for the Koa brothers.
The brothers have been accused of various crimes over the years. Nothing was ever proven. But
they had no problem with threatening federal agents. Kai and Lucy went to the worksite to talk
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to Mr. Ioane. The men at the site were all hostile towards them. They even threatened them. If
it hadn’t been for an old acquaintance of Kai being there, they might have had to draw their
weapon. And so Kai and Lucy quickly fled from the scene.

They tracked down Ben’s father. They questioned him about his son. He basically said his son
has been dead to him since he enlisted and that was all the information he was willing to give.
The most they got out of it was that Ben liked to stick his nose in where it didn’t belong. The
team looked into it. They realized that Ben has been visiting the construction site because he
was trying to get information on the Koa brothers. He wasn’t trying to reconnect with his father.
Something the father confirmed. Ben was also talking to old football foes from back when he was
in high school. He ran into guy at his brother’s football match.

The team brought that guy in. He claimed that Ben ruined his future by busting up his
knee and that he killed Ben. Something that the team didn’t believe. They thought it a little too
convenient that Ben began looking into the Koa brothers and that’s when out of nowhere an old
rival chooses to kill him. The man confessing also explicitly stated that he wasn’t hired to kill
Ben. He supposedly killed him all on his own. But no one believed him. Tennant used her ex-
husband to get Ben’s brother alone. Titus was willing to talk. It seems he’s a very gifted football
player. The Koa brothers noticed it. They offered his father work, they made sure he had the best
material, and all they wanted was cut from once he makes it big.

The Koa brothers considered it an investment. But they were demanding more and more as
time went by. Titus was so concerned that he called his brother. He asked for help. Ben showed
up back on the island and he tried to make things right. The Koa brothers didn’t like that. They
had Ben killed and they were using fear tactics to keep Mr. Ioane’s mouth shut. NCIS were later
able to connect the Koa brothers to Ben’s murder. They went to the construction site to make
arrests when they found Mr. Ioane.

The Koa brothers were going to kill him in retaliation for his son talking to the feds. But
Kai knew who told them. He and the others took down the brothers. They rescued Ben’s father.
They sent the brothers to prison and Kai also learned that not only did his friend rat him out to
the brothers, but he also was the one running their operation. Ernie found all the money being
funneled back to a man named AJ. AJ and Kai knew each other from high school. They haven’t
talked for years before this case and yet now they were constantly seeing each other. First at the
worksite. Later, when AJ invited Kai to a thing with his family.

But Kai knew the truth. He knew AJ was guilty of criminal conspiracy and he wasn’t shocked
when the Koa brothers later died in prison.
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Changing Tides

Season 2
Episode Number: 28
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday October 24, 2022
Writer: Noah Evslin
Director: Lionel Coleman
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Anthony Ruivivar (Daniel Tennant), Seana
Kofoed (Medical Examiner Carla Chase), Cher Alvarez (Bam Bam),
Cassandra Blair (Amanda Lee), Stacey Hinnen (Bartender), Alexander
Grace (Jasper Kanahele), Nicole Rombaoa (Gabby), Kyle Leatherberry
(Tyler Malone)

Production Code: HAW206
Summary: When a Marine Corporal dies in a tide pool after being exposed to fen-

tanyl, the NCIS team must quickly find the source of the drugs. Also,
Alex talks to his parents about taking a gap year and Ernie reveals
personal news to Lucy.

Marine Corporal Jasper Kanahele and his
girlfriend are on the beach, and when
Jasper goes into the tidepool for less than
a minute, he winds up dead.

Alex pitches the idea to Jane and
Daniel about taking a gap year and
traveling with Cassandra. Alex wants to
use the money that his grandparents
gave him for college, and Daniel is livid.
Commander Chase is investigating the
tide pool contents and informs Kai that
Jasper died of a fentanyl overdose. Lucy
finds 14 bags of fentanyl that washed up

on 3 beaches, and now Jane has to warn Hawaii’s tourism board to keep tourists away from the
beaches for now.

Jane orders that everyone carries a drug overdose kit on them and heads to meet up with
Kate. Kate informs Jane that the FBI has information that the Caldero Cartel may be selling or
manufacturing fentanyl on the island. Ernie tells Lucy that his father passed away one month
ago but blows off her condolences, saying it’s not a big deal, even though he seems bothered.

Ernie determines that the source of fentanyl in the water is coming from less than 2 miles
from the beach, out in the ocean. Ernie sends a drone over the area and spots something on the
ocean floor. Without hesitation, Kai dives in and finds an airplane with a dead pilot inside.

Commander Chase informs Jesse that the pilot, Stanley Chao, has been dead for 6 weeks.
Jane tells Alex that he’s 18 and can do what he wants, but the money his grandparents gave him
for college is only for college. If Alex wants to do the gap year, he will have to pay for it himself. Kai
and Lucy meet up with Bam-Bam, who explains that the plane was definitely carrying fentanyl.

Bam-Bam tells the team that somebody dove down and tried to salvage the wreckage to pull
out the fentanyl. There should have been a hundred kilos on the plane, but whoever tried to
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retrieve it released the bags of fentanyl into the ocean. Jane tells the team that they need to find
whoever is trying to sell the fentanyl they were able to retrieve from the plane’s wreckage.

Jesse and Lucy show up at a bar to question its owner about anyone trying to sell large
amounts of fentanyl. He tells them Cameron Marks, who works at Journey Hawaii Tours, was
in the bar yesterday doing exactly just that. The bartender kicked Cameron out. Jesse and Lucy
head to Journey Hawaii Tours to question Cameron. Cameron is already dead and tied to his
office chair.

Commander Chase is on the scene, investigating Cameron’s death. She determines that some-
one tied Cameron down and injected him with enough drugs to kill him. Lucy finds out that
Cameron had two partners, Amanda Lee and Tyler Malone. The team traces Amanda and Tyler’s
phones, and Jane sends Jesse and Kai to bring them in for questioning.

Lucy offers a non-judgmental ear to Ernie for him to vent any emotions he feels over his
father’s death. Ernie blows her off again, instead focusing on the case. Ernie tracks Stanley’s
flight path history and determines that Stanley made a secret stop on every trip.

Jesse explains to Kai why he is struggling emotionally during this case. Jesse lost two team
members to fentanyl overdoses working a case similar to this in his past. When they arrive at the
cabin where Amanda and Tyler’s Phone pings, they find it up in flames. Amanda goes for a walk,
and when she returns, she freaks out that Tyler is still inside the cabin. No one was inside the
cabin, Tyler is missing, and the fire was no accident.

Amanda explains that she is the one that found the plane, but Tyler and Cameron saw an
opportunity too good to pass up. Ernie and Bam-Bam tell the team that the fentanyl is 100%
pure, and there’s only one place in Hawaii that would have the resources to make pure fentanyl.
Jesse and Kai head to the location to see if they can spot any cartel activity.

Kai stays behind while Jesse enters the cartel’s camp to find Tyler. Jesse finds Tyler, but as
they are leaving, Jesse gets caught. Jane orders Kai to enter with his backup and save Tyler and
Jesse. Jesse had to give Tyler his respirator mask, and in the process of the fight, Jesse ingested
fentanyl. He begins to OD, and Kai has to inject Jesse with Narcan to save his life.

Kai informs Jane that Alex just got a job at his parent’s restaurant. Lucy tries again to talk to
Ernie about his father, and this time he opens up. He tells her that his father was never around.
Ernie even attended college in his father’s neighborhood, only to find out that his father had
moved out right before he started college. Lucy tells Ernie that his father missed out on knowing
a great man.
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Vanishing Act

Season 2
Episode Number: 29
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday November 14, 2022
Writer: Mike Diaz, Jan Nash
Director: Diana C. Valentine
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Adam David Thompson (Mitchell Smith), Lucian Perez (Theo Acosta),
Catherine Kresge (Allie Acosta), Sammy Liddell III (Scared Kid)

Production Code: HAW207
Summary: When the mother of a young boy goes missing, the NCIS team sets out

to find him and learns they aren’t the only ones searching for him.

Lucy has been selected for the Special
Agent Afloat position. She applied last
year after she broke up with Whistler and
didn’t get it. It went to someone else.
The someone else had a recent medical
emergency. Lucy’s name floated to the top
for replacement and yet she didn’t want
to take the job. She liked her current
position. She loves her co-workers. She
was also in a committed relationship with
Whistler again and she didn’t want to
jeopardize it. All of these reasonings were
something Tennant understood. Tennant

has been in a position herself where she had to travel for work and she ultimately took her job
with NCIS in order to stay in one place long enough to raise her family.

Tennant told Lucy to think about it before making a decision. Lucy would have asked the
others for their input as well if they hadn’t caught a case first. Tennant and her team were
looking for Allie Acosta. Allie’s son reported her missing. He said his mom went on her usual run
with their dog and their dog came back to the apartment, but no mom. The team looked into it
and it was clear that Allie was abducted. They tracked down her kidnapper. He told them that
he was a bounty hunter. He was arresting Allie and he had her in the trunk of his car. The guy
came out of the car to show his hands when out of nowhere Allie snuck into the driver’s seat and
took off.

Allie ran away from NCIS. She doesn’t want to be rescued. She wants to go on the run. Allie
Acosta was really Allison Perez. She was wanted for embezzlement by the FBI. She escaped while
out on parole. She’s been on the run for the past eleven years. No one in her life knew about her
past. Her husband was a sailor on a submarine. He told his stepson Theo that if he ever needed
help that he should come to Pearl Harbor and ask the sailors there for help. Which Theo did. Its
why NCIS became involved and its why they were set on finding Allie. They tried to tell Theo as
gently as possible that his mother ran away because she didn’t know they were the good guys.
And he seemed to take it well.

Theo was told that they were going to get him a place to stay through the Family Advocacy
Group. Only Theo’s chief concern was about homework and so Jesse took him to his school to
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pick up his homework, but Theo ran away from him and Theo also tried to hide from two scary
looking guys that were also looking for him. Jesse found him before those other guys could. He
asked Theo why he ran. Theo told him that he was in danger. Theo admitted that he tried to run
off to find his mom on his own and he also said that before he could he noticed that he was being
followed by two guys. None of them were the bounty hunter.

Jesse took Theo back to Pearl Harbor. He questioned him. Theo admitted he’s been in com-
munication with his mom and that she wants him to meet up with her before she goes on the run
again. It turns out she was messaging him through his gaming system. Theo handed over his
game to Jesse. They then messaged Allie by telling her that they had Theo safe. Allie told them
that she was innocent of the crime and that she had proof. She asked to meet up with them.
They agreed to a place and unfortunately they were followed. The bounty hunter went after Allie.
She tried to run away again when those two scary dudes grabbed her and threw her in the back
of a car.

But the team had been looking into Allie. She never used the twenty million dollars she
supposedly stole from her employers and there was something shady about the executives at her
old company. They went on to build another firm after their first one went bankrupt. They then
had to file for bankruptcy again because again someone again embezzled money from it. Allie
might have been telling the truth that someone else embezzled money the first time and the two
men grabbing her sure weren’t bounty hunters. They were hired thugs. They knew how to ditch
a car. They just didn’t know to turn off the tracker on the gaming system.

NCIS used that to track down Allie’s location. She was back at her apartment and the team
figured those thugs wanted the evidence Allie must have collected. The team traveled there. They
spotted Allie with the thugs through the neighbor’s window. Jesse made an amazing flying leap
from one balcony to another. He surprised the thugs. He also created a diversion while Kai kicked
down the front door. Together they took care of the thugs. They also rescued Allie. They got her
proof that she hadn’t embezzled the money and while she may still be in trouble for running —
she was able to see her son and reassure him. It also helped that her husband was coming back
to shore soon. And that way Theo still has family even if his mother still goes to prison.

Lucy meanwhile made a decision about the job. She talked to everyone about it. Including
Whistler. She then knew that taking the job would be right for her. And it was only going to be
for a couple of months.
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Curtain Call

Season 2
Episode Number: 30
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday November 21, 2022
Writer: Yakira Chambers
Director: Christine Moore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Linc Hand (Charlie 1), Danny Kang (Spe-
cial Agent Alan Lem), Charlie Hudson III (Duggy Atwater), Sierra
Swartz (Cassandra Souza), Adam Karst (Harom), Elena Evangelo (Jan-
ice Motts), Alicia Kaori (Emma Rose), Don Nahaku (Tran), Aleks Pevec
(Petty Officer Kendall Wells), Moku Durant (Frederick), Catherine Ann
Restivo (Mabel’s Sister #1), Carolyn Samuelson (Mabel’s Sister #2),
Anastasia Edwards (Mabel’s Sister #3), Tyler Kealakai (Mabel’s Sister
#4), Sara Savusa (Mabel’s Sister #5), Josh Squire (Opera Goer)

Production Code: HAW208
Summary: When a naval officer is murdered while moonlighting in community

theater, the NCIS team recruits a familiar face to help lead them to
a ruthless international killer. Also, Kai enlists Whistler to open an
investigation into an old friend turned criminal.

Lucy was away. She was off being an
NCIS Agent on a deployed ship. She’ll be
back in six months and until then the
team has had to deal with some temps.
They had a new agent with them tonight
when a body fell out of the ceiling during
a play. The victim was identified as Petty
Officer Second Class Kendall Wells. He
was the Navy weatherman. Kendall was
also in the play. He wasn’t a very good
actor. He was distracted all the time and
he often showed up to the rehearsals late.
According to rumors, he was tapped to be

in an MCU movie. The team had no idea what to do with that, but they didn’t think a poor excuse
of a weatherman would be in a huge blockbuster.

Or that someone would kill him over it. Kendall had been murdered. There were signs of
him putting up a fight before he could be entangled in ropes and was strangled to death. The
strangulation was highly suspicious. It launched the murder investigation and so Tennant and
her people caught it. They also tapped Alan to be with them. Alan got held hostage last year. It
was admittedly by a friendly NCIS agent as well as by a cell phone yet the guy has been bouncing
around departments ever since. Alan was with the team when they learned that Kendall was a
part of a secret mission. He was working out of an area known as "the hole".

It was known as that because the place was so top secret that it was never put on any map.
Jesse, Kai, and Alan went to the hole. They heard gunshots. They went running into the building
and it turns out they were interrupting filming. The hole was being used as a film studio. It’s
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where the government made recruitment videos and other training videos for soldiers. The actors
were all soldiers. They’ve been given high clearance. The videos could be quite sensitive. They’re
only shown to friendly soldiers. Or at least that was the intention if not the follow-through.
The truth was that someone saw a video that Kendall was in and they went after him to get
information.

Kendall was tortured before he died. Someone used a stun gun or similar device on him.
Kendall was killed once he gave his killer whatever information they wanted and he wasn’t the
only one. Another soldier also died. They were also tortured before death. The two victims were
only ever in one video together. It was the video about what to do if the safe house was breached
by outside forces. The video only had two actors and one director. The team went looking for that
director. His name was Lennox Kay. He still lived on the island. They went to his house only to
find the door open. They pulled their guns and went rushing in. And found Kay dead.

They also found someone standing over him. The person they found wasn’t the killer. He was
Charlie 1. He was Black Ops. He was known to Tennant and he identified the killer. The killer’s
name was Harom. Charlie 1 didn’t have Harom’s real name. Nor did he reveal his own real name.
He just goes by Charlie 1. Tennant cleared him. She also demanded the full story or as much
as he could tell her. He told her that he trained Harom. Harom went on to become a mercenary.
He’s now been hired to breach a safe house. He saw the American military video about what
to do when breached. He also tracked down the actors and asked them how to get around the
safeguards.

But Harom was still after someone in particular. He killed the director and the two actors, and
he then wanted to capture the guy who wrote the script. The one who runs the program on all
safe houses. The guy was located in Mexico. NCIS didn’t have jurisdiction down there. Charlie 1
said he would go there and rescue this Duggy person. Tennant refused to wait on the sidelines.
She joined Charlie 1 in looking for Duggy. They traveled to Mexico together. They went on to find
the safehouse. They found Duggy. They warned him that his life was in danger and he instantly
understood the threat. Duggy was in charge of too many safehouses around the world. He knew
he shouldn’t be captured by enemy forces.

Duggy was talking over options with Tennant and Charlie-1 when a group began to breech
the safehouse. Charlie-1 was instantly shot in the leg. But Tennant came up with a plan. She
arranged for a bomb to go off when the bad guys came in and that took care of most of them. Just
not Harom. Harom tried to abduct Duggy one more time. Charlie-1 hit him with a grenade before
Tennant ultimately shot him. Harom was done. He was captured. Duggy was safe and Charlie-1
got treatment for his injury. Charlie-1 even revealed his real first name. It was Charlemagne.
Otherwise known as Charles the first. His mother was a history teacher and fell in love with the
name.

And so Tennant returned home in a good mood. Only to find out her son had his much older
girlfriend sleep over at the house while she was gone.

And Kai went to Whistler to open an investigation into his former friend, AJ. But the investi-
gation revealed that Kai’s own father has been taking money from AJ and potentially took part
in his criminal enterprise.
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Desperate Measures

Season 2
Episode Number: 31
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday December 05, 2022
Writer: Ron McGee
Director: Kevin J. Berlandi
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase), Moses Goods (Wally), Ian
Verdun (Santino), Erica Luttrell (DEA Agent Kendra Vreeland), Emer-
son Brooks (DEA Agent Jerry Covington), Michael Marc Friedman
(DEA Agent Ned Ross), Mike Tarnofsky (Russ Novak), Marianette
Kauahikaua (Yoga Instructor)

Production Code: HAW209
Summary: Commander Chase is abducted from her home by an Army Ranger

accused of murder, the NCIS team must act quickly to find her.

When Commander Chase misses morn-
ing yoga with Ernie and won’t answer any
of his calls, he informs Jane that some-
thing may be wrong. Kai and Jesse ac-
company Ernie to Commander Chase’s
house. When they spot broken glass and
a knife stabbed into the floor, Jesse calls
Jane to have her declare the house a
crime scene.

Ernie runs the prints found at Com-
mander Chase’s home and gets a match
to Army Ranger Sergeant Owen Santino.
There is a warrant out for Owen for kid-

napping DEA Agent Bree Foster. The DEA won’t give Ernie any details about Bree’s kidnapping
or association with Owen.

The vehicle that is carrying Commander Chase comes to a stop and Owen pulls her out of the
trunk. He drags Commander Chase inside an abandoned building and opens up a deep freezer.
Inside is Bree’s dead body!

Kai and Jesse have very little information about Bree’s involvement in the DEA or with Owen.
All they know is she is on the DEA Task Force for Black Market opioids. Even Kate receives the
silent treatment from the DEA when she tries to get any information about Bree that could help
the team figure out where Commander Chase is.

Owen claims that he did not kill Bree and he is demanding that Commander Chase prove
that he’s not the Killer. Commander Chase does not believe Owen but is willing to perform an
autopsy.

Kate decides to bring Jane with her to the DEA’s office to see if she can get any information
with Jane by her side. They meet Bree’s three partners; Terry Covington, Kendra Vreeland, and
Ned Ross. They inform Jane and Kate that Bree is not missing, she’s dead! Owen was Bree’s
informant and they believe Owen killed Bree.

One of Bree’s partners shows Jane and Kate a surveillance video of Owen arriving at Bree’s
home late in the night and the bloody crime scene photo early in the morning. Even though
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Owen was cooperating, CID was going to dishonorably discharge him. The task force believes
Owen killed Bree out of revenge.

Ned drops the bombshell that Owen kidnapped Bree’s dead body and then kidnapped Com-
mander Chase afterward. Ernie is a nervous wreck and desperate to help bring Commander
Chase home safely. Ernie finds Owen’s best friend, Justin Taylor, who died last year. The Army
ruled it a suicide, but Owen was convinced it wasn’t. Commander Chase performed the autopsy
and found that Justin died of an accidental anaphylactic reaction. Commander Chase’s medical
opinion is the only one that Owen trusts.

Kendra arrives at the team’s office with footage from Bree’s crime scene. Kai interrupts with
the name Russ Novak, Owen’s dealer. He targets Army Veterans with addictions as the perfect
customer.

Commander Chase lures Owen in to look at Bree’s wounds and puts her scalpel up to his
neck, making Owen the hostage. She believes him when he says, yet again, that he did not kill
Bree. Owen claims Bree is the only one that helped him. Chase puts the scalpel away and offers
her assistance in proving that he did not kill DEA Agent Bree Foster.

Kai and Jesse figure out Russ’s location and head to bring him in for questioning. When Russ
sees the NCIS Agents, he flees. As Jesse and Kai chase Russ down, DEA Agents arrive on scene,
only to shoot and kill Russ immediately.

Jesse confronts Ned about killing Russ when NCIS needed to question him. Owen believes
that his dealer and supplier set him up. Owen takes Buprenorphine in front of Commander
Chase yet she still does not believe him when he tells her that he is 21 days sober. He explains
that Bree helped him get sober. Commander Chase tells Russ that she understands and has
dealt with her own demons.

Ernie tells Kate the location where he calculated that Owen would have taken Commander
Chase, the Eva Forest Preserve. Kai, Jesse, and Jane find the building where Owen is holed up
on the reserve and Jane finds Commander Chase. Commander Chase tells Jane that she believes
Owen was set up.

Jane offers to take Commander Chase’s place as Owen’s hostage, so Commander Chase can
get Bree’s body back to her lab and autopsied properly. Owen agrees to Jane’s deal. Kate tells
Ernie that Bree believed George Bedalyan was the Black Market opioid supplier. Ernie thinks
someone in the DEA kept George’s name from the case files.

Jane convinces Owen to turn himself in and as soon as Owen walks out the door with Jane,
DEA takes possession of him. Jane is worried about Owens’s life and believes one of the DEA
agents Is helping George Bedalyn. It turns out to be Kendra from the DEA. Commander Chase
and Ernie celebrate her safe return with drinks in her lab.
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Deep Fake (2)

Season 2
Episode Number: 32
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday January 09, 2023
Writer: Christopher Silber
Director: Jimmy Whitmore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Gary Cole (NCIS Special Agent Alden Parker), Brian Dietzen (Dr. Jimmy
Palmer), Chris O’Donnell (Special Agent "G" Callen), LL Cool J (Spe-
cial Agent Sam Hanna), Dawn Olivieri (Melina Devlin), James Morri-
son (Norman Dell), Maya Stojan (Morgan Miller), Luke Deal (Black Site
Guard #1)

Production Code: HAW210
Summary: Tennant, Jimmy Palmer and Sam Hanna find themselves captured by

a woman claiming to be a CIA agent demanding intel from the team.
Also, Jesse, Ernie, Whistler and Alden Parker learn about an asset
that arrived in Hawai’i who could be connected to several overseas
assassinations.

The first part of the episode was aired as
the NCIS episode S20E10 titled Too Many
Cooks.

Continuing the three part NCIS saga,
three members of NCIS had been ab-
ducted. Special Agent in Charge Jane
Tennant, NCIS Medical Examiner Jimmy
Palmer, and Special Agent Sam Hana.
Those three were taken from Virginia and
put on a plane.

They didn’t know where they landed at
first. But they were able to determine the
location from various things they could

detect. Like the call to prayer was played too frequently to actually be in the Middle East. Like
the scent of the air had a hit of jasmine. Like how the show of force by their abductors were really
just that. A show. The abductors were actually the CIA.

The hint of jasmine meant they were on Hawaii. The thugs that wanted to question them were
literally on the same side as them. It was just the DOD, that wanted to cover themselves after
classified Pentagon files were stolen, didn’t want to go through the proper. They didn’t want to go
through Director Vance.

Its why they kidnapped a member from the Hawaii office, the LA office, and the Virginia office.
The CIA wanted to know which team found out what and how its all connected to known terrorist
Simon Williams. Williams was guilty of possibly everything one can imagine. And all the federal
agencies were after him.

The CIA had abducted the three people on domestic soil where they didn’t have the juris-
diction. They even had the nerve to say they did it for the NCIS Agents’ own good. The woman
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claiming to be CIA Officer Melina Devlin told the trio that Simon Williams had spies on the inside
of government.

He was allegedly spying on NCIS and he posed a threat to them and that’s why they were
taken. But Tennant got one phone call before she was interrogated about Simon Williams. She
called Parker to find out that he was in Hawaii and that he himself was also talking to a woman
claiming to be CIA Officer Melina Devlin.

There couldn’t be two Melina Devlins. So, someone was lying, but which one? The one inter-
rogating Tennant or the one that showed up at the Hawaii field office demanding access to their
files. The one with Parker was interested when Simon Williams’s man showed up dead on Hawaii.

The dead man was identified as Mel Cano. Tennant’s team along with Special Agent Parker
was investigating why he was killed, what his connection to everything else that happened, and
how was Professor Harding involved? Tennant and Parker both fought back against the two
Melinas. And while Parker’s got away, Tennant was able to arrest hers.

Tennant, Sam and Jimmy returned to Hawaii NCIS headquarters with their prisoners. Ten-
nant’s Melina was claiming to be the real Melina. She said that the other woman was actually
Morgan Miller. A contractor within the CIA. Melina claimed that Morgan Miller might be dirty and
actually works for Simon Williams. She demanded to talk to her supervisor, but no one wanted to
trust her around a phone. Parker was tasked by Director Vance to return to Virginia with Melina
in custody while back on Hawaii Tennant was following up on Mel Cano’s murder. She connected
his death to someone who only existed on paper.

His name was Norman Dell. He disappeared. But Tennant later found him. Tennant had
gotten one piece of information from Melina that was crucial. She found out that CIA operatives
use a site known as Haven LTD to get false backgrounds and fake papers proving they were
someone else. It was located on Hawaii. Tennant and Jesse went there and there they found
Norman Dell. When they questioned him to see if he was Simon Williams, he admitted they were
standing in Simon Williams. Simon Williams isn’t a person. It’s a program. It’s a CIA assassin
program that officially got shut down back in 1993 when a new administration came into power.

But suddenly, after a few years, someone restarted the program. This time they weren’t just
killing enemies of the American government. They were also killing friendlies. Someone had found
out about the program and activated it again to get CIA contractors to kill for them. Its like the
guy that died in Virginia said before he passed. They were all Simon Williams. Norman Dell was
a part of the original program with Professor Dale Harding. Everyone else in the program was
slowly being killed off because the DOD had opened an investigation into the program and there
were going to be hearings.

Norman Dell found out people were dying. He went to the Simon Williams bunker to destroy
files and help keep one other person involved alive. And that’s where Tennant and Jesse found
them. And that’s where Morgan Miller found them.

Norman Dell still blew up the bunker and he was killed for it. Morgan got away. But Ernie
was able to restore a picture of the original members of the Simon Williams programs. And the
final survivor turned out to be Admiral Killbride of the Los Angeles Office.

The episode will conclude as NCIS: Los Angeles episode S14E10 titled A Long Time Coming.
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Rising Sun

Season 2
Episode Number: 33
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Monday January 16, 2023
Writer: Megan Bacharach, Matt Bosack
Director: Christoph Schrewe
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Mark Gessner (CGIS Agent Neil Pike), Moses Goods (Wally), Jonah
Ho’okano (A.J. Hale), MASUMI (Yumi Sato), Bruce Locke (Oda Sato),
Takuma Anzai (Kenji Sato), Vince Shin (Track Suit), Eric Mita (Taka
Machida)

Production Code: HAW211
Summary: When Special Agent Pike is ambushed while working undercover with

a local Japanese crime family, the team must find the person respon-
sible for orchestrating the attacks. Also, Kai goes deeper into his in-
vestigation regarding an old friend turned criminal.

CGIS Special Agent Neil Pike was doing
a job as an undercover. He works for the
Coast Guard. He was technically a federal
agent and so he was allowed to go under-
cover as a port worker while he tried to
get information on a yakuza crime boss
smuggling things into the country. He
thought he would play cards or smoke
some cigars with a couple of low-level
thugs.

He didn’t suspect that a meeting in
a shady warehouse would go wrong. But
that proved to be almost a fatal mistake.

Pike was at this meeting when he saw the glare of a gun and got down in time when a shooter
took out everyone else at this supposed meeting.

One of the victims was a sailor. His death sparked an NCIS investigation. The tenant and her
team were called in and that’s when they found Pike at the scene pretending to be someone else.
He even let himself get arrested. Tennant made sure that Pike was signed over into her custody
and once they were clear — he came clean.

He said he was undercover. Which she guessed. He also said that it’s been a rough three days
for him. He got so lost in his cover that he claimed to no longer know when his cover began or
how it all started.

Tennant made him snap out of that. She questioned him about what’s been happening. He
said that the Coast Guard believes some Department of Defense weapons had been stolen and
sold to gangs. They found out which port these weapons were coming through.

Pike then pretended to be a guy that could help. He really just wanted to take down the
yakuza, but he got close enough to make a deal when this shooting happened. Pike had no idea
who would want those men dead. Except he kept his cover and won a new meeting with the crime
boss.
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The man’s name was Kenji Sato. Sato was a dangerous man. Pike thought he was a little too
dangerous for him and he tried to back out of the meeting. His courage was failing him. Only
they reminded him that he was a Coast Guard Agent.

They told him they needed information on the guy and so Pike went to the meeting and he
almost got killed for the second time. Someone must have either figured out he was a fed or they
thought he was involved in the shooting he survived. Either way, Pike’s cover was blown. And he
went back to being a Coast Guard.

Pike put them on a boat heading towards where he thought the guns were being held. Only
they didn’t find guns in the hidden compartment. They found a man. A man who had heard about
the gang war brewing on the island. The Machidas against his family, the Satos. He wanted to
meet with the Machidas. Broker a peace. He wanted to keep people from dying and sadly this
man was the first to die. But Tennant and her team didn’t think his death was tied to Machida’s.
The Machidas wouldn’t dirty their hands to do something so low as a car bomb when they were
supposed to be talking about peace.

There was just one war going on. The one Kenji had with literally everyone else. He wanted to
stoke a fight. He wanted to keep stealing weapons from the DOD because he was taking down
some of his own people with those weapons and he was also killing Machida people as well. Kenji
was wiping out everyone on his way to ultimate power. He was even willing to kill his sister. She
went to the meeting with the Machidas to make peace in her father’s name and her own brother
almost shot her. what saved her was Tennant and Pike.

Kenji just kept shooting and shooting until he was stopped. He was stopped by NCIS. They
shot him and he ended up going to the hospital. While he was in the hospital, his sister took
control of their empire and she practically named herself the new crime boss. She could be
reasoned with and her brother just couldn’t.

After the case wrapped up, Kai sought out his dad. He told him that the FBI needed full access
to the restaurant to see if it was used in any money laundering scheme. The FBI was making a
case against Kai’s old buddy AJ. And Kai’s dad helped by roping in other business owners that
AJ supposedly helped.
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Shields Up

Season 2
Episode Number: 34
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Monday January 23, 2023
Writer: Jan Nash, Amy Rutberg
Director: Norman Buckley
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase),
Wes Chatham (Brother Ellis Kane), Juani Feliz (CID Summer West-
more), Greg Finley (Sgt. Justin Baxter), Sharinna Allan (Corporal
Nadiya Grange), Sierra Swartz (Cassandra), Aaron Densley (Captain
Willem Dennison), Dollar Tan (Corporal Yang), Moise Amadou (Marine)

Production Code: HAW212
Summary: When an elite special forces Marine captain is murdered, the NCIS

team finds a suspect in a really unusual place.

Tennant’s son was sick. He was so sick
that Tennant had to compel him to stay
home. He actually wanted to go to school
because he had a big test scheduled and
so Tennant had to talk him into stay-
ing home. He needed to hydrate. He also
needed to rest.

Alex felt so horrible that he didn’t even
argue with her. Which was a first for him.
He chose to stay home without a fight and
Tennant went off to work. Her team was
investigating the mysterious death of Ma-
rine Willem Dennison. He was a hardcore

soldier.
Willem was part of group of elite soldiers known as the Black Diamonds. He was also found

with a gun on him. Although that wasn’t the murder weapon used to kill him. Willem was beaten
and shot. It seemed odd that he wanted to go off alone only to run into trouble and so the leading
theory was that he was in trouble before he went to that location.

He was probably meeting someone there. The trouble turned all too real and he was killed
because he was in trouble. There was just one problem with that theory. There wasn’t anyone in
Willem’s life who noticed anything wrong.

They all seemed to believe that Willem was acting normally. His group was doing well. They
just had a successful mission and yet not long after returning stateside — people began dropping
out of the group. It didn’t make sense this would happen after being so successful and so Tennant
looked into former members who were willing to talk.

She found Sergeant Ellis Kane. He was known as Brother Ellis Kane now. He joined a
monastery. He now tends to the bees. He’s made peace with his life and he claimed to wish
nothing but the best for Willem.

Only the team learned some hot gossip. They learned that Willem and Ellis fought on Ellis’s
last day. It got physical. Someone had to break up the fight. Ellis stormed off very angry and
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a couple of years later it was Willem who was found dead less than two miles away from the
monastery. Tennant questioned Ellis about that. Ellis claimed he was in his room all night on
the night Willem died. But that turned out to be a lie. They later found security footage of Ellis
using a payphone a couple of miles away on the night in question.

The team were trying to figure out why Ellis would kill Willem when they got help. They got
help from a fellow investigator. It turns out Ellis had claimed that a fellow member of the Black
Diamonds had started a fire to kill people because they backtalked him. Those people died in the
fire. The Black Diamonds were able to quickly act and rescue everyone else and the person that
Ellis named got rewarded. It was Master Sergeant Justin Baxter. Now, the team talked to Baxter.
He never mentioned anything about accusations and it did seem odd that Willem reached out to
Ellis right before he died.

Did Willem have a change of heart? Back when the incident first happened, Ellis went to
Willem telling him that he saw Baxter start the fire. Willem didn’t believe him. They got into a
fight. Ellis left the group and joined a monastery. But he reached out to Ellis in the lead up to his
death. Did he suddenly believe him about Baxter? Or did he come to suspect that Ellis sent the
fire himself and blamed it all on Baxter? Tennant and her team suddenly had two suspects in
Willem’s murder. They went back to the monastery to ask Ellis why he lied about his whereabouts
when they ran into someone spying on Ellis.

They chased after the person. They lost him or her without ever seeing them properly. Except
with the help of Sergeant Summer Westmore of CID, they were able to picture what really hap-
pened on that mission overseas. It turns out it wasn’t Ellis that witnessed Baxter start the fire. It
was another Marine. Her name was Nadia. She was too scared to come forward and so Ellis did
it for her. He pretended to be the witness. He later told Jesse that Willem didn’t believe him at
first. Not until a few years pass by and he noticed something wasn’t adding up with Baxter and
so he went to Baxter.

Willem wanted to give Baxter the chance to turn himself. But Baxter chose to kill Willem
instead. He was also trying to cover up what he did by killing the only witness to talk and
that witness was Ellis. It was Nadia. Baxter followed Ellis. He knew that Ellis was hiding Nadia
because he’s been searching for Nadia ever since he killed their boss and when Ellis finally came
clean about hiding Nadia and even bringing Jesse to see Nadia in person — they were followed.
Baxter attacked the trio. They fought back. They were able to subdue Baxter and he was arrested.
He will finally face justice for the things he did to people overseas.

And Ellis thanked Jesse for his help. He ran away from his problems when he joined the
monastery and Jesse reminded him that some things are worth fighting for.

And Tennant returned to her sick son who was also nursing a broken heart.
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Misplaced Targets

Season 2
Episode Number: 35
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired: Monday February 06, 2023
Writer: Yalun Tu
Director: Larry Teng
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Moses Goods (Wally Holman), Danielle Zalopany (Hina), Jonah
Ho’okano (A.J. Hale), Lauren Cook (Det. Dalia Reed), Enisha Brew-
ster (Tracy Meadows), Kevin Csolak (Petty Officer Gattman), Ar-
mando Acevedo (XO Marshall Ramirez), Jonathan R. Freeman (Clayton
Hickey), Diana Lu (Alana Hale), Manuel D. Baez Jr. (Paora Tasi), Andy
Dispensa (Petty Officer Calvin Lynch)

Production Code: HAW213
Summary: Following a close call at a meth lab explosion, the NCIS team learn one

of their own is being targeted. Lucy gets her first big case aboard her
aircraft carrier.

NCIS assisted Hawaii PD with a drug
bust. Everything was supposed to be sim-
ple. They go to a known meth lab and
they arrest everyone there. They thought
they were going to put the place out of
business, but someone else beat them to
it. The lab was rigged to blow. Kai saw the
device before he cleared the building. He
and the other officers were okay.

Only now they were looking for poten-
tial killers. The person cooking meth had
been arrested before the house blew up.
He mentioned that he had a crazy ex-

girlfriend. She’s been destroying his plants, spraying hateful words on his garage door, and so it
makes sense that she would want to kill him as part of her revenge.

But it wasn’t the ex-girlfriend. The drug dealer had put cameras all around the meth lab. It
showed that it wasn’t his ex trying to kill him and that the drug dealer wasn’t even the target.
The target was Kai. The Bomber didn’t detonate the bomb until he saw Kai go into the house.

He wanted to kill Kai and Kai survived. Kai’s team wasn’t going to let that man try again to
kill Kai. They went looking for their bomber. They soon learned that he has been following Kai
for weeks. He followed all over the island and so security footage from all over the place showed
when he was followed and to where.

They identified the bomber/stalker as being an errand boy for the Koa Brothers. Kai was the
one who brought a case against the Koa Brothers to the FBI and they must have found out about
it. They were now trying to kill the only one keeping this case alive — Kai.

Kai realized every witness he found and that included his own father was now in danger. Kai
wanted to run out and protect them himself. Tennant told him that was too dangerous for him.
They couldn’t give a potential killer another chance at killing his victim.
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Except Kai can be stubborn. He wanted to break the news to his family. So, he ignored
warnings about safety. He went straight to his father’s restaurant where he warned his dad and
sister that they had to take the day off today. He said they had to come with him where they
could be safe.

It was as he was explaining to them that it was dangerous that AJ Koa came into the restau-
rant. He came with a hired goon. He baited Kai into hitting him. But Kai got his family away from
AJ and he got yelled at by Tennant for punching AJ.

They were already building a case against AJ. They didn’t have to make it easier on him by
giving him an excuse for police overreach or persecution. So, the FBI made their first arrest.
They later arrested AJ’s wife, Alana. Alana’s name as well as her family’s names were on all the
documents connected to AJ’s business. He created a loophole for himself. He knew that if he ever
got arrested that it would come out that it was actually his wife’s name on everything. And so he
was hoping to save himself at the cost of his wife’s freedom.

Once Alana saw that she decided to help the feds arrest her husband. She told them how
AJ convinced her and her family to sign up for a trust that would set them up for life in case
anything were to happen to AJ. Alana didn’t know AJ was a drug kingpin. She turned on him
after she learned that. Kai thought he was one step closer to getting AJ. He went by his family’s
place. He tried to get to come with him and that’s when AJ showed up a second time. That time
AJ drew a gun on Kai. It got Kai chatty. He said that AJ has been wanting to kill him all day. And
that’s why he sent the henchman after him.

It turns out someone was trying to kill Kai because they tried to draw AJ out. The two were
once close friends. AJ would have shown up at the funeral. AJ was their target all along. Kai
realized that when AJ said that he never tried to kill Kai. He has no idea why Kai would arrest
his wife. That’s what he was angry about. But with the truth out, they heard the cars coming
to the restaurant and they dropped to the floor just long enough to survive the hail of bullets
coming their way. And AJ would have been killed but he was saved by Kai and the rest of NCIS.

Kai still went on to arrest AJ. AJ was going away for a long time and he’ll be joined by a rival
gang that tried to kill him.

Kai’s dad’s restaurant was a mess and it was going to take months to fix it all.
Lucy also finally caught a case during her time as an agent afloat. She solved an assault and

robbery. She also found out that the alleged victim was the real thief and that she embezzled
thousands before. And so Lucy solved two mysteries for the price of one.
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Silent Invasion

Season 2
Episode Number: 36
Season Episode: 14

Originally aired: Monday February 13, 2023
Writer: Mike Diaz
Director: Eric Fox Hays
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Jake Weber (Jim Carter), Seana Ko-
foed (Medical Examiner Chase), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant),
James Ferris (Sean Clark), Danny J. Gomez (Don Mercado), Kenan
Eames (Vinh), Joe Toro (Captain George Bernal), Joan Powers (Monica
Bernal), Jackie Dallas (Young Mom), Makenzie Wong (Scarlett)

Production Code: HAW214
Summary: When the murder of a captain and his wife echoes a previous case, the

NCIS team brings in a former team member to help determine if they
are dealing with a copycat killer.

Navy Captain Bernal and his wife were
murdered in their home. There had been
an intruder that managed to get past
their alarms without setting them off
when they entered or when they left. The
intruder also didn’t steal much.

They didn’t steal TVs or anything.
They went for smaller items. Their sole
intent in breaking in was to kill the peo-
ple inside. Both victims were killed al-
most identically. There were no signs of
sexual assault on either of the victims
and this whole case reminded Jesse of

another one. Jesse was reminded of a case from seven years ago that involved the murder of
Rebecca Fox.

Rebecca had been the daughter of an admiral. She had been killed just like the Bengals. Her
killer never set off the alarm as they were entering or leaving. They also took about twenty grand
in small items instead of going for the bigger stuff.

The only difference between Rebecca and Bernals was that NCIS had solved Rebecca’s death.
They found the culprit. He confessed to killing Rebecca. He’s now serving twenty to life and so
everyone theorized that he either told someone at the prison how he killed Rebecca and they were
a copycat. Or he deliberately asked someone on the outside to do it for him.

Clark was now in prison. Tennant went to go visit him and she asked him about Rebecca’s
murder. He said he was innocent. He claims he had always been innocent and that he had been
railroaded into giving a false confession. If he’s right, it means the real killer has been out there
the whole time.

Tennant had her people look into it. They checked the surveillance cameras when Clark was
being questioned by former NCIS Agent Jim Carter. There was a moment when Clark asked for a
lawyer and then the camera goes dark. It was like someone turned them off.
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They came back an hour later. By then, Carter had Clark signing a confession. No one knows
what happened in that hour or whether Clark ever got his lawyer. They just knew Carter got what
he wanted. He closed the case. Carter was no longer working with NCIS because he considered
himself a lone wolf. He didn’t care about his bosses or the line of command. He just did whatever
wanted until Tennant complained about him and it cost Carter his job. And so when Jesse
went to go ask Carter about that missing hour on the tape, Carter turned on Jesse because he
suspected that he had been sent by Tennant.

Carter dislike for Tennant was so legendary that he tried to make it her fault if Clark now
walks free after the Bernal murders. He even showed up uninvited to her house. He was blaming
her for costing him his job. He said he got the right man and that she needed to back off,
but Tennant suspected he pressured Clark into signing a false confession. Tennant suspected
that Carter was unethical throughout the entire investigation into Rebecca’s murder. There was
apparently a witness that Carter never included in his official files. Ernie had to find out about
it by digging into Carter’s old work email.

Carter has a thing with people in authority. Its why ever relationship has failed. Why he lost
his job. Why he got nowhere with the investigation into Rebecca’s death. There was a witness that
night that Carter dismissed because he was homeless and so Ernie went looking for the witness.
The guy turned his life around. He now works at the homeless shelter. He can also remember
what he saw. He saw a man in a hazmat suit climbing out of a second story window. It turns out
their killer broke in earlier that day and waited for his victims in the attic.

They got DNA from something he touched in the attic. They were running that while also
finding out that the killer waited in the Bernal’s attic as well. The tip from the former homeless
man proved that Clark wasn’t their killer. Their killer was Jeffrey Holland. He picks his victims
thanks to his sister. His sister was the underwriter at an insurance company that insured both
victims’ homes. Her brother would read her files and pick victims that way. He was a Petty
Officer with the Navy. He was the lowest on the totem pole and he wanted to lash out at people
in authority. It tuns out he has a lot in common with Carter.

Now, that they knew who he was. They went looking for him. He wasn’t at work. He wasn’t at
his own house. He was out picking a new victim. They traced his cell to a suburban area. They
cleared out everyone from their homes. Tennant overheard someone in the attic. She went back
into the house with Jesse and they had to shoot their way to getting their suspect. They were
forced to kill him.

Later, the DNA at Rebecca’s crime scene was proved to be a match for Holland. Holland did
kill her and an innocent man has spent seven years behind bars for something he didn’t do.

And Carter felt no remorse about that.
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Good Samaritan

Season 2
Episode Number: 37
Season Episode: 15

Originally aired: Monday February 27, 2023
Writer: Noah Evslin
Director: Larry Teng
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase),
Linc Hand (Charlie 1), Danny Kang (Special Agent Alan Lem), Lanny
Joon (Lieutenant Adrian Park), Greena Park (Bomi Seong), Suzanne
Green (Bystander), Kelsie Turner (Female Driver), Kasen Yahiku (Kid
#1), Kensi Lee Yahiku (Kid #2), Sean Rhee (Korean Operative #4)

Production Code: HAW215
Summary: When a Navy deserter accidentally comes out of hiding, his family be-

comes a target that drives the NCIS team and Charlie 1 to investigate
who is after them. Lucy surprises the team by returning to Hawai’i
from her agent afloat job early.

The episode begins with Lucy being back!
She returned early from Agent Afloat.
Lucy had to cut through a lot of red tape
to return a day early. She told Whistler
she came back because she missed ev-
eryone and that was sweet, but no one
was expecting her. They had planned a
great return party for her. It was sched-
uled the day she was supposed to arrive
and so they were doing their best to rear-
range things even as Lucy became suspi-
cious. Lucy could tell something was off.
The floater that filled in for her was dis-
appointed that he was off the new case.
The others were meeting up in Tennant’s

office without her.
Lucy didn’t know what they were planning. She just knew they were planning something.

They were horrible at hiding the fact they arranged a party for her and so it’s a good thing a new
case came around to distract everyone. They were looking into Navy Lieutenant Adrian Park.
Park disappeared several years ago as he was on the fast track to a great promotion and was
moving up the ranks. But there was nothing suspicious about his disappearance. There was
no information that leaked. There were no risk of state secrets. He was just gone one day with
warning.

Then he pops up on the island. He was seen in a video recuing a woman off a cliff and he
was identified from the video of this rescue. It had gone viral. Someone recognized Adrian. They
notified NCIS and NCIS went looking for the guy in Hawaii. It turns out Adrian was working at
a language school on the island. He was being paid in cash. He was renting in cash. He wasn’t
using his ID. He was just a living ghost. He wouldn’t even be in trouble if he hadn’t deserted his
post. And desertion comes with a prison sentence.
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When you’re a part of the military, you can’t decide your done and walk away. You have to give
notice. You have to receive an honorable or dishonorable discharge. Then you can walk away.
Adrian had skipped all of that. He just walked right off the job. He hadn’t even told his family
that he was leaving and so it was up to NCIS to arrest him. They eventually tracked down Adrian.
They arrested him. They also noticed that they had been followed. They thought that was weird
at first and were quick to dismiss it until it happened a second time.

Tennant’s people went to go search Adrian’s home. They came across a North Korean hit
squad there. They captured one and his friends killed him to keep him from talking. It was this
man’s autopsy that revealed he was North Korean. Before he disappeared, Adrian was working
in South Korea. They asked Adrian if he was a spy and he wasn’t. He also wasn’t living at that
place alone. Adrian was living with there with his partner. His partner was Bombi Seong. She
was a former North Korean spy. It was her job to act as a honeypot in order to get close enough
to Adrian to manipulate him.

What no one counted on was that they would genuinely fall in love. They fell in love and they
realized that they had to disappear. Bombi wouldn’t be allowed to defect from North Korea. Adrian
couldn’t risk them being found and so he walked away from his dream job. He disappeared. She
disappeared with him. They moved to Hawaii. They have two kids. They tried to start over and
then Adrian’s cover was blown. North Korea must have seen the video after it went viral. This in
turn let them know that Adrian was still alive and that he was in hiding. And so Bombi couldn’t
be far off.

The hit squad began following NCIS. They tried to get close to Adrian to find out what hap-
pened to Bombi. They wanted to kill her rather than let her live out her life in peace with Adrian.
Adrian told them everything after Tennant told him that the hit squad was in town. Adrian said
that they went on the run because Bombi didn’t want to go jail for espionage. She just wanted
to raise a family with him. He also begged Tennant not to arrest her. He said it would be cruel to
drag her away from two small kids and unfortunately that wasn’t up to Tennant.

Tennant has her own boss to answer to.
Tennant also received some help from an old friend, Charlie 1. Charlie 1 was the spy that

occasionally dropped in her life to help her out and he came after he heard about the hit squad
being on the island. His help came in handy after the North Koreans grabbed Bombi. They were
taking her away via boat. Bombi jumped. Jesse got to her in the water and Kai went after the
men that tried to grab her. This was when Charlie 1 showed up with his own boat to pursue the
bad guys with. And they eventually caught up to their guys and were able to make a few arrests.

Tenant also got the chance to talk to Bombi when everything was over. She told Bombi that
she has something to negotiate with. She was a spy and so that meant she was privy to certain
information she can now use to ensure that she stays with her family.

And Lucy pretended to be surprised at her welcome back party, but no one fell for it and they
immediately knew that Whistler spill the beans.
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Family Ties

Season 2
Episode Number: 38
Season Episode: 16

Originally aired: Monday March 13, 2023
Writer: Ron McGee
Director: Christine Moore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Derek Phillips (FBI ASAC Michael Curtis),
Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom Boom’ Gates), Cher Alvarez (Bam Bam),
Catero Alain Colbert (Kenny Sparks), Jacob Buster (Robbie Morrison),
J.R. Cacia (Bill Morrison), Rocky Myers (Commander Jared Barnes),
Nadja Sofi (Ada Barnes), Can Bolay (Nico Androv), Judy Nguyen (HPD
Officer Martinez), Ativalu Scanlan (Devon Gage), Luis Linares (Ross
Lamont)

Production Code: HAW216
Summary: When Navy residents discover their vehicles were burglarized

overnight, the NCIS team connects it to a series of peculiar crimes
and tracks down an unlikely bandit. Also, Whistler struggles with an
uncooperative CI and Alex weighs his college options.

Someone actually stole the tires of every
single car on this one block. It was the
strangest thing and it normally wouldn’t
have been an investigation for NCIS, but
one of the victims was a Navy bigwig. He
called in a few favors. His people con-
tacted NCIS for him.

They basically made NCIS take the
case and they weren’t the only ones in-
vestigating a prank. The Navy even sent
in Boom Boom. The Navy bomb special-
ist was brought in to find evidence of the
missing tires. He thought the whole situ-

ation was laughable. He didn’t see why he had to investigate a prank and, while it was very high
tech, it was pretty harmless.

No one was hurt. Their security feeds all went down before their tires were taken and so this
sounds like a prank pulled off by a kid. This same kid was suspected in the theft of spoons from
five houses on the same night. He or she were also behind several other pranks that were again
harmless. But this person managed to tick off Boom Boom. They stole his van with the evidence
he collected. They left it a block away and they sent off elephant toothpaste inside of the van. It
lit up with foam.

It also destroyed evidence on top of injuring Boom Boom’s pride. They made it personal for
Boom Boom. He now wants revenge. Everyone else found it funny.

Kai couldn’t stop smiling and he was already on the outs with Boom Boom. They bonded on
the last case however they seemed to be back at square one with this one because Boom Boom
just likes messing with him. Boom Boom was as bad as Bam Bam. Only they investigated the
elephant toothpaste. They found out it was a small explosion that was expertly done.
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They also learned that it used a lot of yeast as its catalyst. They checked the local commissary
of who got a bunch of yeast before they used it and it was connected back to Lt. Commander
William Morrison.

Not that Morrison knew what they were talking about when they came to question him. They
asked him about the missing golf trophies, the missing mannequins, and the missing tires.
Morrison had thought they were joking at first until they opened his garage. They found all the
stolen items there and so that’s when Morrison claimed it was him. He did it.

But Tennant knew better. Tennant made him tell the truth and it was actually his teenage son
behind all the thefts. His son’s name is Robbie. Robbie was lashing out against authority figures.
He started doing that after his parents divorced. He’s been looking for a fight ever since. He
was smart. He just didn’t know how to channel that intelligence into something worthwhile. He
instead used it for pranks. He started pranking people after his dad was deployed and Morrison
had just gotten back.

Morrison noticed that his camper van was missing. He figured Robbie had taken it and so
NCIS went looking for that camper van. They found it at an airfield. They also spotted Robbie
right before he flew off on a small plane. Robbie had apparently gotten his pilot license recently.
He wanted to be like his dad who was also a pilot. Robbie may have escaped in the plane, but
someone wasn’t done with them because his dad was later beaten up and sent to the hospital.
NCIS thought it was because of something Robbie did.

They simply didn’t know who he ticked off enough to earn reprisals. Robbie came back to visit
his dad at the hospital. Tennant was waiting for him and she used their time together to question
him. She wanted to know what kind of trouble he got himself into. She had Robbie tell her about
every single theft he ever pulled off. He stole a puppy. Not just any puppy. A puppy from a dog
breeder who breeds his dogs for fights and so that puppy could cost thousands of dollars. And
Robbie took it because he always sides with the underdogs.

Robbie knew who was behind the assault on his dad. He didn’t tell NCIS because he snuck
away from juvie and he wanted to go after the man himself. Robbie thought he was doing some-
thing by freeing the dogs, but the dogs were dangerous. They’ve been in dogfights for a while.
Kai thankfully knows how to navigate around dangerous dogs. He even rescued Robbie from one
and they arrested Androv. Androv tried to kill Robbie by throwing him in a dog pen and that’s
considered attempted murder.

As for Robbie, they worked out a deal in which he serves his community service by helping
Boom Boom and Bam Bam.

Tennant’s son heard back from his first choice. He got into the Naval Academy and so he was
going to Annapolis in the fall. But Whistler was able to turn someone into a CI with Tennant’s
help and now she can’t stop this man from calling her in all hours of the day. Kenny wants to
continue to serve.
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Money Honey

Season 2
Episode Number: 39
Season Episode: 17

Originally aired: Monday March 20, 2023
Writer: Megan Bacharach
Director: Loren Yaconelli
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Anthony Ruivivar (Daniel Tennant), Derek
Phillips (FBI ASAC Michael Curtis), Anna Grace Barlow (Adriana Ve-
lazco), Chrissie Fit (Roxanne), Chris Payne Gilbert (Dante Reeves),
Enver Gjokaj (Captain Joe Milius), Thomas Bekkers (Vince Cooper),
Kai Braden (Bomber Jacket), Michael DeCamp (Hard Dude #1), Shane
Berengue (Party Guest), Darny Chau (Bikini Girl)

Production Code: HAW217
Summary: Captain Milius returns to Hawai’i as the NCIS team works to catch

a dangerous high-value U.S. Government target with the help of an
informant unlike any they’ve ever encountered. Also, Tennant and
Daniel deal with Alex’s acceptance into the Naval Academy.

There was a shooting at nightclub. It hap-
pened in Bangkok. It wasn’t on the news
in the States. It also didn’t involve any
Navy personnel. Which was why Tennant
hadn’t heard about it. Tennant has other
concerns. She just found out her son ap-
plied for Annapolis and that he got in.

He was going to Naval College. He felt
he was ready to take that risk. His par-
ents however were concerned that this
might be too much for him. They didn’t
think he consider all the possibilities and
Tennant’s ex was also a little put out that

Alex turned to another man to write his recommendation. He felt that was his job as a father.
And the man that did that had later presented himself to Tennant at her office.

It was Captain Joe Milius. He was back in Hawaii. He was transporting a witness in an
arms deal that went wrong. The witness’s name is Adrianna Velasco. She was partying with her
boyfriend and his friend in Bangkok when the two were murdered. Adrianna only barely survived
herself. She should want justice for her boyfriend. Only Adrianna was more concerned about a
party. She handed over her cell phone to Joe when he demanded it and she failed to mention
that she has a second phone. And that she’s using the phone.

Adrianna was taken from the scene. She was transported to Hawaii. She was told that they
could make a deal with her in return for the flash drive she has. She has her boyfriend’s evidence
against his billionaire crime boss on that flashdrive. The same boss that ordered the hit on him.
Meaning she could get justice for her boyfriend by working with NCIS and the FBI. They just
had to get her to the safe where this flashdrive was supposedly being held. And so it was just
Adrianna being difficult that they didn’t go after the flashdrive straight away.
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Adrianna wasn’t taking all of this seriously. She took Kai and Jesse to the mall. She started
shopping. She ran into her old friend there because Adrianna was still using her second cell
phone. She heard about a party and she told Kai about how she couldn’t wait to attend. Adrianna
only took them to the safe after she made arrangements for the party. Then she opened the safe.
She took out a flashdrive and handed it to Whistler before disappearing. She pulled a full on
Houdini. And the flashdrive was a dud.

There was a cat video on the flashdrive. It didn’t have any details or money transaction. It
was just nothing. Adrianna was also gone and so there was no way to ask her if that’s all she
has against the man that killed her boyfriend. Only Kai later tracked down Adrianna. He found
out that she wants to go to that party so bad because the man that killed her boyfriend would be
there. He goes to the Dalton Ball every year. Adrianna just wants to be close enough to do real
damage. She claimed to Kai that she just wanted to prove she wasn’t beaten and that she was
still standing and that had been a lie.

Adrianna later went to the party with a gun. It seems she always wanted to kill the man that
ruined her life. Its why she was ready to hand over the flashdrive in order to get the Navy to take
her to Hawaii. It’s always been about Dante Reeves. Adrianna wants to kill him. Kai wants to
plant a listening device on him. Their two agendas came to a head at the party. Kai was escorting
Adrianna when they eventually got asked by one of Reeves’s people to follow them upstairs to a
private room. Then Adrianna pulled a gun.

She did that in the elevators. Kai figured out what she was planning. He tried to talk her out
of it. He promised that his people would catch and arrest Reeves. Adrianna put the gun away
after he said that and she was set on getting evidence when suddenly they were before Reeves.
Adrianna pretended she was willing to sell the flashdrive for ten million dollars. Reeves said there
was no flashdrive because it was his people that wiped it a couple of days ago. And so they were
going to kill both Kai and Adrianna when Kai fought back.

And Adrianna pulled her gun. She was going to shoot Reeves when Kai reminded her that
she was better than that. His people were on the way. He said the distress word and he had
taken care of Reeves’s bodyguard. His people later came running in and they arrested Reeves for
attempted murder. And it turns out Adrianna knew about everything on that flashdrive and so
she could still help them build a case against Reeves.

And after an awkward family dinner with Joe, Alex, Alex’s dad and Tennant, the family has
agreed to let Alex go to Annapolis.
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Bread Crumbs

Season 2
Episode Number: 40
Season Episode: 18

Originally aired: Monday April 10, 2023
Writer: Jan Nash
Director: LeVar Burton
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase),
Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom Boom’ Gates), Nick Creegan (Agent Sam
Crichton), Dylan Kenin (Laird Harriman), Kurt Yaeger (Master Sergeant
Strand), Ronda Kahana Williams (Young Jane Tennant), Kevin LaRosa
II (Pilot), Nolan Hong (Co-Pilot), Davis Cameron (U.S. Marshal), Gre-
gory Albrecht (Bus Driver), Donnie Masihi (Howie), Lyrik Reis-Moniz
(Dottie), Rocki DuCharme (Female Camper)

Production Code: HAW218
Summary: When Tennant interrogates a suspect during his helicopter transfer

and the helicopter crashes, she must utilize her skills to save herself
and the other passengers.

A criminal was captured by the US Mar-
shalls. His name was Harriman. The US
Marshalls were going to transport him
back to the mainland to put him on trial
only Tennant managed to talk her way
onboard the flight. Tennant wanted to
question their prisoner.

She said Harriman was the last person
to see NCIS Special Agent Craig Anton
and only he could tell her what happened
to the man. Craig disappeared right af-
ter that meeting. Tennant assumed that
Harriman killed him. She wanted to ques-
tion Harriman because she wanted to
know where Anton’s body was and she

wanted to return him to his family.
The family finally deserves some closure. Tennant may not have served in the Marines, but

she was a firm believer in no man left behind and unfortunately that mentality worked against
her this time. Something happened onboard that flight.

Harriman faked a medical condition. He used that to get out of his restraints and then he
grabbed one of the Marshall’s gun in the chaos. Tennant saw what he was doing. She tried to
offer up some resistance. She wrestled for the gun with him and they accidentally shot a pilot.

The copilot lost control of the plane. They crashed on a deserted island off the coast of Hawaii.
There were two dead and thankfully Tennant hadn’t been one of them. She survived along with
the co-pilot as well as one of the Marshalls. Harriman also survived, but he went on the run.
Tennant decided to go after him and the Marshall went with her.

They were both armed. They gave the copilot a weapon as well in case Harriman circle back
before they do. And unfortunately Harriman kept one of the guns from the plane.
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Harriman was armed and dangerous. He was doing everything possible not to be tried for his
many crimes and so he didn’t want to go down easy. He chose violence. Which was a problem
because the island was a large one. Tennant and the Marshall couldn’t see everything and that’s
how they ended up missing Harriman coming up behind them.

Harriman shot the Marshall first. He also shot at Tennant enough that it pushed her back
and she followed the Marshall in falling down into a cave. They were so far down that it would
have been impossible to climb their way out of there.

The Marshall was also injured because he got shot in the arm. He couldn’t exactly climb out
of a sinkhole with just one arm. The only one who can make the climb was Tennant.

Only she didn’t want to leave a man behind. Again. Tennant stayed with him as the rest of
the island was being searched by the FBI. Whistler was running point on the case. She even got
the FBI helicopter to take them to the island. They found the copilot. They didn’t find Tennant or
the Marshall. No one knew they were in that sinkhole.

People above ground were working the investigation. Their first priority was to find Harriman.
It seems Harriman only came to Hawaii to take out a couple of witnesses against him and so
NCIS built up a profile of him. They determined that the people he killed could determine where
he planned on going if he ever escapes the island.

They knew he was still on the island because he ran into and assaulted Whistler, but they
didn’t know where Tennant was and so Tennant broke her rule. She chose to save herself by
climbing out of the cave without the Marshall.

Tennant did so because that was the only way to get help. They couldn’t wait around to be
found or else the Marshall’s injuries might get worse. So, Tennant climbed out of the sinkhole.
She tracked down the feds on the island. She got them to come back with her to pick up the
Marshall and after all of that — Harriman was caught for trying to steal a car from the feds. They
arrested him. Tennant also didn’t need to question him any further.

Tennant’s people began looking into her case while the FBI was searching for her. They found
out that Harriman used a burner cell when he was in Seattle meeting with the NCIS Agent and
that cell drove and stopped by a lake. And in that lake, Craig’s remains were found and his family
were finally given closure.

Tennant’s people pulled off a miracle without her. She later thanked them with the bottom of
her soul and then she went her home. Ernie informed Alex about Tennant’s situation. He told
her son that her plane went down and he stayed with the young man until they heard good news
about Tennant.

Tennant returned home to a very happy kid and he was also willing to hug her after the day
she had.
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Cabin Fever

Season 2
Episode Number: 41
Season Episode: 19

Originally aired: Monday May 01, 2023
Writer: Yakira Chambers
Director: Kurt Jones
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Gloria Reuben (Commander Tannon McCarthy), Seana Kofoed (Med-
ical Examiner Chase), Cara Mitsuko (Lara Uchida), Jake Matthews
(Aaron Patel), Tobias Jelinek (Paolo Castile), Arianna Ortiz (Colonel
Jocelyn Watkins), Dylan Bruce (Major Thomas Mullen), Skyler Bible
(Darren Graham), Erin Ross (Millie Chapman), Armand Patterson (Dr.
Hampton)

Production Code: HAW219
Summary: After the mysterious death of an astronaut in a highly sensitive Mars

simulation, the NCIS team must send Ernie into the habitat to inves-
tigate alone.

Commander Graham passed out during
a space simulation. The NASA team was
staying on Hawaii island in a sealable
dome that was a part of a Mars simula-
tion.

It was supposed to help them transi-
tion to the real thing when they get to
Mars and the project would have worked
if Commander Graham hadn’t been poi-
soned. It was unfortunate consequence of
people living in confined close quarters.
There was bound to be tension. Both in
a good and bad way. There came to be

someone who wanted Graham dead.
They went through with a plan. They killed him and they would have gotten away with it if

NCIS hadn’t butted in. NCIS wanted to investigate the mysterious death of a Navy personnel.
They faced resistance from NASA as well as from Space Force. Space Force was the military

branch that Former President Trump created because he thought space should be weaponized.
Only its so new that its odd for people to see a genuine Space Force uniform in person. Kai kinda
just stared it for a while until he was told to stop by Space Fore Commander Tannon McCarthy.

McCarthy refused them access to the simulation. She said nothing could ruin the future as-
tronauts’ mission. The people in the dome couldn’t leave it. They couldn’t give access to Graham’s
body.

They instead had to store him in a safe place as if they would if they were really on Mars.
McCarthy said it would help them prepare for death if they face it in the field. But NCIS has
someone who did apply to the Mars Space Program. It was Ernie. Ernie wanted to be an astro-
naut. He didn’t get in and he left it at that only now he was given a chance to fulfill some of his
dreams.
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Ernie was the only one that was allowed to go into the dome. He had to wear an astronaut
suit just to make it to the dome. Once he got inside, he found out that there were some who
didn’t want him there.

There was one person who thought he was risking the mission. They didn’t care that he was
there to investigate a suspicious death. They all ruled Graham’s death as accidental. Graham
was acting out of character right before he passed out. He had wanted to leave the simulation.
The others stopped him and then he died.

There was no explanation for it. They weren’t looking for one and so Ernie performed an
autopsy the first chance he got. Ernie wasn’t a medical doctor himself. He called up his Medical
Examiner friend to talk him through the process. He also sent up a video call. Ernie was later on
that video call with Tennant when he got knocked from behind. The video went dark and NCIS
learned that someone has locked down the dome. There was no footage going in or out. They
have no way of contacting people on the inside and so they were forced to deem it as a hostage
situation.

They even had a suspect. They suspected Major Tom Mullen. Mullen was good friend with
Graham. He was even staying at Graham’s place on the island and then something happened. He
had to leave behind his tablet. His tablet has messages from people asking not to do something.
They were all concerned for him. People inside the dome were also concerned for him. Mullen
had snapped. He destroyed Ernie’s tablet. He also sealed Ernie along with the other astronauts
into a locked room. They couldn’t get out.

They had to hope he would let them out. Mullen was the one that attacked Ernie. He also
turned off the cameras and all he could talk about was safeguarding the mission. He had tried to
get Graham thrown off the simulation. It didn’t work. It also didn’t help that Mullen was acting
crazy. Mullen had breathed in the same fumes that Graham did. The same fumes that Paolo did.
Paolo used to be a part of the mission until he went crazy. They tested him after he tried to kill
himself and it was revealed that he had been poisoned by HVAC system in the simulation.

Its what poisoned Graham to death. Its what’s poisoning Mullen into homicidal tendencies.
NCIS later breached the building with Space Force and they stopped Mullen from killing Ernie.
They also noticed that a nuclear reactor was missing from the dome. It seems it was always
someone’s plan to breach the dome in order to steal the nuclear reactor. Someone wanted to ruin
a multimillion dollar experiment. They made sure the HVAC was poisoning people because they
wanted to go in to steal a very pricey piece of tech.

Ernie figured out who did it. It was Aaron Patel. Patel was like Ernie in that he applied for the
program. He was rejected and he didn’t take it as well as Ernie. He instead got angry at having to
watch other people live out his dream. He hated his job as security. He used all the craziness to
breach the building with his people. He stole the reactor. He was making his way off the island
when NCIS caught up to him. They arrested him. He confessed to everything and now he’ll serve
time for Graham’s murder.

And Ernie has finally gotten over his childhood dream of being an astronaut. He was given
the chance to read his file and understand why they didn’t accept him, but he chose not to read
it. He knows that his daddy issues were the only reason he went after the program to begin with.
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Nightwatch Two

Season 2
Episode Number: 42
Season Episode: 20

Originally aired: Monday May 08, 2023
Writer: Amy Rutberg
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase), Damien Diaz (Joe Pitt), Sea-
mus Dever (Scott), DaJuan Johnson (New Dawn Leading Member),
Evan Gamble (Ethan Denton), Michael McGlone (Dennis Lang), Caitlin
Gold (Nicole), Seth Adam Braverman (Jake Boone), Deep Singh (Jack),
Sarah Biehler (Diane), Bobby Cabino (Store Clerk / Nelson Carr), Beth
Fisher (Beth), Scott M. Schewe (HPD Officer T. Wilcox)

Production Code: HAW220
Summary: When Lucy receives a strange call on night watch from a man admit-

ting to murder, the NCIS team sets out to find him.

Lucy was weird about dates as well as an-
niversaries. She never celebrates things
on their actual date. She opens Christ-
mas presents on the 23rd. She celebrated
her anniversary with her girlfriend on the
night she knew she would be working late
and had nothing to do with any of their
major landmarks.

She claimed she removed the stakes
that way, but her girlfriend thought it was
cute. Kate was visiting her at the office
when the call came in. There was a guy
who called and said he thinks he killed

someone. He was sounding erratic. He wouldn’t give details. He was all over the place in asking
for help.

The guy gave Lucy a location. She passed that on to Kai and Jesse. The guys were going to a
fight and they detoured to check the location only there was nothing there. It was an empty lot.
Only this guy called back. He said his name was Joe. Joe claimed again that he might have killed
someone. It’s like he was stuck on repeat. Lucy tried to get clearer answers for him. This time
she began asking him questions. He revealed he was a jewelry store. He gave Lucy a description.
She and Kate found out where it was. And they sent the guys back out there.

This time it wasn’t an empty lot. It really was a jewelry store. The store clerk had been found
shot dead in the back and it didn’t look like a robbery. The jewelry safe was open with jewels still
inside. There was eighty thousand dollars in there that went untouched. NCIS couldn’t tell what
the motive was. Joe ended up hanging up on Lucy again and so she stayed close to the phone in
case he calls back again. The guys also called Tennant. Tennant had been on a disastrous blind
date. Her date was a dentist that couldn’t stop talking about himself.

He showed no real interest in getting to know Tennant. She was looking for a means for escape
when she was informed about the murder. Tennant rushed out of the date. Ernie rushed back
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from his singing job. Ernie traced the phone calls back to Marine Corporal Joseph Pitt. He was
Joe. He suffered a severe brain injury on the job. It could explain why he’s so confused. He also
has the skillset to kill Nelson Carr. Carr didn’t own the store. The owner was Nelson Lang. Lang
disabled the cameras that night because he was selling illegal uncut diamonds out the back.

The uncut diamonds were the only thing that was stolen. Lang tried not to report it at first.
They had to find diamond dust in the safe and then they confronted him about it. Lang unraveled
like tissue. He said he already sold the diamonds. He now has to find a way to pay back eighty
grand. He didn’t know who robbed him or killed Carr. Only they had Joe. They began searching
for him. Lucy later found him and he pulled a gun on her. She had to talk him down. She
reminded him that they talked on the phone.

Joe soon gave the gun to her. He also tried to tell her in his broken way what really happened.
He was traveling with his friend Markus. Markus took a detour. He claimed he was just making
a stop and really he was stealing the illegal diamonds. It was Markus that killed Carr. It was
Joe that killed Markus. Not that Joe remembered all the details. It took him a while just to say
he killed Markus. He was covered in Markus’s blood. He led Lucy to Markus’s body. She had to
remind him several times that they were going to find Markus.

Joe gets confused easily. He mistakenly thought Lucy was his girlfriend, Marissa. He couldn’t
do two things at once. His TBI really messed him up. He hit Lucy after he showed her Markus’s
body. He ran away and she went back to looking for him. Kate understandably was upset by
what Lucy did. Taking a prisoner to a secluded location was dangerous. Kate had written Joe off
as aggressive and violent. She didn’t want Lucy to find him again only they found a connection
between Markus and Lang’s girlfriend. Those two worked at the same call center.

The girlfriend was apparently threatened into going along with the plan. She was still being
threatened by time the cops talked to her and so it wasn’t just Markus behind everything. It
was also Ethan. Ethan was another one of Joe’s friends. His friends from the vet support group.
Lucy went to go ask him questions about Joe when suddenly Ethan mentioned the robbery. The
robbery wasn’t public knowledge. Lucy was about to pull her gun and that’s when Joe showed
up. Joe started to piece things together.

Joe realized that Ethan was behind everything. Ethan pretended to be a vet to get into a
support group and to find people who would help him rob that jewelry store. He claimed that he
sold his grandmother’s ring to help for doctor’s bills. He said he wanted the ring back, but the
store refused to sell it. He had Joe break into the safe and that’s when Markus enacted the real
plan. He stole the diamonds. He killed Carr. Ethan then told him to kill Joe and so he took him
to a secluded place and Joe fought back. Joe ended up killing Markus.

Joe also realized that Ethan tried to kill him. He pulled a gun on Ethan. Lucy was talking
him down when Ethan went for his own gun and he tried to kill the both of them. And so Kate
saved the day when she shot Ethan. Ethan survived and he was arrested. They also told Joe that
Ethan wasn’t a real vet. But Joe was just glad he was alive. He was also honest about opening
the safe. He might still be in legal trouble from that only his medical condition will work in his
favor. And Tennant realized that her date was just nervous, not self-absorbed.

Tennant had a second date with the dentist and he wasn’t so bad now that he was relaxed.
And Kai returned to the vet support group to have someone to talk to about his days in the

military.
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Past Due

Season 2
Episode Number: 43
Season Episode: 21

Originally aired: Monday May 15, 2023
Writer: Christopher Silber, Yalun Tu
Director: Jimmy Whitmore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Henry Ian Cusick (John Swift), Linc Hand
(Charlie 1), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Jay Ali (Adrian Creel),
Emanuel Borria (Martin ’Marty’ Maldado), Julie White (Maggie Shaw),
Ser Anzoategui (Castel), Tara Macken (Imposter), Ioane Goodhue (Cap-
tain Akas), Katie McCabe (Tourist Woman), Nathan Ray Clark (Tourist
Man), Daniel Santana Jr. (Venezuelan Intel Member #1), Luis R. Es-
pinoza (Venezuelan Intel Member #2)

Production Code: HAW221
Summary: The discovery of a dead former MI6 agent uncovers secrets from Ten-

nant’s past, forcing her to go to extreme lengths to track down the
responsible party.

Tennant was found at the scene of a
homicide. It hadn’t looked good for her
when HPD came calling. They saw her
standing over the body and they assumed
she killed the guy on the floor. Only she
didn’t kill Oliver Price. She didn’t even
know Price. Price somehow got an old
passport of hers and he contacted her af-
ter he had been shot.

He could have been asking for help. He
could have given his killer’s name. Ten-
nant was claiming not to know either way
with her people. NCIS were called after

she identified herself to the local cops. They took over the investigation. They asked Tennant
if this was connected to her CIA days and all she would say was that it was classified.

Tennant hadn’t talked to her people. She didn’t explain anything to them. Which led them to
coming up with wild conspiracy theories. Ernie had to remind the others that there was still a
dead body and it was up to them to find the killer. Price was a disgraced former operative of MI6.
He left under a cloud.

He’s been taking any and every mercenary contract he could until one led to his death. His
killer was efficient as well as smart. They wore infrared glasses that stopped the security cameras
from getting a true image of their face.

Tennant also found a piece of paper with numbers on it by Price’s body. She asked Ernie to
quietly look into it. He determined that the papers were a routing number for a Venezuelan bank
account. Tennant couldn’t explain the connection or anything else about how this ties in with
Price’s murder.
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She instead made sure her kids were staying at their dad’s so that she could make mysterious
phone calls. She also contacted Maggie. She said that her alias from the Cyprus mission had been
found. And she wanted to know if Maggie sold her information to people like Maggie’s son.

Maggie denied doing so. She said they were family. She loved Tennant’s children as if they
were her own. If it hadn’t been her only son involved, Maggie would never have betrayed her
country.

Maggie hasn’t talked to anyone other than Tennant herself about what happened in Cyprus.
Tennant got that confirmation from her and she left her to be returned to her cell. Tennant went
back to Hawaii. This time she ran into Supervisory Special Agent John Swift in her office. He
came over to investigate her connection to Price’s death.

Swift also has to bench Tennant while the investigation is pending. Tennant was fine with
that. She said she would take vacation time and the truth was she never stopped working this
case. Tennant flew down to Venezuela with Kate. She was assisting the FBI with that bank
account number. The bank account was in her name only someone used a fake passport to steal
over two hundred grand from it. The fake looked too good. Tennant tracked down the man that
made her own fake passport and she beat him up until she got him talking.

The guy was approached by a woman claiming to be Jane Padilla. Tennant’s alias. This fake
Jane had come with Price. Price paid for the fake passport. Price and this woman were involved
in whatever happened in Cyprus. The bank account they cleared out was a slush fund used by
the CIA. It was last used in a Syria mission that went sideways. The CIA was hoping to take
down known terrorist Ahmed Hamid. They got secret information from one of Hamid’s relatives
on where to find him. A team of operatives went in and only one came out — Charlie 1.

It had been an ambush. The cousin set them up for failure. Tennant and Maggie were sup-
posed to take out the cousin in order to cover up their tracks. Only someone came looking for
Tennant because of what happened all those years ago. Tennant handcuffed Kate to a poll in
their hotel. She then went on to pursue this woman that had stolen her alias. Tennant was
fighting while Charle-1 was revealing to Kai of all people that he shot Pryce. He said Pryce was a
threat to them. He had to take him out.

Charlie-1 went to Venezuela once he was told Tennant was there. He arrived just in time to
save her from the fake Jane. He also was the only one that got the full story from her. She hadn’t
been able to shoot Creel all those years ago, but Maggie blew up his car. They thought Creel was
dead from the car bomb and all along he’s been behind the push to find them.

Creel revealed himself when he killed Charlie-1.
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Dies Irae

Season 2
Episode Number: 44
Season Episode: 22

Originally aired: Monday May 22, 2023
Writer: Matt Bosack, Jan Nash
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: Seana Kofoed (Commander Carla Chase), Julie White (Maggie Shaw),
Linc Hand (Charlie 1), Henry Ian Cusick (OSP Supervisory Agent John
Swift), Jay Ali (Adrian Creel), Adan Carrillo (Street Kid), Clay Donahue
Fontenot (Driver), LL Cool J (Special Agent Sam Hanna), Tara Macken
(Corpse), Mahina Napoleon (Julie Tennant), Kian Talan (Alex Tennant)

Production Code: HAW222
Summary: The discovery of a dead former MI6 agent uncovers secrets from Ten-

nant’s past, forcing her to go to extreme lengths to track down the
responsible party.

Adrian Creel wasn’t dead. He was sup-
posed to be dead. Both Tennant and her
former friend Maggie Shaw had believed
they killed him with a car bomb only
somehow he survived. He was left half
dead by the blast. He had to go into hid-
ing. He became quite a scary guy to stay
under the radar this long. He surrounds
himself with other scary people and he
wanted several things from Tennant. He
wanted the money he was promised. He
also wanted Maggie’s whereabouts. Creel
pretended to betray his own cousin be-

cause he was promised a new life in a new country. Maggie betrayed that promise when she tried
to kill him and so Creel wanted revenge.

It didn’t matter that Creel himself lied or that he was never going through with the deal on
his end. He still thought he should have been let go. Not killed or in his case attempt to kill
him. Creel was that arrogant. Him going into organized crime also hadn’t help temper him. Creel
needed a new life and a life of crime provided him that. He now wanted to kill Maggie for what
she did to him. He knew the best way to do that was to go through Tennant. Tennant and Maggie
were best friends the last time he saw them. He didn’t know they fell out. He just knew one would
never be found without the other.

Creel abducted Tennant because he wanted to torture the information out of her. He murdered
several people to get close to her. He thankfully didn’t kill Kate because Tennant had protected
her. Tennant had tied Kate to a post back at the hotel to keep her away from the danger and she
hadn’t been wrong about the danger. Charlie 1’s death proved that. Only benching Kate helped
in the longterm. Kate got out of her restraints. She called Lucy. Lucy put her on speaker phone
and the whole team helped Kate to find Tennant.

It was Kate who confirmed Charlie 1’s death. It was Kate who went all Rambo. Kate managed
to track down the car that was transporting Tennant with Ernie’s help. She ran it off the road.
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She was killing off Tennant’s guards and that’s when Sam Hana showed up. Sam took out the
guards that were going to kill Kate. Sam was a good soldier and he had been warned in Morocco
that Creel could pose a problem. Sam saved the ladies’ lives. Tennant then told him that this
wasn’t his fight and that it was okay for him to bow out.

Tennant still wanted to handle things on her own. She wanted to do it that way because
what she and Maggie did was unauthorized. The attempt on Creel’s life was unauthorized. They
were ordered to bring him back to the US to be questioned. They instead took matters into their
own hands and they tried to kill Creel. Something Tennant didn’t even reveal after Maggie was
arrested for espionage. Tennant buried what happened and she returned to Hawaii with Kate
like nothing happened. She knew she would be facing a lot of questions and she tried to get out
of it.

Tennant claimed that what happened with Creel was top secret. She claimed she couldn’t
talk about it because it was from her CIA days. She would have continued to not say anything
if it hadn’t been for Jesse. Jesse asked her what really happened. He had gotten in trouble
for defending Tennant. He doesn’t mind that he got in trouble because she was family and he
will always defend her, but he needed answers and so Tennant told him what really happened
overseas. She told him what Maggie did.

She also told everyone else that Creel was looking for Maggie. She said Maggie was the only
one that knew where the secret ops money was going and so she was the only one that could
give Creel what he really wants. Both money and revenge. Tennant said nothing when Maggie
was brought to Hawaii. Maggie was supposed to assist with Creel’s capture. Tennant and Maggie
instead chose to go off book again. They snuck off without anyone knowing. They lured Creel
out into the open. Tennant was going to arrest him and Maggie once more took over. Maggie
killed him. This time it was for real. She truly killed him. And she got away while Tennant was
performing CPR.

Maggie escaping on Tennant’s watch was going to result in some problems down the road.
The man that was overseeing the internal review of the team had wanted to bring someone in.
Someone he knew would keep Tennant from going rogue. Someone he knew wouldn’t risk their
career at NCIS. And so while the team were later celebrating with Tennant about the danger
being over — they were still in for a few more surprises.
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Run and Gun (1)

Season 3
Episode Number: 45
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday February 12, 2024
Writer: Jan Nash, Christopher Silber
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Kian Talan (Alex Tennant), Nick Creegan
(Agent Sam Crichton), Anna Khaja (Marcia Adler), Victor Alfieri (Furio),
Elise Robertson (Psych Evaluator), Kevin Yamada (Doctor), Matt Got-
tlieb (Guy), Todd Sells (Josh Moore), Lauren Ballesteros (Lydia Gant),
Daniel Blake (Gil Gant), Jax Buresh (Hammond Gant)

Production Code: HAW301
Summary: Having passed medical and psych evaluations, Tennant is surprised

to see Sam conducting her final interview to clear her return to work.
Following a breach in the US Marshal’s database, Sam joins Tennant
in Las Vegas to locate the hacker.

Jesse has been filling in for Tennant. Ten-
nant hasn’t passed all her interviews she
needs to do to regain her old position.
She was normally NCIS Special Agent in
Charge of the NCIS Hawai’i Field Office,
but lately she’s been doing to a lot of ther-
apy as well as field tests to mark her as
fit.

Jesse would have liked to have said
he didn’t mind filling in and he couldn’t
bring himself to say that because that’s a
darn lie. Jesse hates being in charge. He
might take a sick day or if he has to do

another case without Tennant. He constantly asks where’s Tennant? And his promise to himself
that she’ll come back eventually is moving further and further away.

Tennant needed to actually do therapy. She can’t just show up and smile. She has to talk
about the death of a friend, Charlie-1. She has to talk about the betrayal of her mentor.

The same mentor that is currently a fugitive on the run. There was a lot that happened when
Tennant was kidnapped and tortured. She has to discuss all of that before she can earn a clean
bill of health. Therefore, Tennant tried to do the easiest things for her. She could bullcrap her
way out of therapy or fitness exams. The true and finally test was her interview with Special
Agent Sam Hana.

The two worked a case together in the past.
Tennant knew she could trust Sam. He could empathize with her because he too suffered on

the job. He lost his wife Michelle and he thought that would get Tennant to talk, but she wasn’t
there yet.

She doesn’t want to talk. She wants to do something. Anything. It was how she healed and
so got Sam on board. Sam cleared her to work. Tennant returned right as NCIS was gathering
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evidence. They had a man in witness protection die. He was in fact killed by a two hit gunmen.
And this all happened in broad daylight.

The gunmen wore fake police uniforms. NCIS contacted the US Marshalls to find out about
the victim. They were stonewalled with the Marshalls only not with FBI. Kate used her FBI
credentials to figure out why the victim was in WitSec.

The victim’s name was Josh Brenner. He worked at the Department of Defense as an admin-
istrator where he uncovered corruption. He helped take down some very powerful people. He was
supposed to start a new life in Hawaii with a new name. And it seems his information got leaked
to the bad guys.

Tennant had to go over to the US Marshall’s office. She spoke to the Agent in charge. She
knew they were interrogating someone they believed leaked Josh’s new identity.

They wanted to handle the situation in house. They refused to work with NCIS. Only NCIS
were still working the case. They caught it and they were going to work it in spite of the Marshalls.
Nobody cared if those people got angry about it. NCIS were focusing on getting justice for Josh.
They looked into anyone renting police uniforms. They ran a diagnostic on what the weapon
could be.

Ernie also had to explore the dark web. He wanted to know how Josh’s information got out
there. But it revealed an even bigger problem. The US Marshalls weren’t just suffering a leak.

They were suffering from a flood. Their entire WitSec program has been released onto the
dark web. Now anyone with access could look up these people and potentially harm them. NCIS
wanted to stop that from happening. They tried to cut off the source before the rest of the
information gets out there. They knew they had to work with the US Marshalls to find the leaker.

They ruled out the suspect that the US Marshalls had in their custody. They said their thief
had used as many as seventy-five computers to do the hacking. The US Marshall wanted to close
access.

Tennant and Sam convinced them to keep it open. If they close it, they lose whatever chance
they had to capture the hacker. They’ll just pick up and leave. Leaving the connection open
however will guarantee that the hacker will be vulnerable to being hacked. Ernie did his magic.
He got an address that was in Las Vegas.

Sam and Tennant hopped on the next flight there. They got lost because they were using a
map from Morocco, but they soon found what they were looking for. They stopped the hackers.

The hackers had ties to the Russian mob. The mob must have funded the hacking farm to
bring down one person. The farm was working at the behest of one person. The person in charge
wasn’t caught. Tennant at least figured out what the leak was about. The leak was about a
prisoner transfer. Those are usually done by the US Marshalls.

The real hacker came to Hawaii. They brought down a prisoner plane. They wanted to get to
someone on board and Tennant wanted to stop them.

And so tonight ended on a cliffhanger because the last thing they showed was plane going
down.
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Crash and Burn (2)

Season 3
Episode Number: 46
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday February 19, 2024
Writer: Jan Nash, Christopher Silber
Director: Tim Andrew
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Henry Ian Cusick (John Swift), Seana Kofoed
(Medical Examiner Chase), Mark Gessner (CGIS Special Agent Neil
Pike), Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom Boom’ Gates), Nick Creegan (Agent
Sam Crichton), David Meunier (Alexi Volkoff), Michael Hake (Jaxon
Kekoa), Eugene Prokofiev (Walter Pimm), Will Allan (Milton Blanc),
Frederick Koehler (Henry West), Jennifer Ingrum (Host), Lauren Balles-
teros (Lydia Gant), Daniel Blake (Gil Gant), Jax Buresh (Hammond
Gant)

Production Code: HAW302
Summary: Following the crash of a prisoner transport plane, the NCIS team must

find the convicts that escaped onto the island. Meanwhile, Sam Hanna
and Tennant are tasked with locating a high-profile Russian prisoner
known as "The Chemist".

The last anyone saw of the prisoner car-
rier plane was when it was going down.
It was forced out of the air by someone
who paid a lot of money to break one of
the prisoners out of custody. This per-
son only targeted that specific plane be-
cause they forced the US Marshalls to
move these people.

They hacked the US Marshall’s wit-
ness list. They shared it on the dark web.
The US Marshalls were forced to respond.
They started moving people around. They
were taking the prisoners stateside when
NCIS Special Agent in Charge Tennant
called them to warn them about the dan-

ger. And sadly NCIS was too late to stop the prisoners from getting out.
By time the NCIS team got to the plane, most of convicts escaped. All except Jackson Kekoa.

Jackson didn’t want any part in what happened and so he just stayed seating down.
He didn’t hide. He didn’t take part in killing the five dead US Marshalls. He just sat. He waited

for help to arrive and he told them that he was fine with being moved. He doesn’t want to escape.
He has two years left on his sentence. He also doesn’t want to assist NCIS with their investigation.
He said the dead US Marshalls were their problem. Jackson just wants to be left alone.

It was funny actually because Jackson was once guilty of plane-jacking. Only he didn’t do
this. Nor was he going to help the authorities in any way. They have their hands full with the
escapees.
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There were so many of them that the teams were split up to look for certain prisoners. Jesse
and Kai were given a trio of bad guys that once operated as a family of thieves. Lucy was given
a guy that firebombed a post office and who had actually turned himself in. She hated her job.
Ernie hated his. Someone moved into his office to put together the flight system from the plane.

Meaning he had to watch everyone make a mess out of his office. He couldn’t use that or the
war room that smelled funny to him. Ernie started to work out of the kitchen.

He was still trying to find the hacker. The one that hacked the US Marshalls’ files. He traced
them back to the island. He was trying to do more when people kept invading his personal space.
That was slowing him down, but eventually did get in touch with the hacker. And he hacked the
hacker’s computer system.

Ernie used that to pinpoint the hacker’s location. He even went with the federal police to go
arrest this hacker. Across town, Jesse and Kai with Pike as backup found the family thieves.
Pike distracted the woman. The other two guys snuck up and made their arrest. The woman
smashed Pike’s face into the food before making a run for it. Pike caught up with her and she
had a knife by that point. She took him hostage. She was cutting him when Jesse used the stun
gun to knock her out. And so Pike’s plan actually worked.

Pike was now calling the trio of federal agents the three musketeers.
Tennant and Sam Hana on the other hand got information from Jackson. Jackson didn’t want

dangerous people on Hawaii. He grew up there. His family was still there. He told them that the
men with guns wanted a chemist. They were looking for the chemist because they were hoping
he’d build something for them. Everyone was now looking for the chemist. Lucy and Whistler
even found their arsonist before they found the chemist. It turns out their arsonist was trying to
burn down the oil tanker for the island.

The arsonist was also useful. He said that there was a man on Block C who scared all the
other sociopaths. His name was Henry West. West bragged about being a serial killer. They only
caught him on one murder when he’s committed over twenty. Lucy called it in with her boss. She
informed them that West was by the far the most dangerous of the escaped prisoners. Her news
came right as Tennant was introduced to West. West had taken the chemist hostage. He had a
gun trained on him when NCIS caught up to them.

The one thing that stumped NCIS was why West was intent on killing another prisoner. He
apparently was going to leverage it to force the Russians to get him a helicopter. Those people
that hijacked the plane were only there for the Chemist. He was that important to them, but
the helicopter was never coming. NCIS stopped that from happening. They ended up killing West
before he could kill the other guy. And the Chemist has now been moved back to the mainland
where no one will find him.

Tennant was allowed to resume her old position as head of NCIS’s Hawaii Office. Only Sam
wasn’t going anywhere. He was sticking around on the island to teach a class on military tactics.
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License to Thrill

Season 3
Episode Number: 47
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday February 26, 2024
Writer: Ron McGee, Amy Rutberg
Director: Christine Moore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Bill Dawes (T.J. Shaw), Carter Glade (Darrow),
Natalee Linez (Gina Martinez), Gino Woulard (Xavier Duvall), Joanna
DeLane (HPD Officer), J.B. Piernas Jr. (Guard One)

Production Code: HAW303
Summary: After a brazen daytime robbery of a Navy Federal Credit Union, the

NCIS team tracks down a group of adrenaline-seeking thieves. Mean-
while, Tennant grows suspicious of Sam Hanna’s reasons for being in
Hawai’i.

Sam was still hanging around Hawaii.
Tennant couldn’t figure out why. It left
her a little concerned and so she wanted
to ask Sam if he was in Hawaii because
he liked it there or if he was there to
keep an eye on her? Tennant eventually
got caught up in a case. She saved her
question for Sam for later. She and the
others were called in after someone stole
from the Navy Federal Credit Union. This
guy stole about a hundred-fifty thousand
dollars. He got away on a motorcycle. He
then led police in a motorcycle chase that

ended with him jumping off of a cliff. And getting away on a jet ski being driven by an co-
conspirator.

It was a great heist. It was well thought out. It took a lot of planning for everything to run
smoothly. The fact that nothing went wrong for the thieves meant they were too good at this.
Like they’ve done this before. Tennant was looking into that. She had the FBI there to help. They
usually handle bank heists. The case was only different because it involved the Navy’s bank. One
used by servicemen and women. Tennant had Whistler look into similar cases while she tried
asking Sam about this alleged class he was in town to teach.

Sam has been telling everyone that he was teaching a class. Yet, Tennant wasn’t alone in
thinking that was odd. Ernie was right there with conspiracy theories as well. Ernie thought it
odd that Sam was repeatedly telling everyone he was teaching a class and Ernie thought he said
it too much. He thought that there was no way that the Los Angeles Office would give away one
of their best agents so that he could teach a couple of seminars. Ernie told Tennant what he
thought and she agreed with him. Sam’s career change didn’t make sense.

Jesse meanwhile identified the bike that was left behind. It wasn’t a motorcycle in the tradi-
tional sense. It was a motorcross bike. There was a huge scene of it on the island. Jesse used
to be into it and then he got married, had kids, and got a cat. He could no longer afford to do a
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dangerous stunt. He has a family to think about. He still thinks about the past though because
he took one look at that bike and he knew instantly what the make and model of it was. He also
knew that it costs thousands of dollars.

It costs half of what was stolen. Why still the money if they planned on abandoning everything
they bought with it? It only makes sense if the heist wasn’t about money. It was about the thrill.
Ernie found out that there was a similar crime in London a couple of months ago. He said that
the thieves made off with thirty thousand dollars of cash that was in a museum safe. They could
have stolen a painting. They could have made a lot more money with a painting than with the
cash. And so they did it because they got a thrill from stealing.

It was never about the money. The money was just an added bonus. Jesse took Kate and Kai
took a motocross rally. They learned that a couple of bikes had gotten stolen the night before.
Jesse also met his childhood idol, TJ Shaw. TJ doesn’t rides bikes anymore. Only he used to. He
used to be at the top of the game. Jesse fangirled over him before he remembered the case and
he went back to investigating. His thing with TJ came in handy later. The agents followed the
bikers to a nearby bar. One guy was throwing around cash.

He threw hundreds of dollars into the air while saying drinks were on him that night. The
guy’s name was Xavier Duvall. He became important once they started looking into possible
suspects. Jesse ran into TJ at the bar. TJ never married or had kids. He now lives on the road
with bikers. They travel around the world. They surf. They bike. They do everything. Jesse was
jealous of them and he got to hang out with all of them after TJ became his in. Jesse had one of
the best nights of his life. And he wonders how his life became boring old dad.

It couldn’t be because he married young or had kids. Tennant did the same. Sam did the
same. They both still got to travel the world and so Jesse was boring because he allowed himself
to be boring. Anyways, Jesse partied with the guys. He tried to later use that to get Xavier to
come in peacefully. They figured out that Xavier was one of the people involved in the bank
heists because of the money. They checked the money and it was the same as those taken from
the heist. Xavier saw the police. He ran. He later got hit by a garbage truck and died.

With Xavier dead, Jesse tried his luck with the other guys. He pretended to be a fan. He went
extreme surfing with TJ and he tried to talk to TJ about the heists. TJ figured out he was in law
enforcement. He told them that he tried to stop kids from doing what they were doing. He said
that they loved the thrill. TJ only went surfing with Jesse so that the other guys could get away.
They all suspected Jesse was a cop. Jesse called his people. They started looking for the other
bikers. Sam caught with two that he easily subdued.

It turns out that the bro code was dead. Some of the guys were given paper filled bags. They
weren’t money and so they figured out someone was major was pulling the strings the same time
that Jesse did. Jesse came to on a plane flying thousands of leagues above the ocean. TJ had
been the mastermind of all the heists. He kidnapped Jesse. He brought him onto a plane. He
then parachuted out of the plane with the real money. There was no second parachute. He left
Jesse to die. Jesse had to use the radio to talk to Tennant. He learned to fly on the fly.

Tennant talked Jesse through the process so that he could land safely. He was saved. He also
learned how to fly and has lived more in the past few days than he has in years. And he couldn’t
wait to put it behind him the second he landed.

Tennant meanwhile walked in on one of Sam’s classes and they were really real. Either he
was actually there to teach seminars or it’s a cover for something. She’s not sure what to believe
after a day like today.
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Dead on Arrival

Season 3
Episode Number: 48
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday March 04, 2024
Writer: Yalun Tu, Noah Evslin
Director: Larry Teng
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Chase),
Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom Boom’ Gates), Patrick Mulvey (Frank
Howell), John Marshall Jones (George Conrad), Brian DeRozan (Marco
Cano), Jess Lundgren (Derek Tupua)

Production Code: HAW304
Summary: When a Navy pilot is found murdered at a local military resort, the

team goes undercover to discover a criminal enterprise hiding in plain
sight.

Sam Hanna was still in Hawaii. It’s still
unclear why he’s in Hawaii. He’s been
helping out with the past couple of cases
and he offered his assistance once again
with the murder of Lieutenant Comman-
der Meredith Brooks. She was a naval pi-
lot staying at military resort. It’s a special
resort for the military as well as their fam-
ilies. It costs money. Which didn’t make
sense for the victim. Meredith was based
in Hawaii. She could easily have stayed
on base. Those accommodation were free
for her. This along with the fact that she

had sex before she died indicated that Meredith went to that hotel to sleep with someone on the
down low.

Like an affair. Meredith was sleeping with either her boss or someone that’s married. Its why
she went to such great lengths to hide it. NCIS also realized within an hour of when it happened.
When the murder took place. Meredith’s hotel had security cameras. The cameras cut out for a
few seconds. It’s clear that someone altered the footage. They came to suspect someone at the
hotel after they got a DNA test off the semen found in Meredith. She was sleeping with Former
Staff Sergeant Frank Howell. He was the night manager of the hotel.

They brought Frank in for questioning. He was refusing to cooperate. He has a history with
NCIS. Frank helped a woman get away from her abusive husband overseas and they were tracked
down. The wife ended up recanting her story. Frank was arrested. He was dishonorably dis-
charged after he served his time. He doesn’t want to help NCIS in any way. He didn’t even want
them knowing he slept with Meredith. Its why he doctored the footage he gave them. Frank was
refusing to cooperate because NCIS has burned him once before.

They had to release Frank because they didn’t have enough evidence against them. He re-
turned to the hotel. So, they put agents at the hotel. Lucy and Kate pretended to be a couple
on their honeymoon. They hung round in the lobby. They tried to gather information, but Lucy’s
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behavior kept getting in the way. Lucy put eyes on them by tipping big to all the servers. People
were now rushing to serve them. They were also gossiping about them and so not good for the
undercover agents. Or learning Meredith’s secrets.

Frank admitted that Meredith was in trouble. He wouldn’t say anything else because he didn’t
trust NCIS only they searched Meredith’s room. They found a recording device. Meredith recorded
her own murder. Her killer didn’t talk. He also surprised Meredith. She didn’t let him in. The key
card system said Frank was the last person to leave the night before. It was Lucy who figured out
how the killer accessed Meredith’s room. Lucy showed that by taking a room a floor above that
she could climb down right onto Meredith’s balcony. This was how the killer got close without
being seen.

Also, the listening device. Why did Meredith have that? She turned it off whenever she slept
with Frank. She wasn’t using it to spy on him. There’s a chance she was using it to spy on others.
Still, why did she do that? It seems she was using it people she met at the hotel. Though oddly
Frank has been meeting with people since Meredith’s death. Kate followed him. Kate saw that he
went into a manufacturing shed. There had their crime scene analysis team go over that shed.
There were drugs found. The drugs were found in the pineapple that get handed out to everyone
at the military hotel.

These pineapples could hold a lot of liquid cocaine. It was also a perfect way to transport it
because now the military were in on it and they were bringing drugs overseas. Meredith was
trying to uncover a giant drug ring. She was unfortunately stopped before she figured it out.
NCIS found out that the drug enterprise was being operated by the cartels. They found bodies
that seemed like they were murdered by cartel. They also found another pineapple house. NCIS
made a lot of arrests. And they figured out who the drug connection at the hotel was.

After Frank’s murder, the pieces all came together. Frank was never the mastermind. George
was. Lucy and Kate made the arrest. They found out that their new friend George truly ran that
hotel. Everyone answers to him. He was also thrown out of the miliary because he was drug
dealing. George tried to pull a knife during his arrest, but Kate had her gun. Gun beats knife.
They arrested George. He now has to sing about everything to get a better plea deal. And Ernie
meanwhile looked into Sam’s official NCIS file only it showed it wasn’t the Naval Office that was
paying to do those seminars.

It was E.L.I.T.E. Whatever they stand for was hidden. Ernie couldn’t even hack them and so
Sam wasn’t being completely honest about his trip to Hawaii.
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Serve and Protect

Season 3
Episode Number: 49
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday March 25, 2024
Writer: Matt Bosack, Fallon O’Dowd
Director: Yangzom Brauen
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), David Meunier (Alexi Volkoff), Peyton List
(Camille Davies), Masha Mashkova (Tatyana Sokolova), Egle Petraite
(Nino Eliava), Rustic Bodomov (Vicktor), Vadym Krasnenko (Lead Gun-
man)

Production Code: HAW305
Summary: NCIS is tasked to protect the daughter of a Russian oligarch carrying

a deadly secret. Meanwhile, Sam asks Tennant for a favor.

Tatyana Sokolov was in Hawaii. Her fam-
ily owns the larges private military firm
in the world. They’ve made billions off of
other people’s suffering and now Tatyana
wants to attend a de-escalation peace
conference. This conference was all about
moving countries away from war.

She wants to take a company she now
co-owns into a new direction. Only she
was hated. There were swarms of protest
as well as protestors on the island that
didn’t want her there or have her be in-
volved in the conference. NCIS was put in

charge of her protection detail. Lucy was assigned to be at Tatyana’s side the whole time.
Guarding Tatyana was easier said than done. She was a handful. She was also hated quite a

lot. The protestors set off a paint bomb to cover her in paint. The protestors tried to tackle her
on the way to the conference and so this case was making everyone work for it. Lucy personally
despised being Tatyana’s bodyguard.

Which Tatyana didn’t understand. She looked into the NCIS Agents that were working as
her protection detail. She said that she and Lucy have a lot in common. They both come from
warmongers.

They were both born into privilege and destruction. Lucy had to admit that she doesn’t have
anything to do with her family’s business. Tatyana didn’t judge her for that. Tatyana even asked
her why her brother Michael was taking over the family business. He wasn’t the oldest son. Was
there something wrong with Lucy’s oldest brother?

Lucy wouldn’t talk about her family, but that wasn’t the only reason Tatyana said they were a
lot alike. Tatyana wants to defect. She wants to turn her back on the family business and that’s
why she agreed to attend the panel. She wanted to be in the United States long enough to defect.

Tatyana wants to leave her old life behind to start over in the United States. Her family doesn’t
know about this plan. Lucy was the first person she told and that’s only because someone
threatened to kill them.
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Still, defection wasn’t easy. NCIS had to run up to the State Department. They were also going
to need information in exchange for protecting Tatyana from the Russians. Tatyana does have
dirt. She just wasn’t going to share it until there was agreement in place. Her father taught her
many things. And that included rationing her bullets.

Tatyana didn’t want to burn bridges if she was going to need them later on. She also seemed
to be hiding something from Lucy. Lucy could tell she had a secret. She could tell because she
has secrets of her own. No one on the team knows about Lucy’s family. They didn’t know she
comes from money. They didn’t know that she practically ran away from that life. They just knew
her family was a touchy subject. Her friends and even her girlfriend never questioned her. Lucy
therefore had the best judge of Tatyana’s character.

She didn’t think Tatyana was solely there to defect. Well, Kai’s Canadian girlfriend proved
to be real. She showed up in Hawaii. Camille Davies is a war correspondent for the Toronto
Examiner.

She was there because she had a lead on Tatyana. She figured out that the conference was a
front. It was to hide the biggest arms deal in history between Sokolov family and the American
government.

Camile told Kai everything. He informed his team. Tatyana stands to make a lot of money
if this deal goes through. And so Tatyana was hoping to use it as a negotiating tactic in any
agreement that has her defecting.

Lucy and Tatyana were discussing it when their armored truck got hit by a RPG. The driver
was killed instantly. There were shooters coming out of the nearby trees to kill them.

They had to go on the run. Lucy tried to get Tatyana to higher ground. It was a little hard to
do because Tatyana’s leg was injured. They also had another problem.

They were traveling with Tatyana’s bodyguard that her family arranged for her to have. His
name is Victor. He was the father’s main man until he became the brother’s main man. And he
was still working for Tatyana’s brother when he tried to kill Lucy.

Tatyana’s brother was out to kill her. It’s a power play. He probably wanted the company all
to himself. He failed to see that Tatyana is willing to let him have it if she gets to walk away
and live a normal life in the States. It’s because her brother doesn’t know about her secret plan
that he set this in motion. He found a protest group. He infiltrated them to make them look like
scapegoats when Tatyana dies. Now Lucy was fighting to keep both her and Tatyana alive long
enough for her team to find them. They had to waste a bullet on Victor.

They couldn’t waste anymore bullets. It’s like what Tatyana said earlier. They have to ration
their bullets to get them to last. They tried to trick the bad guys into following the wrong path
while they doubled back.

The bad guys figured that out. They doubled back as well. Tatyana’s bleeding leg was leading
the bad guys straight to them because she left a trail. She needs urgent medical attention. She
was bleeding out by time Sam and Tennant caught up with them. Sam and Tennant protected
them from the bad guys. They got Tatyana out of there.

She got treated. She now knows her brother is out to kill her. She doesn’t know how he
knew about her defection and so no matter what happens next — Tatyana loses everything. The
government approved her for asylum. She was being taken to a hidden location where she could
give up her family’s secrets.

Sam meanwhile was put in charge of an elite task force operating out of Hawaii. This was why
he was in town and its also why he won’t be leaving anytime soon.

And everyone was just so happy that Kai’s girlfriend was real that they didn’t mind him cutting
out early.
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Operation Red Rabbit

Season 3
Episode Number: 50
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday April 01, 2024
Writer: Amy Rutberg, Mike Diaz
Director: LeVar Burton
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Carla Chase),
Noah Bean (Tyler Bingham), Brianna Brown (Talia), Lesli Margherita
(Sharon Waters), Chelle Ramos (Jill Lee), Rich Ceraulo Ko (Commander
Jack Spence), Linda Castro (Mrs. Potts), Grant Raymond Cooper (Man
at Bar)

Production Code: HAW306
Summary: When the fiancée of a vanished naval officer seeks the help of NCIS, the

team reveals his secrets go much deeper than she suspected. Mean-
while, Sam recruits Kai to be his wingman.

Someone was watching a couple at din-
ner. The couple went out for dinner at
a nice restaurant. They were celebrating
going into business together and that’s
when Jack Spence noticed they were be-
ing watched. He warned his fiancée.

They took off together. Jack said they
had to split up. He told his fiancée to rush
home and pack a go bag, but he said
he’d call for further directions. He never
called. Jack seemingly disappeared that
night and his fiancé has no idea why or if
something happened. And so she went to

NCIS because her fiancé was Naval Commander Jack Spence.
Jack told Talia that he was in Naval Intelligence. She thought something must have happened

to him to stop him from calling when it was safe. He never discussed work with her or any of his
missions. She only knew his involvement with Operation Red Rabbitt because she overhead him
on the phone.

It happened once. She never mentioned it to him because she didn’t want him to become
secretive. Or more secretive in his case. His fiancé went to NCIS when she didn’t hear back from
him and she told them about Operation Red Rabbitt.

Neither Tennant nor anyone in NCIS had been read in on Operation Red Rabbitt. They had
no clue if it existed. Ernie had to contact his old friends at ONI and he learned that it was real.
The mission was real. Jack Spence was also real. He couldn’t get any more information after that
because it was all with super top secret clearance.

The file was redacted for Ernie’s friends and so only someone high up in Naval Intelligence
could explain who was following Jack on the night he disappeared. Something odd that the guys
noticed was that Jack didn’t have any photos of himself at the home he shared with Talia.

Jack did have a special room. Talia couldn’t enter that room. There was a lock on it. Jesse
was able to pick the lock easily and there were lasers inside that didn’t connect to anything.
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NCIS found fake passports in Jack’s secret room. They also found a logo for Sunstreak Café in
the room.

They went to the café. They ran into Jill who ran it. Jill was also Jack’s fiancé. Both she and
Talia met Jack on a dating app. They’ve been giving him money because the navy pays horribly
and he’s taken them for a quarter of a million dollars combined. Jack wasn’t even his real name.

There was a real Jack Spence with Naval Intelligence. He’s been deployed for a year. They
showed him a photo of the fake Jack and he identified him as Tom Bingham. He said Bingham
works in private security. Bingham has been trying to recruit him for months. It turns out
Bingham was also a fake identity.

He just used that to approach the real Jack and get information on him. This pretender had
an entire forum dedicated to him. He’s been defrauding successful women for years for all that
he could get before he disappears.

One of them has tracked down the pretender to Hawaii. This was who was following him. The
woman who tracked him down was Sharon Waters. She was the first of his victims and she told
everyone about finding him on the forum. There were over thirteen women that hated this guy.

They were all conned by him. The police couldn’t help them because he technically didn’t
break any laws in defrauding them. Romancing them to get them to pay him wasn’t a crime. He
didn’t force them to do anything. He just played them.

Sharon hired a private investigator. He tracked down her George. She went to Hawaii to see
him. She planned on confronting him. She wanted to out him to whoever he was conning now
and it was her private investigator that "Jack" noticed was watching them. The PI was David Bell.

He was messaging Sharon while NCIS was interviewing her. Lucy read the messages. It said
that Bell tracked down Jack to a rented house. When NCIS showed up at the house, it blew up.
Someone blew it up with a dead body inside. The body belonged to Bell. The pretender must have
killed him for getting too close and blew up the house to cover his tracks.

They would have realized the pretender was still alive anyways because he was back on the
apps. He was using the dating apps and contacting several women on the island. NCIS reached
out to Talia. They asked her to contact Jack on the dating app.

They explained to her that Jack wasn’t his real name and that he was conning her, but she
didn’t believe them because she gave him money and told him to run when they met at the
stadium. It was a perfect spot to hide in a crowd. Jack was on the run again and now it’s Talia
that’s been arrested.

They detained Talia while they finally found out the pretender’s real name. His real name
was Arnold Russo. He was a care home assistant and his clients started noticing that he’s been
stealing from them. Well, he got assigned to George Malone. Malone disappeared one day around
the same time that Russo did.

Russo waited a couple of months before he started dating Sharon as the new Goerge Malone.
He’s killed before to fake his cover. He’ll kill again if given a chance. Sharon and Jill finally got
through to Talia that it was all a con. And that he was seeing Jill the same time as her.

Talia finally admitted she’s been stupid. She was talking about it with Jill when Sharon
stepped away. Sharon used a fake profile on the dating apps that Russo’s been using. She
claimed to be a woman with a yacht and she couldn’t wait to take him sailing. It was all a ploy
to get Russo to come to her.

Sharon wants to kill him. Its why she tracked him down. She’s been wanting to kill him since
she realized he conned her. She also knew the best way to get him to come to her because Talia
told her that her former fiancé has been making calls to the cayman islands. It’s where he hid
the money.

All the money he stole from all those women. He needed to get off the island to reach the
Cayman Islands. Sharon lured him onto the boat and then she pointed a gun at him. She also
took the boat far away from the dock. She probably wanted to kill him over open water, but NCIS
stopped her in time.

They boarded the boat and they arrested Russo. Sharon still had her payback when she
dumped his go money in the water. She might face trouble for luring him out with a gun only it
wasn’t murder. Russo was still alive. And that couldn’t be said for either George Malone or Bell.

And hell, their community has now gained two more members. It also inspired NCIS to get
Ernie on the dating apps. He’d be so much happier if he met new people and put himself out
there again.
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The Next Thousand

Season 3
Episode Number: 51
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday April 15, 2024
Writer: Matt Bosack, Jan Nash, Christopher Silber
Director: Daniela Ruah
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Carla Chase),
Celeste Oliva (Jane’s Mother), Sean Carrigan (Lieutenant Colonel
Reed), O’Shay Neal (Gunnery Sergeant Clint Osborne), Will Rothhaar
(Gunnery Sergeant Braden Kirk), Stacie Greenwell (Ranger Jo Heath),
Annie Tedesco (Bartender), Brennan Mejia (SSGT Nicholas Ruiz)

Production Code: HAW307
Summary: When a Marine is murdered during training, the NCIS team tracks the

suspect deep into the woods and discovers a disturbing secret.

A park ranger ran into Staff Sergeant
Nicholas Ruiz moments before his death.
He ran screaming from the forests. He
said someone was going to kill him and
he wasn’t wrong. Someone did kill him.
He was shot by a high powered rifle. It
was a military issued ammo in that gun.

He died in the ranger’s arms after
seeking her help. She called it in and
NCIS became involved. Tennant tried to
handle the case with care. She knew why
soldiers might be out in those forests. It
could SERE training. It was also known

as survival training and it was meant to break people down to get the best out of soldiers. They
had to live off the land for a few days. And they were supposed to return once they survived.

Tennant called the Commanding Officer for Nicholas. The guy came in all angry about her
wanting permission to enter those woods only to be told that his soldiers were dying. NCIS went
on to find two more bodies after Nicholas. They were all part of the survival training. Five of them
went off into the woods.

Three was killed. Two were now suspects. Marine Colonel Reed went with Tennant into the
woods. He said he knew how to track them. He also suspected they were looking for Gunnery
Sergeant Clint Osbourne. It was his knife found in the back of one of the dead soldiers.

Also, Osbourne was trouble. He joined the Marines to hide from that trouble. It just didn’t
stop him from getting out of hand. These men they all went to a known marine drinking bar. The
marines that were killed were kicked out of that bar. They damaged the jukebox which is really
expensive. Osbourne wasn’t like them.

He was quiet. He sat alone. He liked watching the bartender. The same bartender that disap-
peared a while ago. Her name was Rebecca Lee. The lady that owns the place said that the rowdy
ones were harmless. It was the quiet ones that were scary. The owner didn’t mention that to HPD
when they came looking for the bartender.
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Kai and Jesse went in a different direction than Tennant and the Colonel. They ended up
finding Gunnery Sergeant Braden Kirk. Kirck said Osborne was trying to kill them. He was
asked about the bartender. They said they love a good drink. It was different for Osbourne. He
was obsessed with Rebecca Lee.

He did something to that girl. They don’t know what. They just know it was him and now he
was targeting them during survival training. He was trying to kill all of them. Kirk was running
for his life when he spotted the NCIS Agents. He begged them for help.

Osbourne was problematic. Everyone said so. This included Colonel that disappeared on
Tennant. Tennant meanwhile came across Osbourne. He knocked her unconscious and ran off.
He didn’t kill her even when he had the opportunity to do so. It was odd. It was supposed to be
a bloodthirsty killer.

There’s no way he would have left Tennant injured but alive if the bloodthirsty part was true.
She lost her radio trying to get help. She found a woman living off the land. She went to her
cabin and she was let in by this strange woman. A woman armed with a rifle.

Tennant was making peace with this woman while the rest of the search party continue to
look. Osbourne caught up to the guys. He killed Kirk. He got away again and the Colonel finally
showed up. He admitted to ditching Tennant. They went looking for Tennant after that. They
found her radio.

They thought they heard Osbourne and they started shooting. Tennant could hear it from the
abandon house. She had imagined a woman living there because she had questions herself. Why
was Osbourne sent for training? He was supposed to be trouble. Why did Osbourne set traps?
Who did he think was coming?

Tennant had so many questions. It turns out the Medical Examiner had the answers. They
found Rebecca’s body. She was killed by at lest three people.

Osbourne works alone. He was considered a lone wolf. He didn’t kill her. He knew who killed
her and that’s why he was hiding. He was protecting himself. He set boobytraps for whoever was
after him. He didn’t hurt Tennant because he knew she was innocent of crimes. Tennant figured
it all out while she heard the gunshots. She followed it to see Osbourne. She tried to reason with
him.

He was in fight mode. He started shooting. The Colonel tried to kill him for killing his men. Or
so he claimed. Sam stopped Osbourne. Tennant stopped the Colonel. Osbourne killed his unit
because they were rapists. They target women and they assaulted their victims together. They
did the same with Rebecca.

She saw them coming because Osbourne warned her. That’s why he was always watching her.
He warned her and she tried to fight back. The men killed her. They raped and murder her. They
are the four other men that were sent with Osbourne. And the man that gave them the order.

The Colonel’s DNA was all over Rebecca. They have him on rape and murder. They planned
on killing Osbourne because he tried to warn their latest victim and they saw that as a betrayal.
They were afraid he would talk. That training exercise was all about killing Osbourne. He knew
to be prepared before he entered that forest. And he won’t be charged now for self-defense.

Rebecca will get justice.
Tennant later realized the woman she envisioned helping her was in fact her mother. Her

mother came to help.
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Into Thin Air

Season 3
Episode Number: 52
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday April 22, 2024
Writer: Ron McGee, Megan Bacharach
Director: Sherman Shelton
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Seana Kofoed (Medical Examiner Carla Chase),
Brandon Fobbs (Master Sergeant Caleb Latham), Nikiva Dionne (Sadie
Latham), Rachelle Goulding (Lana Kyle), John Patrick Jordan (Brock
Overton), Hualalai Chung (Task Rabbit), Dalex Miller (Marlon Vega)

Production Code: HAW308
Summary: After a Marine’s wife is kidnapped for ransom, the NCIS team uncovers

dark secrets as they race to track down her abductor before it’s too
late. Meanwhile, Sam seeks Ernie’s expertise decrypting a computer
program that may have deadly ramifications.

The FBI was investigating an abduc-
tion on the island. The victim was Sadie
Latham. She was the wife of Marine Mas-
ter Sergeant Caleb Latham. He enlisted
at eighteen. She’s been working since
she was seventeen. They didn’t have the
money that would interest kidnappers.

They were pure blue collar. Yet, the
kidnappers grabbed Sadie in broad day-
light. They didn’t even care about a dozen
witnesses seeing them. They grabbed
Sadie anyways and they must have done
it for a reason. NCIS were brought in to

talk to Sadie’s husband. They asked Caleb about enemies. He hesitated when he said he had
none.

Caleb tried to walk that back when he later said they didn’t have enemies. Nor did they come
in any money. Caleb was surprised like everyone else when the ransom call came in and the
kidnappers demanded three million dollars. He didn’t have that money. His wife didn’t have that
money.

Kate was with the FBI. She knew they couldn’t pay the full ransom. They would instead try to
use the drop off to catching the kidnappers and rescuing Sadie. It was up to NCIS to keep Caleb
calm. They asked him to go over everything.

His wife works as a manager at a health club. She couldn’t afford to join in spite of her
discount. She had to attend as a guest of her friend and her friend didn’t have money either.

There was no evidence whatsoever that the Lathams had three million dollars. What was the
kidnappers thinking? Caleb was losing it when his best friend showed up at the house. Brock
Overton had heard what happened. He came over to supposedly check on Caleb. He was the only
one that seemed to genuinely calm him.
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Caleb has history with Brock. They were both a part of a convoy in Iraq. They got hit by an
IED. Caleb and Brock were the only two to survive out of the convoy. Both returned stateside
with a drinking problem.

Their convoy as well as everything connected to it was deemed classified. Caleb lied when
he told both the FBI and NCIS that he’s never been involved in anything classified. He couldn’t
technically admit to anything, but he was scary when he came back. His wife was afraid of him.
She told her friend that she planned on leaving him to give them a much-needed break.

According to the friend, Caleb’s drinking problem got so bad that he hurt his wife. Its why she
wanted the break. NCIS came to suspect that Sadie’s kidnapping involved Caleb. They suspected
that Caleb had his friend kidnap his wife so that he could play the hero or possibly kill her
without anyone knowing. They sat on his house. They saw him sneak out. They followed him
to the cemetery when he started screaming. Caleb had just found the body of his best friend.
Someone killed Brock and dumped him where the money used to be.

What money you say? Caleb and Brock were transporting three million dollars taken during a
mission. Seven Marines died and the best friends figured they might as well as keep the money.

They let everyone believe that the money had gotten destroyed while they secretly smuggled
it into the States. They buried it in Caleb’s family plot at the cemetery. The plan was to wait
five years before they even looked at the money again. Brock and Caleb didn’t know how the
kidnappers knew about the three million.

Brock was going to dig up the money so that they could afford the ransom. Someone grabbed
the money and they also killed Brock. It just wasn’t the kidnappers. Or Caleb.

The kidnappers still called Caleb about the money. They told him he has an hour to drop it
off or they were going to kill Sadie. Caleb dropped off the bag of about seventy grand. The rest
was funny money. The kidnappers watched as someone they paid on TaskRabbitt picked up the
money. And then the feds moved in to arrest the guy.

They knew that Caleb wasn’t going to pay. They called Caleb again. They killed Sadie in front of
everyone. Only it was odd that they didn’t show her body. They just showed a shovel pummeling
what could be Sadie or what could be a dummy. There was the slight chance that Sadie was in
on the kidnapping.

They also knew Marlon Vega was involved as well. Vega was one of the few people that knew
about the three million dollars. He was the traveling bank teller. He’s the one that got the money
together and delivered it to the convoy in Iraq.

Vega lost his job when the money disappeared. He started drinking. He became addicted to
narcotics. He was living in Hawaii and that’s when Sadie found him. Sadie planned everything.

She always planned on faking her death as well as pinning it all on Vega. NCIS caught up
to Vega. They were forced to kill him when he refused to drop his weapon. Vega didn’t know
that they had the money because his partner had played him. His partner followed Brock to the
cemetery. They already had the money and that’s why she killed Brock.

They pretended to go along with the kidnapping to buy them some time. Sadie was "killed"
when in reality she gets to play dead with three million dollars. The Medical Examiner put that
together.

She said that the blood found at the scene had been stored. It wasn’t fresh. Plus, the blood
spatter on the wall had been faked. Sadie played everyone. She just couldn’t fool the Medical
Examiner. Tennant was informed about the ME’s findings. They began looking for Sadie. Sadie
must have a partner. A real partner that she ran off with the money with.

That’s when they remembered her friend, Lana. The same Lana that claimed Sadie told her
that Caleb was scary and implied that Caleb beat her. Lana was a part of the plot. She and Sadie
were together. Sadie had an affair with Lana because Lana’s connections could get them fake
passports. The two women were found in Fiji making out.

They were arrested and were going to be deported back to the States. Sadie quickly turned on
Lana. She claimed the whole plan was Lana’s idea. She even said Lana was forced her to do it
because she’s a monster. And so naturally Lana claimed it was all Sadie’s doing.

Sam’s ELITE taskforce was compromised when someone planted malware on a confiscated
laptop. Thankfully, Ernie found it and he could help safeguard them.
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Spill the Tea

Season 3
Episode Number: 53
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday April 29, 2024
Writer: Ron McGee, Megan Bacharach
Director: LeVar Burton
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Henry Ian Cusick (John Swift), Seana Kofoed
(Medical Examiner Carla Chase), Sharif Atkins (Norman ’Boom Boom’
Gates), David Meunier (Alexi Volkoff), Rachel Marsh (Dr. Analisa Cruz),
Jake Allyn (New Jesse), Vivian Lamolli (Rosemary), Joseph Lee Ander-
son (Thyme), Raphael Corkhill (Milos Vukicevic), Nikolai Tsankov (Lev
Fedorov), Zane Stephens (Barry), Mark Beltzman (Butcher)

Production Code: HAW309
Summary: When a high-value bioweapons expert is murdered in a secure facility,

NCIS and the NCIS Elite team join forces to track down the killer and
discover an even deadlier threat.

The team was picked up by a mysterious
black van. They were picked up by NCIS:
ELITE. The ELITE task force was being
run by Sam Hana. He normally wouldn’t
have included anyone else and he was
forced to do so by a situation that hap-
pened tonight.

The secret task force was in charge
of a prisoner. They were holding onto
Alexi Volkoff. He was also known as "the
Chemist". He was giving their government
intel on the Russian missions as well as
toxins he created. He was talking about

Compound X when he was murdered.
He was killed in ELITE’s custody. There were about thirty people in total that knew about

ELITE. Everyone on the task force was called in. There was just one person that wasn’t picking
up the phone. His name was Tom Kalilko. He never entered the secret tunnels or the room it led
to.

He was stationary outside. Kai and Lucy went to his house on the island. They unfortunately
him dead. They also spoke with his killer who pretended to be his college roommate. He said his
name was Barry. Barry gave the game away when he reached for a knife.

He threw at them before eventually getting away. NCIS looked into Tom. He ran into this Barry
about three days ago. Barry got Tom to drug the supplies going into the tunnels and that’s how
they killed Volkoff. Volkoff had a compromised immune system. He was around toxins for too
long.

One mere herbal supplement was enough to kill him. This was how he was poisoned. ELITE
was compromised because of Tom. Then Tom was killed. Kai and Lucy’s description of Barry also
helped identify the killer. They don’t have a name just yet. They do on the other hand knew he
was tied with the Russian mob because of his tattoo.
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The tattoo got them a name. Barry’s real name was Viktor Nimerov. He worked with Gorod
Bratva. It was the biggest Russian mob because it has ties all around the world. Ernie found one
of their safehouses on the island. ELITE along with NCIS hit the building. They practically killed
everyone inside.

There was just one survivor and it was a woman they seemed to be holding hostage. The
hostage was Analisa Cruise. She has a PHD in Chemistry. She was Volkoff’s assistant. She
couldn’t quit. She thought he was safe when he disappeared and unfortunately she got grabbed
by the mob.

Analisa Cruise knew all about Volkoff immune deficiencies. She was forced into helping them
kill him. She also help them figure out Compound X. Volkoff destroyed his own immunity to
build it. I

t was a job like no other. He went in knowing it could kill him one day. Yet, he didn’t care.
Volkoff has already made Compound X. Its why he was so sick that a herbal supplement could
kill him. NCIS talked to Analisa. They asked her what she knew about Compound X. She said it
was tasteless as well as odorless. It could kill hundreds in a contained space.

Analisa just doesn’t know where Volkoff hid it. It’s the one thing she doesn’t know. Volkoff
treated her like a secretary. She made his dinner plans and kept his appointment book.

She didn’t know all of his secrets. ELITE did. They spoke with Volkoff for months. They un-
derstand his obsession with Belgrade. Belgrade was being held by the Russian mob. They have
properties all over there. Tennant also has a friend there known as Milos. Milos was considered
the Merchant of Belgrade. There was nothing he couldn’t provide.

Gorod Bratva also knew they were in town. Milos was contacted by Lev Federov. He was
considered the Godfather because he ran Gordo Bratva. Milos may love Tennant only he still has
to live in Belgrade.

He told Federov about NCIS. Tennant now has to meet with him. She has to tell him that they
were looking for something and she couldn’t use her badge to intimidate him to get answers.
Tennant holds no power overseas. ELITE does. ELITE went looking for Compound X. They hit
chemical plants in Belgrade while Tennant was talking to Federov. Federov revealed crucial in-
formation. He revealed that they never brought Analisa to Hawaii. She was already in Hawaii
when they found her. She had been there for weeks.

ELITE took Analisa with them when they collected Compound X. She waited until they let
their guard and mask down to release one of the cannisters. She killed everyone but Sam. Sam
had gotten a warning about Analisa. He got out in time. He couldn’t say that for his team.
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Divided We Conquer

Season 3
Episode Number: 54
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday May 06, 2024
Writer: Yalun Tu, Megan Bacharach
Director: Christine Moore
Show Stars: Vanessa Lachey (NCIS Special Agent Jane Tennant), Alex Tarrant

(NCIS Special Agent Kai Holman), Noah Mills (NCIS Special Agent
Jesse Boone), Yasmine Al-Bustami (NCIS Junior Field Agent Lucy
Tara), Jason Antoon (NCIS Cyber Intelligence Specialist Ernie Malik),
Tori Anderson (DIA Special Agent Kate Whistler)

Guest Stars: LL Cool J (Sam Hanna), Henry Ian Cusick (John Swift), Seana Ko-
foed (Medical Examiner Carla Chase), Rachel Marsh (Dr. Analisa Cruz),
Raphael Corkhill (Milos Vukicevic), Jake Allyn (New Jesse), Julie White
(Maggie Shaw), Martin Harris (Kommandant), Lars Slind (SAJ Sol-
dier), Shania Lei Bravo (Maria Flores), Cassie Jo Craig (Hotel Security
Woman), Irie Love (Irie Love (Singer)), Joseph Lee Anderson (Thyme),
Vivian Lamolli (Rosemary)

Production Code: HAW310
Summary: Following a devastating ambush with a deadly bioweapon, the NCIS

team must track down a mysterious terrorist group before they can
strike again.

Analisa Cruz was more than she let on.
She pretended to be Alexi Volkoff’s assis-
tant. She was actually his partner and
she came to Hawaii on her own.

She pretended she was dragged there
by kidnappers, but that too was a lie.
She always knew where Volkoff was. She
wanted access to Compound X. It was
a bioweapon that Volkoff created. Cruz
plans on giving it to her friends. She even
dosed the ELITE team with the virus and
Sam accidentally got infected as well. He
tried to save his team.

New Jesse stopped him. The kid didn’t want Sam dying like the rest of them. He stopped Sam
from going into the room only Sam’s face respirator had a crack in it. He still inhaled some of
the air. He inhaled Compound X. He got infected. He couldn’t save his team. He tried going after
Cruz.

His symptoms stopped him. He was slowly dying and she got away in the chaos. Sam was
found by Jesse and Tennant. They were so concerned about Sam that they didn’t care that Cruz
was getting away with the virus.

They brought in Dr. Chase. She checked out Sam. She was an expert in bioweapons. She saw
what the virus did his team and so she didn’t understand why Sam was still alive.

Sure, he was barely infected. He got a mere second of the virus. It was still slowly killing him.
What Sam couldn’t understand was why it didn’t infect Cruz the same way. She breathed in
some of the air. The only reason she’s not dead herself was because she has an antidote. They
could still save Sam’s life if they get their hands on the antidote.

They just needed to find Cruz first. They did some digging into Cruz. She legally changed her
name from Tala Flores to Analisa Cruz. She was originally from the Philippines.

113



NCIS: Hawai’i Episode Guide

She was radicalized into hating Americans. She wants all of American involvement to leave
her country. She hated American imperialism. She wanted to break them. The virus was the best
way to do that. She escaped with it. Jesse went into the room with the dead ELITE team. He
found what was left of the antidote. He took it and he ran into some problems with the Serbian
police.

Whistler had called in some favors. The Serbian police were going to guard the chemical plant
where the ELITE team were killed. It was their job to guard the building until the hazmat team
arrived. Tennant meanwhile went after Cruz.

They know now that she lied about everything because she intended to betray them. Its why
she changed her name in the first place. She wanted to fly under the radar and what she couldn’t
do was stop a bullet. Tennant shot her when she caught up to her. It was a shoulder wound.

It was a through and through. Not that it stopped Cruz from complaining. She was yelling
about human rights and wanting to see a doctor. Tennant locked her alone in a room.

Cruz also no longer had Compound X. She already handed it over to her terrorist group. She
was still kept as a prisoner because Tennant wanted information on the group and on the virus
itself. Only Cruz didn’t want to give up information. Tennant ended up telling her what they
found out about Tala. Tala was evicted from her house to make room for an American army
base.

Tala’s mother died of cancer. Her father killed himself. Tala was separated from her only sister.
She managed to finish school and get a PHD in Chemistry. She made something of herself. That’s
when she became Cruz. She just didn’t know how to let go of the anger. Tennant was also angry.

She watched Cruz killed several of the ELITE team. She was watching Sam die. She wanted to
hurt Cruz. She really wanted to hurt her after her team learned that the terrorist group traveled
back to Hawaii. That Hawaii was where they planned on releasing the virus.

Tennant’s people tracked down Cruz’s sister, Maria. Maria was living with family in Canada.
Tennant had Maria detained and tied to a chair. She said that everything she orders to happen
will be done to Maria. Tennant planned on breaking Cruz. She knew Cruz could withstand
torture. Can Maria do the same?

Cruz must not have thought so because she cracked. She begged for her sister’s life. She
didn’t know where the terrorist group was. And once her sister was tortured some more, Cruz
admitted that they planned on attacking the Pacific Launch Initiative.

American military were coming together on the island to discuss the military’s future in the
Pacific. Once Cruz told them what they needed to know, they ended the live footage of her sister.

It wasn’t her sister by the way. The whole thing was AI. It was actually Lucy. Tennant also
didn’t think she broke Cruz. Not truly. She thought Cruz was acting. She said that any spy would
have a back up plan. She realized that the terrorists weren’t after the servicemen and women.
They were after their families. Their families had a devoted day to hang out.

They would be the perfect victims for a terrorist group. All the terrorists had to do was knock
out a couple of staff members of the hotel. They stole their clothes and badges. They wore masks.

They planned on releasing Compound X through the air circulation system. NCIS that were
on the island found the terrorists and stopped the attack. Sam was given the antidote now that
they don’t need it to create more. Sam being back on his feet came in handy when Cruz broke
out of the room. Sam shot and killed her.

Cruz would have killed the doctor if he hadn’t taken the shot.
Sam traveled with NCIS back to Hawaii. They had a party for their fallen. Tennant later

returned home to find Maggie waiting for her and Maggie said she should get a drink before
whatever it was comes next.
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Seth Adam Braverman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0220 (Jake Boone)

Shania Lei Bravo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0310 (Maria Flores)

Enisha Brewster . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0213 (Tracy Meadows)

Michael Broderick. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0110 (Dr. Andrew Wilson)

Emerson Brooks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0209 (DEA Agent Jerry Covington)

Brianna Brown.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0306 (Talia)

Dylan Bruce . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0219 (Major Thomas Mullen)

David Anthony Buglione. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0111 (Bodyguard #2)

Jamaal Burcher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Charles Randolph)

Jax Buresh . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0301 (Hammond Gant); 0302 (Hammond Gant)

Wesley Busser . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Examiner)

Omar Bustamante . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0111 (Detective Roy Burr)

Jacob Buster . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0216 (Robbie Morrison)

Gabrielle Byndloss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0118 (Tessa Holt)

C
Bobby Cabino . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0220 (Store Clerk / Nelson Carr)
Mike Cabrera . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0111 (Stanley Zhao)
Rafael Cabrera . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0116 (Watts)
J.R. Cacia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0216 (Bill Morrison)
Patrick Cage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Mike Williams)
David Call . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0114 (Joel Johnson)
Kala’e Camarillo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Special Live Musical Performance)
Davis Cameron. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0218 (U.S. Marshal)
Johnny Cannizzaro . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0116 (Ryan Delucci)
T.V. Carpio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Nalani Whitman)
Sean Carrigan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0307 (Lieutenant Colonel Reed)
Adan Carrillo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0222 (Street Kid)
Brad Carter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0117 (Kevin Rooker)
Romualdo Castillo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (William Strafford)
Linda Castro. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0306 (Mrs. Potts)
Rafael Cebrián . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0117 (Rodney Shine)
Duane Char . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Doctor)
Wes Chatham .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0212 (Brother Ellis Kane)
Darny Chau .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0104 (Nurse); 0106 (VIP Date); 0116 (Waitress); 0217
(Bikini Girl)

Wayne Chi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Japanese Singing Sailor #2)

Hualalai Chung . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0308 (Task Rabbit)

Nathan Ray Clark . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0221 (Tourist Man)

Kate Cobb . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0116 (Jenny Alika)

Andy Cohen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Ryan Barnett)

Catero Alain Colbert . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0216 (Kenny Sparks)

Gary Cole . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0118 (FBI Special Agent Alden Parker); 0201 (NCIS

Special Agent Alden Parker); 0210 (NCIS Spe-
cial Agent Alden Parker)

Lauren Cook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0104 (Det. Dalia Reed); 0111 (Det. Dalia Reed); 0213

(Det. Dalia Reed)
Grant Raymond Cooper. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0306 (Man at Bar)
Raphael Corkhill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0309 (Milos Vukicevic); 0310 (Milos Vukicevic)
Sir Cornwell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Micah Whitman)
Blaze Cosner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Moke)
Wolf Lee Counsel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Martin)
Cassie Jo Craig. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0310 (Hotel Security Woman)
Nick Creegan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0218 (Agent Sam Crichton); 0301 (Agent Sam Crich-
ton); 0302 (Agent Sam Crichton)

Chloe Csengery. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0115 (Gracie Boone); 0120 (Gracie Boone)

Kevin Csolak . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0213 (Petty Officer Gattman)

Henry Ian Cusick . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
0221 (John Swift); 0222 (OSP Supervisory Agent

John Swift); 0302 (John Swift); 0309 (John
Swift); 0310 (John Swift)

D
Jackie Dallas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0214 (Young Mom)
Trevor Danielson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Pilot)
Nico David . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Adrian Hely)
Bill Dawes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0303 (T.J. Shaw)
Michael DeCamp .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0217 (Hard Dude #1)
Nakoa DeCoite . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0205 (Max Koa)
Joanna DeLane . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0303 (HPD Officer)
Brian DeRozan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0304 (Marco Cano)
Luke Deal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0210 (Black Site Guard #1)
Alex Denney . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (American Soldier)
Aaron Densley. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0212 (Captain Willem Dennison)
Seamus Dever . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0220 (Scott)
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Damien Diaz. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0220 (Joe Pitt)

Brian Dietzen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0201 (Chief Medical Examiner Jimmy Palmer); 0210

(Dr. Jimmy Palmer)
Nikiva Dionne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0308 (Sadie Latham)
Andy Dispensa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0213 (Petty Officer Calvin Lynch)
Ashley Doris . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Tour Guide)
Jason Downs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0121 (Breskov)
Rocki DuCharme. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0218 (Female Camper)
Zack Duhame .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0119 (Joseph Gooden)
Moku Durant. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0208 (Frederick)

E
Kenan Eames. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0214 (Vinh)
Jeremy Isaiah Earl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0204 (Ranger Delroy Windell)
Anastasia Edwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0208 (Mabel’s Sister #3)
Terrence Arashi Elliott . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0203 (Cargo Facility Guard)
Presciliana Esparolini. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0115 (Rebecca Hely)
Luis R. Espinoza . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0221 (Venezuelan Intel Member #2)
Elena Evangelo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0208 (Janice Motts)

F
Juani Feliz. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0212 (CID Summer Westmore)
James Ferris . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0214 (Sean Clark)
Greg Finley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0212 (Sgt. Justin Baxter)
Patrick Fischler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0114 (Doug Smith)
Beth Fisher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0220 (Beth)
Chrissie Fit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0217 (Roxanne)
Brandon Fobbs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0308 (Master Sergeant Caleb Latham)
Juliana Folk . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Cara)
Clay Donahue Fontenot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0222 (Driver)
Clark Freeman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0118 (Brent Spooner)
Jonathan R. Freeman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0213 (Clayton Hickey)
Michael Marc Friedman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0209 (DEA Agent Ned Ross)

G
Evan Gamble . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0220 (Ethan Denton)
Mark Gessner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

0107 (CGIS Special Agent Neil Pike); 0115 (CGIS
Special Agent Neil Pike); 0121 (CGIS Special
Agent Neil Pike); 0122 (CGIS Special Agent
Neil Pike); 0204 (CGIS Agent Neil Pike); 0211
(CGIS Agent Neil Pike); 0302 (CGIS Special
Agent Neil Pike)

Chris Payne Gilbert . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0217 (Dante Reeves)

Enver Gjokaj . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
0101 (Navy Captain Joe Milius); 0102 (Navy Cap-

tain Joe Milius); 0105 (Captain Joseph Mil-
ius); 0108 (Captain Joe Milius); 0121 (Cap-
tain Joe Milius); 0122 (Captain Joe Milius);
0217 (Captain Joe Milius)

Carter Glade. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0303 (Darrow)

Siena Goines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0120 (Marci)

Caitlin Gold. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0220 (Nicole)

Danny J. Gomez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0214 (Don Mercado)

Kanoa Goo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (Hoku Alia)

Ioane Goodhue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0221 (Captain Akas)

Moses Goods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
0101 (Wally Holman); 0102 (Wally Holman); 0104

(Wally Holman); 0107 (Wally Holman); 0116
(Wally Holman); 0122 (Wally Holman); 0209
(Wally); 0211 (Wally); 0213 (Wally Holman)

Matt Gottlieb . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0301 (Guy)

Rachelle Goulding. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0308 (Lana Kyle)

Alexander Grace. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0206 (Jasper Kanahele)

Nick Gracer. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0111 (Trey Santos)

Ivana Grahovac . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Euro Tourist Woman)

JP Graves-Lock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0115 (Classmate #2)

Jenna Leigh Green . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Morgan Davenport)

Suzanne Green. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0215 (Bystander)

David Bertin Greene . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0116 (Alonzo Descanso)

Stacie Greenwell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0307 (Ranger Jo Heath)

H
Michael Hake. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0302 (Jaxon Kekoa)
Linc Hand . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0122 (Charlie 1); 0208 (Charlie 1); 0215 (Charlie
1); 0221 (Charlie 1); 0222 (Charlie 1)

Marcus Hanson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Karl Pike)

Martin Harris. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0310 (Kommandant)

Kim Hawthorne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Dr. Laura Frost)

Tim Herkenhoff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0114 (Silkies)

Stacey Hinnen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0206 (Bartender)

Jonah Ho’okano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0205 (A.J. Hale); 0211 (A.J. Hale); 0213 (A.J. Hale)
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Danny Hogan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0116 (Saugus)

Ashton Holmes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Eddie Frazier)

Nolan Hong. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0218 (Co-Pilot)

Shigeki Hosokawa. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0202 (Naoki Hayami)

Jason Lee Hoy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0107 (Kyle Westbrook)

Charlie Hudson III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0208 (Duggy Atwater)

I
Kevin LaRosa II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0218 (Pilot)
La’amaikahiki Ibarra. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0205 (Young Boy)
Siua Ikale’o . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0205 (Ricky Sio)
Jennifer Ingrum.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0302 (Host)
Keane Ishii . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Impatient Soldier)

J
LL Cool J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

0210 (Special Agent Sam Hanna); 0222 (Special
Agent Sam Hanna); 0301 (Sam Hanna); 0302
(Sam Hanna); 0303 (Sam Hanna); 0304 (Sam
Hanna); 0305 (Sam Hanna); 0306 (Sam Hanna);
0307 (Sam Hanna); 0308 (Sam Hanna); 0309
(Sam Hanna); 0310 (Sam Hanna)

Carlin James . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Kekoa Neal)

Laura James . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0114 (Meg)

Tobias Jelinek. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0219 (Paolo Castile)

DaJuan Johnson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0220 (New Dawn Leading Member)

April Parker Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0112 (Valerie Dalies)

John Marshall Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0304 (George Conrad)

Lanny Joon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0215 (Lieutenant Adrian Park)

John Patrick Jordan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0308 (Brock Overton)

Olivia Jordan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0203 (Vessela Toska)

Yvonne Juarez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0119 (Nurse)

K
Hanale Kaanapu .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Paniolo)
Emmanuel Kabongo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Pirate #2)
Jaiden Kaine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Bandile)
Perry Kainoa. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0119 (Navy Officer Reid Keller)
Antal Kalik . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0203 (Thug 1)
Danny Kang . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0112 (Alan Liu); 0208 (Special Agent Alan Lem);
0215 (Special Agent Alan Lem)

Kimo Kaona . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Eli Kealoha / Assistant Bank Manager)

Alicia Kaori . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0208 (Emma Rose)

Adam Karst. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0208 (Harom)

Toshiki Kashû.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0202 (Kazunari Kuroki)

Marianette Kauahikaua. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0209 (Yoga Instructor)

Tyler Kealakai . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0208 (Mabel’s Sister #4)

Kordell Kekoa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Kahu)

Dylan Kenin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0218 (Laird Harriman)

Anna Khaja. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0301 (Marcia Adler)

Evan Khay. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0113 (Special Live Musical Performance)

Chris Kim.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0101 (HPD Officer #2); 0109 (Sick Soldier)

Rich Ceraulo Ko. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0306 (Commander Jack Spence)

Beulah Koale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0112 (David Sola); 0113 (David Sola)

Frederick Koehler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0302 (Henry West)

Nicholas Koenig . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0117 (Dax McAffrey)

Seana Kofoed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28
0105 (Commander Chase); 0108 (Medical Exam-

iner Chase); 0109 (Carla Chase); 0112 (Med-
ical Examiner Chase); 0114 (Medical Exam-
iner Carla Chase); 0118 (Medical Examiner
Chase); 0119 (Medical Examiner Chase); 0121
(Medical Examiner Chase); 0122 (Medical Ex-
aminer Chase); 0201 (Medical Examiner Chase);
0203 (Medical Examiner Chase); 0204 (Med-
ical Examiner Chase); 0206 (Medical Exam-
iner Carla Chase); 0209 (Medical Examiner
Chase); 0212 (Medical Examiner Chase); 0214
(Medical Examiner Chase); 0215 (Medical Ex-
aminer Chase); 0218 (Medical Examiner Chase);
0219 (Medical Examiner Chase); 0220 (Medi-
cal Examiner Chase); 0222 (Commander Carla
Chase); 0302 (Medical Examiner Chase); 0304
(Medical Examiner Chase); 0306 (Medical Ex-
aminer Carla Chase); 0307 (Medical Exam-
iner Carla Chase); 0308 (Medical Examiner
Carla Chase); 0309 (Medical Examiner Carla
Chase); 0310 (Medical Examiner Carla Chase)

Charley Koontz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0119 (Siggy Williams)

Vadym Krasnenko. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0305 (Lead Gunman)

Catherine Kresge. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0207 (Allie Acosta)

Tomoka Kurotani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0202 (Maho Mizuno)

Efka Kvaraciejus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Euro Tourist Man)

L
Ashleigh LaThrop . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (Navy Petty Officer Tracy Miller)
Eric Ladin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0204 (Ranger Bryson Stone)
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Vivian Lamolli . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0309 (Rosemary); 0310 (Rosemary)

Chloe Lanier. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Kayla Barlow)

Katrina Law .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0118 (NCIS Special Agent Jessica Knight); 0201

(NCIS Special Agent Jessica Knight)
Scott Lawrence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Judge Malcolm Keen)
Kanoa Leahey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0205 (Announcer)
Kyle Leatherberry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0206 (Tyler Malone)
Chris Naoki Lee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Young Ito)
Pedro Lemus Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Navy Honor Guard)
Tom Lenk. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0120 (Carter Dunlap)
Sammy Liddell III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0207 (Scared Kid)
Abraham Lim.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0120 (Neil Blake)
Luis Linares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0216 (Ross Lamont)
Natalee Linez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0303 (Gina Martinez)
Peyton List. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0305 (Camille Davies)
Bruce Locke . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0211 (Oda Sato)
Lydia Look. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Andrea Pacheco)
Irie Love . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0310 (Irie Love (Singer))
Victor Lozano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0115 (Captain)
Diana Lu. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0213 (Alana Hale)
Jess Lundgren . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0304 (Derek Tupua)
Erica Luttrell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0209 (DEA Agent Kendra Vreeland)
Eric C. Lynch. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Lt. Shay)

M
MASUMI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0211 (Yumi Sato)
Tara Macken . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0221 (Imposter); 0222 (Corpse)
Chris Magpoc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (ME Tech)
Keoni Maiwela . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Local #1)
Titus Makin Jr.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Lt. Adam Barlow)
Alec Mapa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0114 (Dr. Tony Lee)
Lesli Margherita . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0306 (Sharon Waters)
Rachel Marsh. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0309 (Dr. Analisa Cruz); 0310 (Dr. Analisa Cruz)
Dan Martin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Paul Johnson)
Martin Martinez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Brad Pacheco)
Nick Masciangelo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Parrot-Head)
Masha Mashkova . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0305 (Tatyana Sokolova)
Donnie Masihi. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0218 (Howie)
Jordan Matlock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Mainlander #1)
Stephanie Mitsuko Matsuba . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0205 (Mother)
Jake Matthews . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0219 (Aaron Patel)
Katie McCabe. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0221 (Tourist Woman)
Chris McGarry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Hugh Lowry)
Michael McGlone. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0220 (Dennis Lang)
Tavana McMoore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0121 (Special Live Musical Performance)
Anthony Means . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Oania Boy #1)
Caitlin Mehner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0121 (Anna Freeloff)
Brennan Mejia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0307 (SSGT Nicholas Ruiz)
Ron Menzel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0116 (Donovan Mance)
Jackson Mercado . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Elliott Sacks)
David Meunier. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3

0302 (Alexi Volkoff); 0305 (Alexi Volkoff); 0309 (Alexi
Volkoff)

Austin Michael . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Naval Officer)

Izabella Miko . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0122 (Alina Nikitin)

Dalex Miller. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0308 (Marlon Vega)

Kate Miner. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0203 (LCDR Audrey Garrett)

Kimié Miner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0113 (Special Live Musical Performance)

Eric Mita. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0211 (Taka Machida)

Cara Mitsuko. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0219 (Lara Uchida)

Leon Mobley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0113 (Special Live Musical Performance)

Mason Michael Moore. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0201 (Air Traffic Controller)

James Morrison . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0210 (Norman Dell)

Chris Moss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Hunan Wade)

Kainalu Moya. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0205 (Titus Ioane)

Patrick Mulvey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0304 (Frank Howell)

Rocky Myers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0216 (Commander Jared Barnes)

N
Don Nahaku.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0208 (Tran)
Shunsuke Nakamura . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Akihiko Murasame)
Mahina Napoleon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

0101 (Julie Tennant); 0102 (Julie Tennant); 0103
(Julie Tennant); 0106 (Julie Tennant); 0109
(Julie Tennant); 0112 (Julie Tennant); 0114
(Julie Tennant); 0121 (Julie Tennant); 0122
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(Julie Tennant); 0214 (Julie Tennant); 0221
(Julie Tennant); 0222 (Julie Tennant)

Iman Nazemzadeh . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0121 (Dr. Dunne); 0122 (Dr. Dunne)

O’Shay Neal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0307 (Gunnery Sergeant Clint Osborne)

Michael Ng. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0119 (Kevin Trager)

Dustin Nguyen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Sunny Oania)

Judy Nguyen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0216 (HPD Officer Martinez)

Ryan Nishi. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Japanese Singing Sailor #3)

O
Chris O’Donnell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0210 (Special Agent "G" Callen)
Eriko Okada. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Japanese Woman)
Jason Manuel Olazabal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Jake Tillman)
Celeste Oliva . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0307 (Jane’s Mother)
Dawn Olivieri . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0210 (Melina Devlin)
Arianna Ortiz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0219 (Colonel Jocelyn Watkins)

P
Kila Packett. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Kaleo Whitman)
Ryan Pagan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (HPD Officer #1)
Caro Pampillo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Andrea Medina)
Greena Park . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0215 (Bomi Seong)
Shawn Passwaters . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0203 (Michael Garrett)
Armand Patterson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0219 (Dr. Hampton)
Keala Patterson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Bartender)
Paul L Patterson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0118 (Suspect #3)
Andre Pelzer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0116 (Natchez)
Luis Pereira. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (HPD Officer)
Lucian Perez. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0207 (Theo Acosta)
Egle Petraite . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0305 (Nino Eliava)
Aleks Pevec . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0208 (Petty Officer Kendall Wells)
Derek Phillips . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0120 (FBI ASAC Michael Curtis); 0216 (FBI ASAC
Michael Curtis); 0217 (FBI ASAC Michael Cur-
tis)

J.B. Piernas Jr.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0303 (Guard One)

Bronson Pinchot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0119 (Darrin Schwartz)

Oksana Platero . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0203 (Malkie)

Joan Powers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0214 (Monica Bernal)

Eugene Prokofiev. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0302 (Walter Pimm)

Q
Alex Quijano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0117 (Alan Mateo)
Jason Quinn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Miles Hayward)

R
Ardeshir Radpour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0113 (Raja)
Cindy Ramirez. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0204 (Ava Nakama)
Chelle Ramos. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0306 (Jill Lee)
Diona Reasonover . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0118 (Forensic Scientist Kasie Hines); 0201 (Foren-
sic Scientist Kasie Hines)

Christopher Redman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0110 (Clark Lohan)

Tanoai Reed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0111 (Bodyguard #1)

Lyrik Reis-Moniz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0218 (Dottie)

Fiona Rene . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Melissa Garland)

Catherine Ann Restivo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0208 (Mabel’s Sister #1)

Gloria Reuben . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0219 (Commander Tannon McCarthy)

Sean Rhee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0215 (Korean Operative #4)

Branscombe Richmond .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0205 (Maleko Ioane)

Corey Rieger . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0116 (Anders)

Elise Robertson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0301 (Psych Evaluator)

Gabriel ’G-Rod’ Rodriguez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0205 (Foreman)

Nicole Rombaoa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0206 (Gabby)

Erin Ross . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0219 (Millie Chapman)

Will Rothhaar. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0307 (Gunnery Sergeant Braden Kirk)

Anthony Ruivivar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
0110 (Daniel Tennant); 0116 (Daniel Tennant); 0119

(Daniel Tennant); 0205 (Daniel Tennant); 0206
(Daniel Tennant); 0217 (Daniel Tennant)

S
Sonny Saito . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Commander Tanaka)
Jeanne Sakata . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Vicky Ito)
Carolyn Samuelson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0208 (Mabel’s Sister #2)
Daniel Santana Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0221 (Venezuelan Intel Member #1)
Kuranosuke Sasaki . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Tsuyoshi Azumi)
Sara Savusa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0208 (Mabel’s Sister #5)
Saxon Sawai. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Akio Miyake)
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Makana Say . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0115 (Classmate #1)

Ativalu Scanlan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0216 (Devon Gage)

Tom Schanley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Crazy Sam)

Scott M. Schewe. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
0102 (HPD Officer D. Nunes); 0121 (HPD SGT P.

James); 0205 (HPD SGT P. James); 0220 (HPD
Officer T. Wilcox)

Justin Scott . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0111 (Bad Beat Rick)

Kathy Searle. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0203 (Lydia)

Teddy Sears . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0118 (Greg Winslow)

Todd Sells . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0301 (Josh Moore)

Padrick Shadeck . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (David Andrews)

Asuka Shibuya . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0202 (Ryoko Azumi)

Vince Shin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0211 (Track Suit)

Anthony J. Silva Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0107 (Akamu Lui)

Deep Singh . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0220 (Jack)

Lars Slind . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0310 (SAJ Soldier)

Nadja Sofi. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0216 (Ada Barnes)

Geronimo Son . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (John Casings)

Josh Squire. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8
0101 (Jogger); 0103 (Beach Goer / Paddleboarder);

0104 (Wally’s Wait Staff); 0116 (Opposing Base-
ball Player); 0118 (Local Camper); 0120 (Bell
Hop); 0122 (Filipino Local); 0208 (Opera Goer)

Louis Steiner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Master at Arms)

Zane Stephens . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0309 (Barry)

Maury Sterling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0117 (Hank Braddock)

Herman Stern . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0111 (Maury Chauvin)

Maya Stojan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0210 (Morgan Miller)

Sierra Swartz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0204 (Cassandra Souza); 0208 (Cassandra Souza);

0212 (Cassandra)
Ticondra Swartz. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Agent Reyes)
Don Swayze . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0204 (Joe)

T
Ken Takemoto . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Ken Ito)
Toshiji Takeshima. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Inspector Kento Mori)
Kian Talan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

0204 (Alex Tennant); 0206 (Alex Tennant); 0208
(Alex Tennant); 0212 (Alex Tennant); 0214 (Alex
Tennant); 0215 (Alex Tennant); 0216 (Alex Ten-
nant); 0217 (Alex Tennant); 0218 (Alex Ten-
nant); 0221 (Alex Tennant); 0222 (Alex Ten-
nant); 0301 (Alex Tennant)

Allan Tam .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Owner)
Dollar Tan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0212 (Corporal Yang)
Jonathan Tanigaki . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Nazo / Suzuki)
Donta Tanner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0121 (LCpl Mason Cartwright)
Mike Tarnofsky. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0209 (Russ Novak)
Napoleon Tavale. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0117 (Thomas Priestley)
Ryôsei Tayama .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Rokurou Kaneko)
Annie Tedesco . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0307 (Bartender)
Adam David Thompson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0207 (Mitchell Smith)
Mary Thornton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0121 (Major Lydia Vail); 0122 (Major Lydia Vail)
Peter Togawa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0114 (Norwood)
Joe Toro . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0214 (Captain George Bernal)
Nikolai Tsankov . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0309 (Lev Fedorov)
Daisuke Tsuji . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (LCDR Mike Ito)
Muga Tsukaji. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0202 (Saburou Suda)
Tumua Tuinei . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Wilbert Kalili)
Kelsie Turner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0215 (Female Driver)

U
Grant Udagawa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Japanese Singing Sailor #1)

V
Wilmer Valderrama.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0118 (NCIS Special Agent Nick Torres); 0201 (NCIS
Special Agent Nick Torres)

Ben Venturina. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0103 (Lee Oania)

Ian Verdun .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0209 (Santino)

W
Jake Weber . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0214 (Jim Carter)
Michael Weston . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0201 (Maxwell / Raven / Hearns)
Jacob White . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Mainlander #2)
Julie White . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

0106 (Maggie Shaw); 0109 (Maggie Shaw); 0112
(Maggie Shaw); 0113 (Maggie Shaw); 0221 (Mag-
gie Shaw); 0222 (Maggie Shaw); 0310 (Maggie
Shaw)

Ronda Kahana Williams . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0218 (Young Jane Tennant)

Mark Wilson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0121 (State Department Official); 0122 (State De-

partment Official)
Erica Wong . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Myra); 0112 (Myra)
Makenzie Wong. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
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0214 (Scarlett)
Gino Woulard. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0303 (Xavier Duvall)
Teri Wyble . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Skylar)

Y
Kurt Yaeger . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0218 (Master Sergeant Strand)
Kasen Yahiku. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0215 (Kid #1)
Kensi Lee Yahiku. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0215 (Kid #2)
Kevin Yamada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0301 (Doctor)
Shôgo Yamaguchi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Taichirou Sakurai)
Megumi Yasu . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Yukiko Yamaguchi)
Christian Yeung . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Lt. Commander Joseph Cheng)
Ron Yuan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Big Luna)

Z
Danielle Zalopany . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

0101 (Hina); 0104 (Hina); 0112 (Hina); 0122 (Hina);
0205 (Hina); 0213 (Hina)

Madeline Zima . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Abby Nelson)
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